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Hoakou Meadon Tntemational Airport

A gatenny from South China to the World

A green odrport, striving for excellence on ecological and environmiental, protection

An oarport, aming to provisde considerate setvices and meticdous care to customers

An aarport fuld of vitalaty, standing out conspieuously on the world stage
thanks to the further opening up of teaffic rghts

An oarport Listed on the Matn Boacd of SEHK (0%57.HK)
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Terminal: The domestic terminal of Meilan Airport, designed by B+H Architects International

LLC of Canada, was completed in 1999 and has completed continued construction in 2005;
the international terminal, designed by the China Civil Aviation Institute, was built in 2013 with

domestically first-class main facilities in China.

Air traffic control tower: 70.34 meters high; various navigation and remote control systems
configured for communication and navigation, including the Doppler weather radar, the
automated meteorological observation system, the high and low power ranger, the Doppler
Ompni-directional Range, are all imported from abroad and reach internationally advanced

level.

The road system: Main facilities are designed according to the technical requirements

regarding maximum gross take-off and landing for large aircrafts such as Boeing 747-400.
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Cotporate Mission € % &
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Cotporate Background

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited* (the “Meilan Airport” or the “Company”)
is a joint stock Company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”
or “China") with limited liability on 28 December 2000. The H shares of the
Company were issued and listed on the Main Board (the “Main Board") of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

18 November 2002. On 6 November 2003, the Company was approved
by the Ministry of Commerce (“MOC") of the PRC to convert into a foreign
invested joint stock company. The Company has changed its name from
“Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited” to "HNA Infrastructure
Company Limited”, with effect from 2 March 2015.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are currently engaged in
both aeronautical and non-aeronautical businesses at Meilan Airport, Haikou, Hainan
Province, the PRC. The aeronautical businesses of the Company mainly consist of
the provision of terminal facilities, ground handling services and passenger services.
The non-aeronautical businesses of the Company mainly include the leasing of
commercial and retail spaces at Meilan Airport, franchising of airport related business,
advertising, car parking, cargo handling and sales of consumable goods.

Major awards of the Company in 2015 were as follows:

e "World Airport Award” of ASQ (Airport Service Quality) among global airports
with scales of 5-15 million and “The Best Airport Finalist in Asia-Pacific”
awarded by ACI (Airports Council International)

e “SKYTRAX China Regional Best Staff Award”

® “Golden Label Certification” awarded by IATA (International Air Transport
Association)

® “National Quality Culture Construction Demonstration Units” honorary title for
2015 awarded by China Quality Association and “National Implementation of
Construction with Users Satisfaction Advanced Units” honorary title

® “Excellence Participants in National Safety Operation Month” awarded by Work
Safety Committee of the State

To be a successful regronal atrport management company in China, and
offer quadaty and safe atrport services. Steavang to become an investment
management group focusing on asset management by integrating tnvestment
with development, operatang under segments such as commercial and autport,
complementing development with cound strategies and matntatning good
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CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.mlairport.com

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wang Zhen, Chairman
Yang Xiaobin, President
Gao Jian

Zhang Peihua

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hu Wentai, Vice Chairman
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
Yan Xiang

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Deng Tianlin

Fung Ching, Simon
George F Meng

He Linji

SUPERVISORS

Dong Guiguo, Chairman
Zhang Shusheng
Han Aimin

COMPANY SECRETARY

Xing Zhoujin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wang Zhen
Xing Zhoujin
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Deng Tianlin, Committee Chairman
Fung Ching, Simon
George F MENG

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Deng Tianlin, Committee Chairman
Fung Ching, Simon
Zhang Peihua

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

He Linji, Committee Chairman
Deng Tianlin
Wang Zhen

STRATEGIC COMMITTEE

Fung Ching, Simon, Committee Chairman
Deng Tianlin

He Linji

Wang Zhen

Hu Wentai

LEGAL ADDRESS AND HEAD OFFICE

Office Building of Meilan Airport
Haikou City
Hainan Province, the PRC

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 5811-5814, 58/F

Two International Finance Centre
No. 8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe

43rd Floor, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong
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Shanghai Ch

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Bank of China, Hainan Province Branch
Haikou Jinyu Sub-branch

1/F, Yazhuang Garden
82 Haixiu Central Road
Haikou City

Hainan Province, the PRC

China Everbright Bank
Haikou Yingbin Sub-branch

1/F Longquan Garden
56 Longkun South Road
Haikou City

Hainan Province, the PRC

H SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

00357

= LN

FEFREIT
FEIRITBEE DT
EOLFFZT

PEEME

gOm

85 X825
HHIEE—1Z

RE X KRBT
BOWE 1T
FESEE
FOmH
BER R RK 565
EREtEEE

HIRBFZRE
ERPRBHELERATA
BB

SERRER1835K

AP LT7E

1712-1716F

BRERES

00357



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Financiod Highlaghte 89 33 18 %

TWO-YEAR COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FIGURES
MEFTEMBENLR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-RA=+—HILFE

(RMB'000) 2015 2014 Change
(AREFT) —E-HF —T—EF &
Revenue WA 1,063,431 882,013 20.57%
Gross profit EAH 636,982 539,716 18.02%
Net profit attributable to )N

shareholders of the Company 1% 58 1) 438,771 333,869 31.42%
Earnings per share — basic (RMB) BRRAEM — EAXN (AREIT) 0.93 0.71 30.99%
Net cash generated from operating activities —“23&/EBEA R FRE 434,341 419,872 3.45%
Current ratio BN L & 0.92 2.87 -67.94%
Asset-liability ratio BEBEX 53.30% 49.47% 3.83%
EBITDA EBITDA 756,542 595,435 27.06%
Revenue (RMB’000) Gross profit (RMB’000)
WA (ARETT) EM (AR®BTx)

m 2014 2015



For the year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—HBItFE

(RMB'000) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(ARBTT) —B-Hf —T-MNF —T-=-F T —T——F
Revenue U A 1,063,431 882,013 760,277 684,069 564,892
Net profit attributable to EBERAR T
shareholders of the Company A% A1 438,771 333,869 342,034 297,963 289,778
EBITDA EBITDA 756,542 595,435 527,880 467,822 405,745
FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION
N
L FDBMRARE
For the year ended 31 December
T R Bl SR N et
(RMB'000) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ARETIT) =F-HF —T-mFE —FT-=F —FT-—F —FT —F
Total assets BEE 6,962,243 5,721,747 5,667,229 3,867,245 2,855,003
Total liabilities wafE 3,710,852 2,830,393 2,997,886 1,428,049 639,358
Total equity EEAE 3,251,391 2,891,354 2669343 2439196 2215645
OPERATION DATA HIGHLIGHTS
T SRy
EEELERRE
Two-year comparison of key operation data
MEFTELEELERLR
For the year ended 31 December
HE+-A=1+—HLFE
2015 2014 Change
—E—hHF —ZT M b
Passenger throughput REEHE
(headcount in ten thousand) (Bfy : BAKR) 1,616.70 1,385.39 16.7%
in which: Domestic Heh: BHA 1,562.01 1,330.71 17.4%
International and regional BB K 3 R 54.69 5468 0.0%
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights)  REHBFEZR K (B : 2K) 121,827 105,861 15.1%
in which: Domestic Heh: B 116,938 100,570 16.3%
International and regional B BRI i [ 4,889 5,291 -7.6%
Cargo throughput (tons) EBMITELE (B - W) 246,787.50 217,714.10 13.4%
in which: Domestic Heh: B 237,466.00 208,350.60 14.0%
International and regional BRI B % i & 9,321.50 9,363.50 -0.5%
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Mealon Aurport operates a total of > ( [ organatang coutes,

wmcludang (9 domestic routes, (% antemational coutes and \f cegronal routes.

Metlan Aeport has 95 navgable citres,
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&Y Domestic Navigable Catres

Cuongzhou, Shenzhen, Betging, Zhengzhou, Chongging,
Chavngsha, Wuhon, Hongzhou, Chengdu, Nanging, Xvon,
Nanchong, Cuyang, Kunnvung, Nonntng, Xiamen, Totyuon,
Trongin, Javon, Hoebin, Zhuhod, Hefer, Jieyang, Fuzhou,
Shenang, Nangbo, CGuadan, Lanzhou, Gangdoo, Shustazhuang,
Chavgeum, Ueumgt, Wenzhou, Hohhot, Dodaan, Shanghad,
Yanchuon, Xuzhou, Janggonashon, Lauzhou, Wonzhou,
Yuncheng, Gonzhou, Pnging, Merzhou, Changde, 2hanjiang,
Changzhn, Yontoa, Luzhou, Datong, Baoton, Chongzhou,
Yichang, 2mgaong, 2umt, Ligtong, Soma, Nontons,
Norwang, Jangiang, Mianong, Jinng, Liangungong, Hecha,
Xuning, Hoalae, Enghu, Yonchens, Foshon, Bijte, Wuhod,
Linyt, Huangshon, Yanu, Bethoa, Dongytng, Nonchong, (Nu,
Wwytshan, Handon, Dongehens, 2Zhongitakon, Xinzhou

T Intemational Navigable Cities
Stngapore, Bangkeok, Seaul., Busan, Cheongju, Osaka, Smzuoka

‘¥ Regtonal Novagable Cataes
Hong Kong, Taaper, Macau, Kaohetung
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Choaerman’s Statement 3 % 3 &

“Reaching Higher with Service Exceldence
Commutted to provoding customzed services
to tourtsts, Metdan Aueport offers unmque

servaces of fave—star standacd.

[ & 28 Bk
UYL BRIBIRLE 2B

BeorhiZI T Rk

&I TE RIS B L o

To all shareholders: BEAIAER ¢

In 2015, the international situations remained stable on the whole and turbulent —Z—FF - BREFERRSEETE  BLENs
locally. The downward pressure of global economy increased and the economy was %8 o ﬁﬁ?&uﬁ:‘ETﬁrﬁ mx - EB&HBHTE -
in dearth of recovery power with the structural reformation being in the hardest 4B E RS HE R BB BOATEREHZE - i
struggle. Meanwhile, the international political situation was sophisticated, local — ZEBUARE Bk - EETH - 2R F BEERE
geopolitics were under ongoing tensions and unceasing conflicts. The overall BB EEIEEZ H — ERE BIEEZHRLBAHE T -
recovery capabilities of major developed countries in the globe was weak — the  {BE{ 7T [& 1 B 2N 46 75 45 48 [ R BB MR F B2 R+ 2
United States enjoyed relatively better momentum, while an urgent solutiontothe  BREERERIZFEER EXTEEAENTE

structural economic problems of Eurozone and Japan was required. Affected by the 7 B 4% 75 §& & Fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ’],ﬁé,@%Tﬁrﬂ ’

0

continuing declines in global energy prices, inadequate demand and other factors, — IEFRIFENLE + DM EF D EENE > BHHE
the emerging economies continued to slacken under more severe economic 4§ E‘&gﬁ'f%ﬂ?%i‘%ﬁ?* BRI B 2R 2k 2 = AT R
downward pressures. The global employment situation has been improved, but  RE /K © ZZEBRRYBIL IR TFE - FE L HE
the employment markets in emerging economies showed differently, with the — 52iB &R R4 ‘%ff%?—;%%;g P X ERR LR TR
unemployment rates in individual countries still remained high. The commodity E@REBHE TUKTE  2HESFEHBEAEE &1
prices growth decelerated in developed countries, but the emerging economies  {£4E T zﬁ%%/?i‘ﬁ@%ﬁ’\]*ﬁi C R IRE AT &
kept stable inflation rate generally. Affected by the fall in prices of international £ 5L 7 B SFREMNEKHREHNER -

energy and resource products, global trade showed negative growth, which not
only slowed the pace of global economic recovery, but also increased the risks of

trade protection and currency competition amongst economies.



Facing such a complex external environment and unfavorable conditions, such
as increased downward pressure and weak growth of domestic economy, the
PRC government broke its way and overcame difficulties. It introduced new
macro-control measures and means and strove to solve economic and social
problems by fully leveraging on its proactive fiscal policies and prudent monetary
policies, insisting on the general tone of “seeking improvement in stability” and
implementing series of policies “stabilizing growth, facilitating reform, adjusting
structure, benefiting people, controlling risks”. These efforts led to the trend of
“a moderate but stable and sound growth and make progress while ensuring
stability” during whole economic operation, enabling the PRC to enter a new
economic transformation stage.

Reviewing 2015, with the implementation of the national “Belt and Road
Initiative” development strategy, the further construction of Hainan International
Tourism Island and the continuing liberalization of offshore duty-free policy,
the Group stuck to deep adjustment and transformation, and enhanced the
corporate soft and hard development power. While continuing to deploy much
more efforts on its core aviation marketing capability, the Group actively created
a five-star business brand, effectively increased profitability of the non-aviation
businesses, coupled with strengthened cost control, further promoted specialized

and sophisticated management, and obtained satisfactory financial results.

As of December 31, 2015, the passenger throughput of the Group reached
16.1670 million, which broke 16 million for its debut history and hit record high
again, and the Group successfully achieved spallation from small and medium-
sized airport to medium and large-sized airport. Meanwhile, the Group also
achieved its 17th year of safe operation in its history and also made outstanding
achievements in security management, brand building, quality enhancement
and business development.

ACHIEVEMENTS

In 2015, the Group's total revenue amounted to RMB1,063,430,885, representing
an increase of 20.57% as compared to 2014. Income from aviation business
amounted to RMB580,049,375, representing an increase of 17.42% as compared
to 2014. Income from non-aviation business amounted to RMB483,381,510,
representing an increase of 24.58% as compared to 2014.
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Choarmon's Statement 3 B 1 &

OVERVIEW OF AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2015, benefited from certain favorable factors such as the overall rapid
development of the civil aviation industry in China and the further construction of
Hainan International Tourism Island, both tourism and air transportation industries
in Hainan continued a steady growth. Having considered the situation and grasped
the right time, the Group continued to deploy much more effort on its core aviation
business, at the same time it actively strengthened communication with local
government, revised and fine-tuned passenger incentives and attracted more
airlines to increase capacity. The Group promoted the implementation of aviation
oil bonded policy, which effectively improved the Group’s competitiveness on
existing international routes, and created favorable conditions for the development
of future new international routes. The Group took the lead to establish Haikou
Air Travel Association, and took the initiative to unite more than 40 air travel
enterprises in Haikou region to jointly set up a sharing platform of air travel, which
promoted the deepen integration and collaborative development of the aviation
passenger transportation market and tourism industry in Haikou.

As compared to 2014, Meilan Airport has added 57 new routes, including 50
domestic routes as well as 7 international and regional routes. The total passenger
throughput for the year reached 16.1670 million, flight takeoff and landing for
transportation up to 121,827 times and cargo throughput up to 246,787.50 tons,
with a year-on-year growth of 16.7%, 15.1% and 13.4%, respectively, representing

a successful realization of its annual transportation and production target.

OVERVIEW OF NON-AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2015, the non-aviation business of the Group maintained growth momentum
and achieved annual revenue of RMB483,381,510, representing a year-on-year
increase of 24.58%. Its proportion to the Group's total revenue hit record high
at 45.45%. The continuous growth of non-aviation business was mainly due to
the continuous increase in sales from the franchise operation of Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop in Meilan Airport and the substantial growth of the
freight and packaging income. Meanwhile, with the flexible adjustment of the
business model, and actively utilising the area-effectiveness for commercial use,
the Group ensured steady growth in the revenue of its non-aviation business.
In 2015, the Group recorded franchise income accumulated to RMB256,458,436,
representing a significant year-on-year increase of 22.98%, where freight and
packaging income reached RMB104,666,441, representing a year-on-year
remarkable increase of 40.72%; and rental income reached RMB38,486,680,
representing a year-on-year slight increase of 1.76%. In addition, parking fee
income also reached RMB17,023,384, representing a year-on-year increase of
6.03%. Meanwhile, VIP room income, recorded a continuous drop owing to the
influence of the government policies.
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WEST GALLERY EXTENSION PROJECT, WEST
REMOTE BOARDING APRON CONSTRUCTION
PROJECT AND PHASE Il EXPANSION PROJECT

The newly built West Gallery and the West Remote Boarding Apron have been
commenced operation on 25 October 2015. So far, Meilan Airport has a gross area
of approximately 150,000 square meters and the aprons have been increased to
78 from 65 in Meilan Airport. In addition, the Phase Il expansion project of Meilan
Airport with a total investment amount of approximately RMB13,838,000,000
has also broken ground for laying a cornerstone on 18 November 2015. The
preliminary design of project has proceeded in an all-around way.

TERMINAL COMPLEX PROJECT

The construction of the terminal complex project with a total investment of
approximately RMB1,903,874,000 has been orderly processing as planned by
Yangpu Guoxing Construction Co., Ltd since its start. The main work of the hotel
portion has been accomplished. The work of commercial parking building portion
has also sped up, which is expected to be completed by the end of 2016.

INTEREST PAYMENT OF CORPORATE BONDS

According to the announcement of the Company dated 19 March 2012, the
Company announced to complete domestic issuance of corporate bonds with
the principal amount of RMB800 million. Pursuant to the Listing Announcement
of 2011 Corporate Bonds of Hainan Meilan International Airport Co., Ltd.
(BRAEBRBESRMNERAR0NEQRFEEFE LT RAEE) ) released by
Shanghai Stock Exchange on 19 April 2012, our coupon rate of corporate bonds
was 7.8%, whose interests from March 2014 to March 2015 had been paid on 16
March 2015, in total RMB62,400,000.

ACQUISITION PROGRESS

According to the announcement of the Company dated 13 November 2015 and

the circular of the Company dated 4 December 2015:

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan International Airport
Company Limited (the “Parent Company’) entered into an equity transfer
agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement’), pursuant to which, the Company
agreed to acquire 100% of the equity interest in Haikou Meilan Airport Assets
Management Co,, Ltd. ("Meilan Airport Assets Management”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Parent Company, at a consideration of RMB604,800,000.
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The consideration of the acquisition was determined with reference to the
valuation of the total assets of Meilan Airport Assets Management as at 30
September 2015, being the base date of evaluation, conducted by Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited. The payment of the entire consideration of
the equity transfer by the Company is subject to the fulfillment of the capital
contribution obligation by the Parent Company to Meilan Airport Assets
Management.

The consideration was paid by two installments as follows:

(i) RMB574,560,000 (being 95% of the total consideration) shall be payable
within 60 business days from the date of approval of the Equity Transfer
Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder by the
extraordinary general meeting; and

(ii) RMB30,240,000 (being 5% of the total consideration) shall be payable
within 15 business days from the date of completion of the necessary
industrial and commercial registrations and filings relating to the Equity
Transfer Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder in the
Industrial and Commercial Bureau of Hainan Province.

As at the date of this report, the Company paid the first installment of the
consideration to the Parent Company in accordance with the Equity Transfer
Agreement. Upon the fulfillment of the capital contribution obligation by
the Parent Company, the Company will pay the second installment of the
consideration in accordance with the Equity Transfer Agreement.

As at the date of this report, the Parent Company was conducting the assets
transferring procedure upon the approval of respective government department
in accordance with relevant provisions. The Company will notify the shareholders
of the Company and potential investors with the information on the latest
progress under the Equity Transfer Agreement in the future, and make disclosure
timely to the public according to the provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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INTELLIGENTIZED AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION

In 2015, according to the overall plan of the intelligentized airport construction of
Meilan Airport, insisting on the idea of “happy e-travel, efficient e-use, e-control
security, e-earning efficiency and e-enjoyment low carbon”, the Group kept
further construction of the intelligentized airport. It has extended its reach to
three main aspects including security, service and operation. Among them, 119
fire control system was launched, which effectively promoted the fire accurate
command and rapid response ability of Meilan Airport. The scheduling system
of wireless station sites has come to service normally, which will gradually
enable real-time monitoring of each support unit, so as to efficiently integrate
the support resources of airport apron and improve production monitoring
ability and operation efficiency. The self-service equipment such as CUSS
(Common Use Self Service), self baggage system, self check-in system, free wifi
and multifunctional charge point has come to service, which enables full self-
service of Meilan Airport in travel process, and the honorary title of “Golden Logo
Certification” was awarded by IATA. The alternate flight system, digital intercom
system, 4G private network system and new VIP room system have come to
service, which further optimise the operational procedures.

OUTLOOK

The global economy in 2016 remains challenging. Driven by various factors such
as interest rate increase of the Federal Reserve and continuous growth of real
estate industry, the United States economy is expected to tend to further recover.
Under the easing monetary policy environment, the European economy will have
a weak recovery and structural reform will be inevitable. The economic growth
of the emerging economies will keep differentiated. In 2016, it is anticipated that
the global inflation will remain steady.

2016 is the beginning year of the “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” of China and a
revolutionary, innovative and transformational year of economic and social
development. Given the severe economic downward pressure and under the
current financial situation and inflation circumstance, it is expected that the PRC
government will continue its cautious macro-economic policies and pertinent
monetary easing policies, and actively deal with the relationship between “steady
growth, structure adjustment, reform facilitation, risk prevention and people’s
livelihood benefits”. It will fully promote structural reform of the supply, and strive
to minimize external adverse effect of unstable factors on the economy of China.
Adhering to the idea of “seeking improvement in stability”, it is expected that the

development pace of the economy of China will remain relatively stable in 2016.
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Compared to the complex international environment and the new domestic
environment, the construction of Hainan International Tourism Island will
continue to maintain a good and healthy momentum. In 2016, driven by the
accelerated transformation and upgrading of the tourism industry, the local
government of Hainan will continue to standardize and integrate the resources
of the tourism industry of the whole province, spare no effort to propel the
pattern transformation of tourism industry in Hainan from “spots-type tourism”
to “comprehensive tourism”, keep promotion of key tourism projects in Hainan
Province and fully explore the development potential of this industry. It will also
further optimize transportation infrastructure. It is expected that the number of
domestic and overseas travellers visiting Hainan will continue to increase, laying
a solid foundation for the development of Meilan Airport in 2016.

In addition, affected by various factors including further liberalization of offshore
duty-free policy, during the Spring Festival “Golden Week” in 2016, Hainan
Island recorded sales of duty-free commodities of 321,300 items and achieved
aggregate sales amounted to RMB340,000,000, representing increases of 9.69%
and 8.36%, respectively. The turnover of over RMB16,000,000 recorded on 13
February 2016 by Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Free Shop once again hit the
new single day record. According to the current trends of operation and sales
revenue of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-Fee Shop, it is believed that it will incur
better profits to the Group.

Opportunities outweigh challenges in 2016. The Group will grasp every
development opportunity to continue strict implementation of its strategic
development plans, full exploration of the potential of aviation and non-aviation
markets, further optimize capital structure, improve market value and keep
reduction of gearing ratio. Its aim is to become an investment management group
focusing on asset management by integrating investment with development,
complementing development with sound strategies and maintaining good
industrial clusters. It will strive to achieve healthy and sustainable development
of Meilan Airport so as to bring better return to all shareholders of the Company.

MEHEERNBERTEEFELTHEATY
- /’iﬁl[‘/’%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁi REBRITIE - RIFH

BRI —T—RNEF - FEBRUIREEEXSE
AIFA E’]T&@JT Y E BN S B hnsa ¥ &2

AIRBEERNS—REANES %ﬁ?&éﬂ%@ﬁﬁf&
e [RERE] M [ 2R | REE
BANEESREEHIREREER /KE%?E
IREEXEREN  E—FPEREEMRIE
& 0 TEETEN 8 A B RSB A B R AR AN

RMEAXHEE T "FNEREEERE
g o

o —E-REEH [EEA BHE XS
ﬁ’aﬁﬂ( —IHAERRTE  BHEESREN

ﬁﬁ%%%mmm BEY  ARHEEEEEAR
¥&34187T - Rt 9 535 £K9.69% ~ 8.36% ° H A -
ERREBERRIE_T—NF_A+=8 L‘M@
ARMB16008THHE R EHARMELHEE

8% - RBEXHE GBS RBIE B ANES &um
P BEEBAREETRE A BHKE

“ERNE - BBARKE - AEBEREFILE
BREE  EEZHBMERRE  REMZ=
FMETHEN  E—TEBILERERE  BAD
B HEREEERERX  NFEFABRKA/MA
BEEER/ZL  RERMERGES AR
B EXBEERNREETHESE  BRXEH
SRREAIFEER  UEIEERNEREOES
BAR -



PROMOTION OF TRANSFORMATION AND
UPGRADING FOR WIN-WIN SITUATION
OF “PRODUCTION QUANTITY” AND
“OPERATION QUALITY”

In 2016, in order to adapt to the new trend of development of aviation market,
the Group will expand its markets of medium, small and new airlines as well as
small and medium-sized unnavigable airports, and focus on improvement of
route network distribution of Meilan Airport. It will launch “peak load shifting” and
preferential programs for large aircrafts so as to attract more airlines to put large
aircrafts in Meilan Airport, and increase new flights or make the flights compact
during “off-peak” hours so as to promote the utility of Meilan Airport resources.
It will continue to seek the government's policy support, strive to improve
the standards of airlines incentives, and further consolidate the foundation of
development of Haikou aviation market. Focusing on strategy layout of “Belt and
Road Initiative”, relying on the favourable policies such as bonded aviation oil
and offshore duty-free, the Group will fully implement the development strategy
of Southeast Asian hub airport, so as to turn Meilan Airport to become regional
aviation hub in southern China.

STICK TO CORE CAPABILITY CONSTRUCTION,
CONSTANTLY CLUTCH ATTENTION OF
SAFETY

Aiming at consolidating safety fundamentals in 2016, the Group will continue
strengthening integrated construction of safety performance, risk control
and emergency management to consistently perfect the safety management
system. Meanwhile, it will commence management process of prevention and
contingency reserve, monitoring and early warning, field management and
control, information distribution and recovery after event, etc. to build a more
completed emergency response and guarantee system. The Group will complete
normalization of inner security management by further intensifying access
administration in the control zone, practically improve security management
efficiency by rationally integrating existing security resources, and strengthen
the whole control of hazard article transport by establishing and improving
supervisory mechanism of hazard articles. To perfect management of business
training, it will organize to formulate a plan to establish training systems and
commence training effective transformation practically.
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FIRMLY DEEPEN EFFICIENCY PROMOTION,
SOLIDLY DEVELOP BRAND IMPROVEMENT

With year-on-year increase in the business volume of the core aviation segment,
the issues including single route and low capacity during peak hours have
seriously hindered the growth of Meilan Airport. As such, in 2016, the Group will
spare no effort to continuously assess the capacity of Meilan Airport, striving to
expand capacity during peak hours. It will continue implementing arrival and
departure separation in Meilan Airport to increase airspace capacity of the airport
and relieve alleviate route congestion problem. To improve the operational
environment and flight on-time performance, the Group will optimize flight
schedule, enhance the rate that flight successfully relies on bridge and improve
the model of airport parking position assignment, etc. It will carry out grid
partitioning support management on airport apron operation to perfect regional
monitoring system and increase the overall efficiency of airport apron. It will also
build supervisory and inspection system as well as strengthening accountability
system in respect of the flight operation based on the wireless station site.
Through strengthening flight security and quality control, the Group targets to
implement refined management on flight operation.

In 2016, the Group will keep carrying forward the construction of a SKYTRAX five-
star airport. Building on consolidation of the success of existing brands, the Group
will accelerate the upgrading of both its software and hardware to realize the aim
of becoming a five-star airport entirely in 2016. At the same time, it will formulate
tailor-made development plan for brands of Meilan Airport based on “brand
building” so as to improve the value and effect of the brands of Meilan Airport.

In 2016, the Group will continue conducting the strategy of sustainable
development and stick to construction of “Green Airport” project by means of
"high-efficient resource utilization and low influence on environment”, striving
to pass ACA (Airport Carbon Accreditation) certification of Airports Council

International.
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vigorously pro
Center) in Meilan Airport. The Group targets to turn Meilan Airport into a
comprehensive three-dimensional transportation center based in northern
Hainan with coverage of the whole Hainan Province and Southeast Asia within
5 years.
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
CIVIL AVIATION INDUSTRY OF CHINA

Main transport indexes of civil aviation industry of China maintains a trend
of faster development under the influence of disadvantages such as more
pressure of domestic descending economic with decelerated growth against
a background of sustainable and sluggish recovery of global economy and
international aviation market. In civil aviation industry of China in 2015, it was
shown that total volume of transport was 85.04 billion ton kilometers, passenger
volume was 436 million passengers, cargo & mail volume was 6.253 million tons,
which accordingly increased by 13.7%, 11.1% and 5.2% on year-on-year basis. In
China by 2015, there had been 54 air transport companies, 278 general aviation
enterprises, 2,645 transport aircrafts, 1,866 general aircrafts, 7 new-established
airports put into use, 206 airports with transport certificate and 26 airports with
passenger traffic volume of more than 10 million passengers including 8 airports
with passenger traffic volume of more than 30 million passengers. The industrial
strength was further enhanced.

In 2015, good policies for civil aviation industry of China popped out one after
another.

In July 2015, National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") and
Civil Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC") issued Instructions to Build and
Develop Airport Economic Demonstration Area ( { BB 2= 4875 /N &0 [R F2 7R 3
EBEIEES R ) ) (hereinafter referred to as “Instructions’), clarified that the
key point to build and develop the air economic demonstration area was to rely
on large aviation hubs, comply with laws of aviation economic development,
guide and promote high-end manufacturing business and modern service
industry through concentrated development, establish an industrial system
based on aviation transport and supported by aviation correlative industries,
push harmonious development of integration of industries with low pollution &
low environmental risk and the city, build the air economic demonstration area
into a modern industrial base, regional logistic center, technological innovation
engine and opening cooperation platform which will be strong support for
improving the regional economic society development and the transformation
of economic development mode.
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It shows clearly in the Instructions that: relying on aviation hub and modern
comprehensive transport system, airport economic area is a special economic area
concentrating and developing air-transport industry, high-end manufacturing
business and modern service industry so as to offer high time-sensitive, high-
quality and high value-added products and service, and it is also an important
media to mutually integrate, promote and improve civil aviation industry and
regional economics.

In August 2015, the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the
State Council issued Instructions to Deepen Reform of State-owned Enterprises
(CEARREEBRERERNIEEER) ), which was not only encouraging
investors with non-state-owned capital by investment and acquisition, etc.,
to participate in state-owned enterprise reform, or capital increase & stock
expansion of listed companies among state holding enterprises and enterprise
operation & management, but also encouraging social capital to involve in
infrastructure construction of civil aviation. NDRC expressed that it would carry
out pilot demonstration of diversified ownership reform in the fields of electricity,
oil, gas, railway, civil aviation, communication, military industry, etc. in the light
of the general plan of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
and the State Council. This file will open financing channels for development of
civil aviation airport in the future.

(FERR) ENREL  BELBEREREM
ERAMBRGERBERER - RESEHR
SEE  SHNEERNRYE  SEERMZE
B =i BE R AR IR 5 M AR A5 IR AR
BEE - ERMFERSLERERS - HER
# - HERTTHEZHE -

—E-RFENA - RHAR - BBHEENET (6
RAECERLEERRENEEER)  SEFEA
BEARETREBBLEAR WERESZRE)S
A 2EEELENHEAXEAEREE LT
NREEERBEARCEEEEE  ZBHLEER
SERMEMREER - BRENZNERRER
Rk EBROERITE EEN 4
o ORAR  JEE - B BE - ETFEE
FEORE A HINENBRETE - RXHFHAR
PSR RERITHBRERE -

23



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Management, Discussion and Anolysis § B R I 2 5 %

In December 2015, CAAC announced that it would launch pilot reform of flight
schedule and resource market allocation in Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport and Shanghai Pudong International Airport. It was exploration and
experiment to deepen industrial reform and to solve various contradictions. It
aimed to explore and build the optimal mode of flight schedule and resource
market allocation by pilot reform. In the pilots, the market would better play a
decisive role in the flight schedule and resource allocation, which would further
promote fairness, effectiveness and competition in flight schedule and resource
allocation.

The Company will pay close attention on development situation of civil aviation
industry in China in 2016 and carefully study government policies with a view to
make good use of policies. We will apply strategies flexibly and strive to optimize
the environment applicable for development of the Company on the principle of
safety operation so as to further consolidate and improve the position of Meilan
Airport among medium and large-sized airports in China.

PROFILE OF TOURISM IN HAINAN

In 2015, facing the domestic downturn economy along with the burden and
challenge brought by natural disasters such as drought and typhoon in Hainan,
Hainan tourism maintained a steady and rapid growth. Hainan received 53,356,600
tourists from China and other countries in 2015, representing a year-on-year
growth rate of 11.4%, among which, overnight tourists reached 44,929,500,
representing a year-on-year growth rate of 10.66%; the total income in tourism
reached RMB57.249 billion with a year-on-year growth of rate 13%. During the
"Golden Week" of Spring Festival in 2016, tourism in Hainan kept on the trend of
"being popular in the north and south at the same time”. Hainan totally received
3,712,200 tourists, among which, there were 1,721,400 overnight tourists and the
tourism income reached RMB11.277 billion, respectively, representing a year-on-
year growth rates of 19.15%, 5.14%, 19.55%. These great achievements were not
only benefited from the comprehensive promotion of the construction of Hainan
International Tourism Island, and the further expansion of the offshore duty-free
policy, but also from the launch of a series of world famous events and shows
on economy, culture and sports such as Boao Forum for Asia, 2015 China-South
Korea cultural and educational exchanges topic provincial road activity, China-
ASEAN sea cooperation year initiation ceremony, world yacht grand banquet,
International yachting race around Hainan Island, the 10th session of International
Road Cycling Race around Hainan Island, etc.,, which greatly promoted the
sustainable and rapid growth of Hainan tourism.
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To speed up the industry transformation and upgrading of tourism in Hainan
and comprehensively establish an open and inclusive “tourism + internet”
development environment, and promote the comprehensive integration
between the concept of “tourism + internet” and the construction of Hainan
International Tourism Island, on 24 December, 2015, Hainan “tourism + internet”
conference themed with promoting the great reform, large integration and grand
development of Hainan tourism and welcoming new era of Hainan “tourism +
internet” was successfully convened in Haikou. In the future, Hainan Province will
actively launch the integrated development platform for tourism and internet
and strive for the integrated, innovative and win-win development of “tourism
+ internet” in Hainan.

In 2015, apart from further implemented policies in Several Opinions on
Promoting the Construction and Development of Hainan International Tourism
Island ( (AR BEBRIRESZRBERNETER) ),

government actively responded to the call of national “Belt and Road Initiative”

Hainan provincial

initiative and successively issued important documents such as Implementation
Plans on Enhancing Internationalization Level of Hainan Tourism ( (8R4 12
SIREBERCKFIREARKEERERIR) )
Promoting Tourism Industry Development Quality and Level (
RBERESHKINETER)

space for the enhancement of Hainan tourism industry quality.

and Several Opinions on
CRARIRTH IR IEE

) to create a more advantageous development

In the national tourism meeting ended on 31 January 2016, Hainan Province had
been confirmed as the first national pioneer province for “comprehensive tourism”
by China National Tourism Administration and was entitled to several supported
policies launched by China National Tourism Administration, specifically including:
being the first to be taken as investment support objective within central and
local budget; firstly supporting the construction of tourism infrastructure; being
the first to be listed into tourism investment optimized project; enjoying the
preference to arrange touring diplomacy activities, broadcasts and promotions
and to be listed into key supporting scope of national tourism promotion; being
the first to be listed as national tourism reform and innovation pilot and model
field; firstly supporting the establishment of national key tourism brand such as
Level A scenic spots; enjoying the preference to arrange tourism talents training;
enjoying the preference to be listed into national tourism key contact areas, etc.
Hainan tourism will seize the opportunity and spare no efforts to create a new

comprehensive tourism pattern in which “each scenic spot can play its role”.
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KEY TOURISM PROJECTS IN HAINAN

In 2015, local governments at all levels in Hainan will continuously promote the
construction of key tourism projects.

On 29 December 2015, Boao Hengda International Medical Center, Boao Jimin
International Anti-aging Medical Center, China Stem Cell Group Hainan Boao
Affiliated Stem Cell Hospital and other four projects in the first batch were started
together in Hainan Boao Lecheng International Medical Touring Pilot Area and
became the introduction part for practicing in the development of medicine,
endowment and scientific research and other international touring medical
industry in the pilot area.

Since it was approved in June 2015, Changying “Global 100" Culture and Film
Industry Base projects, with planned investment of more than RMB38 billion
and area of 6,191 mu, has finished investment of RMB8 billion or so, and
the appropriated land removal and basic constructions have been smoothly
promoted. It is expected that the first phase project of the theme park will be in
trial operation by the end of 2016, and the rest will be totally open to the outside
by the National Day in 2017

Nanyang Street, the second historic senior street of Huayi Fengxiaogang Film
Commune at Haikou Mission Hills with a length of more than 300 meters and
including 70 Nanyang style buildings, was in formal operation on 22 December
2015. Socialism Old Peking Street is in intense construction.

The successive constructions of these key tourism projects will invigorate
tourism in Hainan and contribute to a new development situation of Hainan
“comprehensive tourism”.

The Group will closely focus on the tourism development trends in Hainan
Province, especially in the north part of Hainan Province, and actively cooperate
with the local governments to implement the promotion works of the tourism
products. The Group will seize the development opportunity and contribute
to the new height of passengers’ number in Meilan Airport and of handling

capability of air cargo.
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rail with a total length of 653 kilometers, and Hainan entered into a true era of
roundabout high-speed rail, transportation in the air and on the rail, three hours
life circle.

As for the highways, in 2015, great breakthroughs had been made in the
construction of “Tian (FH)” shaped highway. Tunchang-Qiongzhong highway had
been open to traffic on 30 May 2015; on the same day, Qiongzhong-Wuzhishan-
Ledong highway with a total length of 128.8 kilometers and a total investment
of RMB11.393 billion formally commenced construction. The project is in smooth
construction and is expected to be open to traffic in 2018. Wenchang-Boao
highway which had been listed into national highway network had been started
for construction on 18 November 2015. Besides, Wanning-Yangpu highway, as
the only highway across the whole island in the highway network of Hainan was
also started for construction on the same day. At present, the project schedule
is faster than expectation.

As for the investment and construction of airports, Qionghai Boao Airport, key
construction project in Hainan “Twelfth Five-year Plan”, had launched the test
flight on 3 March 2016 and had been put into use during the annual meeting of
Boao Forum for Asia in 2016.

OFFSHORE DUTY-FREE POLICY

In 2015, thanks to the further expansion of national offshore duty-free policy for
Hainan, the sales of offshore duty-free products in Hainan hit a new high. Two
duty-free shops in Haikou and Sanya sold 6,492,000 duty-free products in a whole
year totally and the sales amount reached RMB5.54 billion and they received
about 1,640,000 shopping visitors, enjoying year-on-year growth rates of 21.9%,
28.3% and 18%, respectively. Offshore duty-free shopping has truly become a
“golden visiting card” for touring in Hainan.
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The sales of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-free Shop largely and sustainably
increased. In 2015, the whole year sales income reached RMB1,239,442,896.43,
the shopping visitors’ number reached 642,296, and the sold products quantity
reached 1,959,487 pieces, respectively enjoying growth rates of 37.87%, 25.59%
and 39.07%. West Gallery was put into use, the Phase | terminal was upgraded
and therefore Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-free Shop business area will be added
to 7,455 square meters, at present including east street (east gallery extension),
middle street (lifting and reconstruction area of the Phase | terminal) and west
street (West Gallery).

West street of Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-free Shop, which was formally
operated on 18 November 2015, now has introduced Bottega Veneta, Versace,
Rimowa, Max Mara, Juicy Couture, S.T.Dupont and other international famous
brands, so that the international brands sold at Meilan Airport Offshore Duty-free
Shop amount to 245, which provide largely choices for the off-shore tourists. It is
expected to bring considerable franchise operation incomes for Meilan Airport.

To meet with the shopping demands of offshore tourists, to further play the role
of offshore duty-free policy, and to spare no efforts to support the construction
of Hainan International Tourism Island, Ministry of Finance consulted NDRC, MOC,
General Administration of Customs, State Administration of Taxation, General
Administration of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC,
China Food and Drug Administration and made the decision with the approval
of State Council. From 1 February 2016, the decision makes the following new
adjustments to part of the offshore tax-free policy: cancel the times limit for the
non-islanders’ shopping tour, the tax-free shopping amount shall not be more
than RMB16,000 instead of RMB8,000 in accumulation each person per year; agree
that Sanya Haitangwai tax-free shop and Meilan Airport tax-free shop establish
online selling window, so that offshore tourists can go shopping through online
selling window and pick up the products in the airport isolation area for products
picking per identity card and boarding check and then bring the products off the
island. The regulations practiced for shopping tax-free products through online
selling window are the same with offshore tax-free shopping policies. The further
expansions of offshore tax-free policies in Hainan will surely and effectively pull
the sustainable and rapid growth of Hainan Province tourism shopping, and
will also directly or indirectly promote the continuous growth of passenger

throughput in Meilan Airport.
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national and indust

management improvements, and with “debt repayment, capability enhancement,
and position advancement” as the key areas of focus, secured safety operation
“red line awareness” and “bottom-line thinking”, and continued marching
onwards in the construction of “safe airports”. The Group consecutively achieved
its 17th year of safe aviation as planned.

In 2015, the Group continued to comprehensively promote enhancement of
safety and customer service quality with the creation of the SKYTRAX five-star
airport as a turning point, and improvements to the operational safety and
efficiency at Meilan Airport as a starting point. Remarkable achievements have
been made.

In 2015, the Group’s gained substantial success in the area of brand creation:
it continued to hold the title of “The World’s Best Airport” in ASQ under the
category of 5-15 million throughput, and was nominated for “The Best Airport
Finalist in Asia-Pacific” for the first time. The West Gallery successfully gained
SKYTRAX five-star recognition, marking great progress towards the building of
the entire five-star Meilan Airport.

The West Gallery expansion project was officially put into service on
25 October 2015; the West Remote Boarding Apron and the West Gallery were
put into service in synchronization. So far, Meilan Airport has a gross area of
approximately 150,000 square meters and the aprons have been increased to 78.
The construction of the terminal complex project is proceeding as planned and is
expected to be completed at the end of 2016. In addition, the Phase Il expansion
project of Meilan Airport has also broken ground for laying a cornerstone on
18 November 2015, and the preliminary design work is in full swing.
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In 2015, the Group continued deepening its expertise in smart airport
construction. It has successfully covered three areas, being airport safety,
service and operations. Among them, the 119 fire prevention system has
gone online, effectively upgrading Meilan Airport’s precision command and
quick response capabilities; the wireless apron despatch system is officially
online, which will gradually achieve real-time monitoring of every security unit,
effectively consolidating airport apron security resources, increasing production
monitoring capabilities and operations efficiency. Thanks to full implementation
of automated self-check-in, baggage drop, boarding, free Wi-Fi, multifunctional
charging points etc.,, as well as self-service equipment online operations, fully
automated self-service travel process has been realised at Meilan Airport, and
the airport was awarded the “Gold Award” by IATA. A 4G network system,
digital communication system, new VIP room system, and online operation of a
provisional flight system have all further optimized the business process.

OVERVIEW OF AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2015, boosted by the overall rapid growth of the PRC civil aviation industry,
and benefited from certain favourable policies as well as the construction of the
Hainan International Tourism Island and offshore duty free policy, the passenger
throughput of Meilan Airport continued to experience substantial growth, and
recorded a debut of exceeding 16 million of visits, enabling it to continue to be
ranked the 19th among all airports having passenger throughput exceeding 10

million.

Given the steady growth in passenger throughput, the Group had made
dedicated efforts to strengthen its marketing on aviation business. Through
better communication with local government, the Group actively fine-tuned and
adjusted airlines incentives policies to attract and encourage investments and
participations from more airlines. The Group promoted the implementation of the
tax protection policy of aviation fuel and effectively improve the competitiveness
of the existing international routes for Meilan Airport. The Group took the lead
to the establishment of Haikou City Air Travel Association, jointly built a mutual
resources sharing platform with several airlines travelling enterprises to strive
for attracting passengers, launched market development projects on mid-small
airport and basically constructed a “first-tier cities of the transit, second-tier cities
of the fast lane, third and forth-tier cities accessibility” route networks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, Meilan Airport operated a total of 211
originating routes, including 194 domestic routes, 13 international routes and
4 regional routes. It had extended its reach to 95 cities, including 84 domestic
cities, 7 international cities and 4 regional cities; and attracted 46 airlines to
operate at Meilan Airport, including 33 domestic airlines, 9 international airlines
and 4 regional airlines.

Details of the aviation traffic throughput of Meilan Airport in 2015 and
comparative figures of last year are set out below:

HE_ZT-—AF+_A=+—HI ZE#%E
HIBLIBBEMEE - EPBERMAR 9415 -
BRALAR 136 - IR A ARAME - BT IO E - B
H B A T84 - BARR I 78 - Hb RN THAME
HBIRMERREEFHISEE - ERBER33
K BIFROR » HiRA4ZR ©

TR -RFEXRRSMERBREF B RE F—
FHB LB T

2015 2014 Changes
—E-AHF —T_MF #g)

Passenger throughput RERLE
(headcount in ten thousand) (B : BAR) 1,616.70 1,385.39 16.7%
in which: Domestic Hep: QR 1,562.01 1,330.71 17.4%
International and regional B B K2 Hb [ 54.69 54.68 0.0%
Aircraft takeoff and landing (flights)  FR¥E&EFEZER (L : £X) 121,827 105,861 15.1%
in which: Domestic Hrh QA 116,938 100,570 16.3%
International and regional B B8 %t em 4,889 5,291 -7.6%
Cargo throughput (tons) EHTHEHLE (B - M) 246,787.50 217,714.10 13.4%
in which: Domestic Hrh o A 237,466.00 208,350.60 14.0%
International and regional R N b [ 9,321.50 9,363.50 -0.5%

The Group's revenue from aviation business for 2015 was approximately
RMB580,049,375, representing an increase of approximately 17.42% as compared
to that of 2014. A breakdown of the Group’s revenue from aviation business is

AEB-_Z—AFMEEBRANAEARE
580,049,3757C * B —E —NF[FHIL R 4917.42% °
BEAEBRMEEBRAGFBFHINNT

as follows:

Amount Changes over
X 2014
(RMB) BR-ZT—NF
(AEH¥T) =)
Passenger service charges RERBE 229,766,658 20.72%
Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund EMmBERESRERMAM 184,693,275 14.99%

Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff
and landing TR B P N A U B 79,972,831 17.37%
Ground handling service income b ] AR 75 & 85,616,611 14.31%
Total revenue from aviation business LEE % LN 580,049,375 17.42%
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According to the Notice Regarding the Grant of Subsidy of Civil Aviation
Development Fund to Haikou Meilan Airport ( {EAFA T /8 O E@IZ (D A
RIRMEBEREE S MBLABA) ) issued by CAAC on 11 April 2012, the refund
of Civil Airport Construction Fee granted to the Group was correspondingly
superseded by the refund of Civil Airport Development Fund. The refund rate
was determined by CAAC. Owing to the fact that the nature and way of refund
of Civil Aviation Development Fund are consistent with the former Civil Airport
Construction Fee, and the Group has not received any naotification on the changes
of the ratio on the Civil Aviation Development Fund attributable to the Group
in this year, the actual return ratio of the Civil Airport Construction Fee on Civil
Aviation Development Fund to the Group has been 48% since 2008. With the best
estimation of the management, the Group recognised that subsidy income from
Civil Aviation Development Fund is based on the return ratio of 48%.

As the implementation of Interim Measures for the Collection, Use and
Management of the Civil Aviation Development Fund ( { R EE R & & U(FE
FEBEITHE) ) ended on 31 December 2015, the Group actively applied
for the extension of such policy for the purpose of continuing enjoy the refund
policy under the Civil Aviation Development Fund. On 31 December 2015, the
Group received Notice by Ministry of Finance over the Issues regarding the Civil
Aviation Development Fund and the Tourism Development Fund ( (S BUE B R
fERESNIREERESHBMBENBA) ) (Finance and Tax [2015] No. 135
Paper) issued by the Ministry of Finance on 9 December 2015, which stipulates
that collection of Civil Aviation Development Fund and Tourism Development
Fund will continue from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2020, and the refund
policy that the Group enjoys under the Civil Aviation Development Fund remains
unchanged till 31 December 2020.
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at 45.45%. The continuous
the continuous increase in sales from the franchise operation of Meilan Airport

th of non-aviation business was mainly due to

Offshore Duty-Free Shop franchising in Meilan Airport and the substantial
growth of the freight and packaging income. Meanwhile, with the flexible
adjustment of the business model, and actively utilising the area-effectiveness
for commercial use, the Group ensured steady growth in the revenue of its non-
aviation business. In 2015, the Group recorded franchise income accumulated
to RMB256,458,436, representing a significant year-on-year increase of 22.98%,
where freight and packaging income reached RMB104,666,441, representing
a year-on-year remarkable increase of 40.72%; and rental income reached
RMB38,486,680, representing a year-on-year slight increase of 1.76%. In addition,
parking fee income also reached RMB17,023,384, representing a year-on-year
increase of 6.03%. Meanwhile, VIP room income, recorded a continuous drop
owing to the influence of the government policies.
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Amount Changes Over

k-] 2014

(RMB) B-Z—NF

(AEH#T) BE

Franchise income FEETAC SR A 256,458,436 22.98%
Freight and packaging income BERBERA 104,666,441 40.72%
Rental income e A 38,486,680 1.76%
VIP room income EEEWA 17,788,387 -10.36%
Parking fee income ZEIBRA 17,023,384 6.03%
Other income HelA 48,958,182 55.97%
Total revenue from non-aviation business FE i 22 FEFE AU A 483,381,510 24.58%
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Franchise Income

In 2015, the franchise income of the Group aggregated to RMB256,458,436,
representing a year-on-year growth of 22.98%, which was mainly attributable
to factors such as continuous expansion of the business area of Meilan Airport
Offshore Duty-Free Shop, diversified duty-free commodities and innovative
promotion means, resulting in the substantial growth in sales in offshore duty-
free shop. In 2015, revenue from offshore duty-free franchise of the Group
amounted to RMB171,797,204, representing a year-on-year growth of 25.35%.

Freight and Packaging Income

In 2015, the Group maintained significant growth in freight income through
various measures including active market exploration and freight service
contracting with Hainan Airlines Company Limited. Throughout the year of 2015,
the accumulated total freight and packaging income of the Group amounted
to RMB104,666,441, representing a year-on-year substantial growth of 40.72%.

Rental Income

In 2015, owing to the impact over Phase | terminal building reconstruction project,
the rental income of the Group amounted to RMB38,486,680, representing a slight
increase of 1.76% compared to last year. However, by utilizing space resources,
together with the flexible adjustment of the business model, enhancement of the
area-effectiveness for commercial use, thus the Company is able to guarantee a

continuous growth of rental income.

Parking Fee Income

In 2015, the parking fee income of the Group amounted to RMB17,023,384,
representing a year-on-year growth of 6.03%, which was mainly due to the
fact that the Group strengthened the management of the parking lot and its
surrounding areas to fully utilise the existing parking resources, and as such, it
also created growth in parking fee income.
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KEEPING A GRIP ON SAFETY OPERATIONS

The Group regards safety operation as a “lifeline” for its entire existence and
development. In 2015, in response to the severe ongoing security situation, the
Group actively upgraded their own safety management by strengthening the
following aspects of its work:

Improved safety accountability mechanisms. In 2015, guided by the national
Production Safety Law ( {%&Z & E)%) ), the Group further revised and improved
the Meilan Airport Safety Operations Accountability System ( (GERS#E 5% 2 A
FEHIE) ), which clarified and defined the accountabilities of the legal entity,
people in charge, direct accountability and supervisory accountability, and breaks
down the accountability for safe work step-by-step to form a complete safety
operation accountability system, ensuring safety operations are “participated in
by all, with all being held accountable”.

Enhanced emergency rescue capability. In 2015, the Group continued to establish
and improve the emergency management system under the guiding principles
of “strengthening existing foundations, targeting weaknesses and practice
with drills”, actively drawing together stationed units for multiple emergency
rescue drills to raise the emergency rescue event handling capabilities of all the

employees.

Used the civil aviation industry safety audits as a catalyst to drive for the
improvement of internal security controls. In 2015, CAAC Central and Southern
Regional Administration carried out, over the last decade, its first audit of the
Group's aviation security. In order to actively explore new security management
models and operating mechanism, the Group took the opportunity presented
by this aviation security audit and the entry point brought by CAAC's key audit
point to examine and rectify the existing security systems, operations processes
and standardization of ledgers; it passed this “medical examination” with flying
colours, while further raising the level of our internal security controls.

Continued to promote the construction of a safe airport. In 2015, the Group
carried out a series of security checks on air security, fire safety and public order,
and ordered rectifications to be made on 45 issues, with a 95% approval rate as
of the end of 2015; Aside from this, by fitting waveform guardrails, increasing the
number of iron speed bumps, replacing isolation strips and fitting barrier gates
at the entrances and exits of functional areas, the Group has actively cooperated
with law enforcement departments such as the Meilan Airport Branch Security
Bureau, Haikou Municipal Bureau of City Administration and Law Enforcement
etc. on “Road traffic transportation and environmental order” special projects,
the road and traffic environments have noticeably improved.
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In 2015, with an outstanding performance in the national “Safety Operations
Month”, the Group was granted the title of national “Advanced Safety Production
Unit and Unit with Outstanding Organization” following on from its success in
2014, being the only enterprise in Hainan Province to receive that honour that
year. Meanwhile, it gained outstanding achievement in the air security audit
carried out by CAAC Central and Southern Regional Administration. The Group's
safety management work has received recognition both nationally and industry

wide.

RAISING THE QUALITY OF SERVICE FROM THE INSIDE
ouT

In 2015, the Group persevered with the “creation of SKYTRAX five stars” as its
focus, continuing the drive for refined management and self-improvement and
external collaboration, and endeavouring to further raise its quality of service.

The Meilan Airport Frontline Service Personnel Professional Image Promotion
Programme ( { XS —RIRBABBELFEREETER) ), by organising
activities like professional image training, as well as broadcasting professional
image promotion videos, having frontline desk personnel photo shoots, and
selecting service ambassadors etc,, strived to enhance the image of the entire
frontline service workforce.

The carrying out of “service with a smile, creating a brand” specialist activities,
including specialist image-creation training activities, such as “service with a
smile” and “deportment” classes aim to enhance service professionals’ self-
presentation and by deploying “service with a smile” inspectors, the smiling
behaviour of frontline service personnel has greatly improved and Meilan

Airport’s customer satisfaction rating was further raised.

Attention was paid to the details of service and on-site management and various
types of specialist services were used to enhance its soft power. The innovative
“Spring Festival Extravaganza” performance was launched, creating a festival
atmosphere for waiting passengers during the festival period; an increase in the
number of self-service vending machines and Hui Drinks beverage machines,
city-level prices throughout the airport all made for a convenient shopping
experience that increased customer satisfaction ratings; introduction of a one-
stop “airport cloud APP” wireless mobile client to provide airport services such as
check in and flight information, food and beverage discounts, VIP services etc,
helped to create an all new airport 020 experience for passengers.
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The resources of external professional agencies were drawn on to improve service
quality, and a trusted third-party was introduced with the authority to carry out
testing and appraisals of service quality, with 12 monthly test periods throughout
the year and 4 quarterly visits, and through professional and scientific analysis,
service weaknesses can be identified, and the level of customer service enhanced
across the board.

In 2015, to implement sustainable green, low-carbon strategy, the Group
launched “green airport” project in full swing. All the details about the Group’s
2015 environmental protection measures and effects are set out on page 48 to
page 52.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
ASSET ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2015, the total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB6,962,242,906, representing an increase of 21.68% over last year. Among
which, current assets amounted to RMB1,741,981,920, representing 25.02% of the
total assets, non-current assets amounted to approximately RMB5,220,260,986,
representing approximately 74.98% of the total assets.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure the ability
of ongoing operations and maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support
its business and maximize shareholders’ interests. The Group continued to
emphasize the appropriate mix of equity and debt to ensure an efficient capital
structure to reduce capital cost. As at 31 December 2015, the debts of the Group
were mainly bank loans, corporate bonds and long-term payables (hereinafter
the “total borrowings”), amounting to approximately RMB3,251,497,340, cash
and cash equivalents was approximately RMB1,023,267,032. The gearing ratio of
the Group was 100.00% as at 31 December 2015 (31 December 2014: 88.21%)
(total borrowings/total equity).

The Group maintained a balanced portfolio of loans at fixed interest rates and
variable rates to manage interest expenses. As at 31 December 2015, 58.26%
of the Group's total borrowings were subject to fixed interest rates, while the
remaining 41.74% were subject to floating interest rates.

The Group aimed to keep the balance between the continuity and flexibility of
funds by capitalizing on its total borrowings. As at 31 December 2015, 60.38%
of the Group's bank loans will become due within one year, and the corporate
bonds will become due in 2019.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi and USS$, among which borrowings in US$ represented approximately
41.74% of the total borrowings, while cash and cash equivalents mainly
denominated in Renminbi and US$, among which USS represented approximately
0.24% of the total amount.

COSTS ANALYSIS

The operation cost and administrative expenses of the Group were
RMB463,836,633 in 2015, representing an increase of RMB82,933,156 or 21.79%
as compared to that of 2014, mainly attributed to:

(1) staff cost increased by RMB39,841,426 due to the raised remuneration level
and normal increased headcount of the Group in the year;

(2)  the costs of the contract labour increased by RMB9,421,424 due to the raised
remuneration level and increased contract labour of the Group in the year;
and

(3) the depreciation charge of the year increased by RMB3,789,565 of the Group,
which was mainly due to the commencement of operation of the West
Gallary and the auxiliary facilities.

In 2015, the finance expenses of the Group decreased by RMB8,919,627 from last
year to RMB73,935,712. The decrease was mainly due to more interest expenses
have been capitalised by the Group according to the construction progress of
the on-going projects in the year.

CASH FLOW

In 2015, the Group's net cash inflow from operating activities was RMB434,340,572,
representing an increase of 3.45% over last year. The increase was mainly due to
the increase in operating income.

In 2015, the Group’s net cash outflow from investing activities was
RMB1,587,513,964, which was mainly attributable to payments for the West
Gallery expansion construction, Phase Il terminal expansion construction and
terminal complex project.

In 2015, the Group's net cash inflow from financing activities was RMB292,025,502,

which was mainly attributable to the borrowings from CITIC Trust Co., Ltd.,
repayment of borrowings, and payment of interests on borrowings and dividends.
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secured by 24.5% equity
Company Limited ("HNA Airport Holdings’) held by the Group.
December 2015, the outstanding balance of the borrowing was US$8,993,475

(equivalent to RMB58,400,030).

The Group's long-term borrowing of US$250,000,000 from Taiwan syndication
was secured by the 51% equity interest in Hainan Meilan International Airport
Cargo Co,, Ltd. held by the Group and certain land use rights of the Group with
book value amounting to RMB8,469,301. As at 31 December 2015, outstanding
balance of the borrowing was US$200,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,298,720,000).
Please refer to the Company’s announcement published on 4 December 2013
for further details of the borrowings.

Certain land use rights of the West Gallery and the international terminal
and part of the ground-level buildings have been pledged to secure a long-
term borrowing granted to the Group and the Parent Company (being the
joint borrowers) by China Development Bank. As at 31 December 2015, the
outstanding balance of the borrowing was RMB560,000,000.

On 2 July 2015, the Company borrowed loans from CITIC Trust Co., Ltd., which
amounted to RMB1,100,000,000 and is secured by pledge of the Company’s right
of receipt of aviation services fee for the period from 1 May 2015 to 30 April 2020.
As at 31 December 2015, the loan balance amounted to RMB1,030,000,000 (31
December 2014: nil).

ACCOUNT RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2015, the accounts receivables and other receivables of the
Group amounted to RMB327,150,237, representing an increase of 161.17% as
compared with the end of the previous year.

Details of the accounts receivables and other receivables of the Group are set
out in Note 4(2) and Note 4(4) to the financial statements. Details of the accounts
receivables and the policy for impairment of accounts receivables are set out in
Note 2(10) to the financial statements.
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, current assets of the Group were RMB1,741,981,920, total
assets were RMB6,962,242,906, current liabilities were RMB1,899,217,088, total
liabilities were RMB3,710,852,261, and net current liabilities were RMB157,235,168.
The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) of the Group was 53.30%,
representing an increase of 3.83% over last year, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in borrowings. The Group's bank borrowings of US$200,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,298,720,000) is due for repayment by installments in June
2016 and December 2016 and thus classified as current liabilities, which led to
the Group to record a net current liabilities this year. The Group has planned
refinancing arrangement for settlement of the borrowings that are due.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The businesses of the Group are principally conducted in Renminbi, except
certain aviation revenue, purchase of equipment and consulting service fee
which are denominated in US$ or HKS. According to the overall arrangement
in relation to the acquisition of 24.5% equity interests in HNA Airport Holdings,
the Group has raised a US$S denominated borrowing from China Development
Bank to finance the said acquisition and the balance of the borrowing amounted
to US$8,993,475 (equivalent to RMB58,400,030) as at 31 December 2015; the
Group has also raised a US$ denominated borrowing from Taiwan syndication
to finance the construction of the terminal complex project of Meilan Airport. As
at 31 December 2015, the borrowing amounted to US$200,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,298,720,000). The principals and interests of the aforementioned two
borrowings should be settled in USS. Thus, the exchange fluctuation of Renminbi
against USS will affect the financial performance of the Group. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group is obliged to repay the principal and interests of the bank borrowings
of US$8,993,475 (equivalent to RMB58,400,030) and US$200,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,298,720,000) granted by China Development Bank and Taiwan syndication
respectively. Any changes in Libor (London Inter- Bank Offer Rate) and interest
rate adjustment by the People’s Bank of China will affect the interest expenses

and results of the Group.

40

EERER
R-T—RAF+-_A=+—8 AEEHNRDHE
EBARY1741,9819207T  BERLEAARKE
6,962,242,9067T ' BB E A AR1,899,217,088
ﬁ*%f@ﬁ#AE%37wwmﬂﬁ’$ﬁE
BEAARY157235168TC - NEBEEAE
(BEBE EEHLTE) B5330% ?&Lii%
383% ' EZFEARBRIEMN : ANFE LR FR
HEENFZREAR AL E—£R%/3200,000,000
ELArA ARE,298,720,0007T) B & B & F B R
TERNFERNART - AoHtRIBEERMKE
PEERBAEE - AEBE R EEZE RS
MR E R R AL A B BB HER o

41 BE = B

BRAETMEBA  BEXRERBARBEANUE
TTHRABTTEHEINN  NREBNEBEZUARKES)
AR o IRIBFUIE B 51 AR 24 50 M) HE 2 O R B2
T AEERERARRITERS —FEUETA
ERNER Dxﬁtu&zﬁ%%ﬁé@ RZ-ZZT—A
FTZA=+T—H - ZEKRTER8993475%TT
(TEA/\E%MOOO%E) KEIJMEE\/%%E
E&E %M%mﬂémfilhm RZT—
F+ZHA=+—H" fﬁ*hﬁ%%éiﬁzooooooooi
T (e AR 298/720,00071:) CABEBKS
MBI ABERREES - LAMEERN RS
NFBRAETES - At - AR HZTAE
AEBEerErEENMBERER - AEELK
FI AR B G K9 LAET R MBI H R o

= = B
REBEFHRIFAERERMERITEARUE
T E R ER 1T 15 FBREES,093,4755 70 (TA AR
#£58,400,0307T) Rt & & R E B AR AE T
B R ER 1715 X £2%8200,000,000F 7T (& AREE
1,298,720,0007T) AR BRI EF - #HEALIbor (f
R ZEFBFER) (ZE) P B AREITH R
B BEAEENEXEMEREETE -



bank loans, cor-porate bo

roup’s operations. Besides, the Group
had other financial instruments in relation to daily operations, such as receivables

(excluding prepayments) and payables (excluding statutory liabilities).

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2015, neither the Group nor the Company had any significant
contingent liability.

FUTURE MATERIAL INVESTMENT AND
EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUND

On 21 August 2015, the Company and the Parent Company entered into an
investment and construction agreement (the “Investment and Construction
Agreement’), pursuant to which, the Company agreed to provide funds,
amounting to approximately RMB7.158 billion, to the airport project construction
of the Phase Il expansion project of Meilan Airport (“Construction Project’).
The source of fund on the Construction Project are expected to be as follows:

(1)  The Company has completed the asset-backed securitization plan on 2
July 2015, of which approximately RMB0.95 billion will be utilized in the
construction of the Construction Project;

(2)  The China Development Bank, Hainan Branch issued a letter of intention in
relation to the long-term project loan of the Construction Project amounting
to approximately RMB8 billion. It is expected that the Company may obtain
a long-term project loan credit amounting to approximately RMB4.16 billion,
which will be utilized in the construction of the Construction Project;

(3) The Company plans to issue the private placement of Renminbi corporate
bonds with maximum principal amount of RMB3 billion, a part of the
Renminbi Corporate Bonds will be utilized in the construction of the
Construction Project; and

(4)  The Company will use part of its working capital generated from its
operation activities to support the construction of the Construction Project.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, neither the Group nor the Company had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the shares of the Company.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS ON THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirements under Rules 13.18 and 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of the Company’s facility
agreement dated 4 December 2013, which contains specific performance
obligations of the Company’s Parent Company.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 4 December 2013, the
Company has signed a three-year loan agreement with an aggregate amount of
US$250,000,000 (the “Facility Agreement”), for the main purpose of meeting
the needs of terminal complex project construction and the Company’s daily
operation. The Facility Agreement contains, among others, specific performance
obligations on the Company's Parent Company that:

(@) the Parent Company shall not cease, or threaten to cease, to carry on
business except as a result of any disposal allowed under the Facility
Agreement; and

(b) the Parent Company shall beneficially own at least 40% of the issued share
capital of the Company.

Non-compliance of the aforesaid specific performance obligations will constitute
an event of default under the Facility Agreement. Upon the occurrence of such
an event of default which is continuing, the facility agent as defined therein may,
and must if so instructed by the majority lenders as defined therein, by notice
to the Company:

(@) cancel all or part of the total commitments, being US$250,000,000; and/or

(b) declare that all or part of the loan facility, together with accrued interest,
and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the finance documents
defined therein be immediately due and payable and/or be payable on
demand by the facility agent acting on the instructions of the majority
lenders.

For details of the Facility Agreement, please refer to the Company’s announcement
published on 4 December 2013.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises eleven Directors. During the period from 1 January 2015 to
1 December 2015, changes in the directorship of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Zhang Hao had taken over the role of executive director of Mr. Liang Jun from
16 February 2015, with a term of 3 years. His appointment was approved and
ratified at an extraordinary general meeting held on 16 February 2015.

Mr. He Linji had taken over the role of independent non-executive director of
Mr. Xu Bailing from 18 May 2015, with a term of 3 years. His appointment was
approved and ratified at an annual general meeting held on 18 May 2015.

Mr. Gao Jian had taken over the role of executive director of Mr. Zhang Hao from
3 July 2015, with a term of 3 years. His appointment was approved and ratified
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 July 2015.

Mr. Hu Wentai was re-appointed as non-executive director from 3 July 2015,
with a term of 3 years. His re-appointment was approved and ratified at an
extraordinary general meeting held on 3 July 2015.

EMPLOYMENT, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a total of 733 employees, representing
an increase of 5 employees over the last year, which is within the scope of
normal employment. Employees are remunerated based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practices. The Group will review the
remuneration policy and related packages on a regular basis. Performance-based
bonuses and commissions may be awarded to employees. The Group provided
adequate trainings based on the requirement of its employees, in order to
upgrade the talent of its staffs. A total of 197 courses under the training scheme
were completed, and 5,828 staff participated in such courses.

RETIREMENT PENSION

The Company and its subsidiaries shall participate in the retirement scheme
operated by the relevant local governmental institutions. The PRC government
shall be responsible for the pension of the retired employees. The Group has
to make a contribution at a rate of 20% of the salary of the employees with
permanent residence in the PRC. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the retirement pension scheme. For
the year ended 31 December 2015, the pension contribution of the Group was
approximately RMB9,497,804 (2014: RMB8,073,806).
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The social responsibility and environmental report was prepared to present the
Company's performance in corporate social responsibility and environmental
protection for the year ended 31 December 2015. This report takes HNA
Infrastructure Company Limited as the main body and covers all the subsidiaries
of the Company.

Not only do we care about financial results, but also the way to build business.

Not only do we care about the shareholders’ return, but also the contribution
to the society.

Not only do we care about the well-being of our staff, but also the ecological

reserve to the environment.

THE BEAUTY OF MEILAN

Red - the modest heart, be benevolent, Meilan community services in action
Green - the energy conservation, save the blue sky, innovation for green in action

Yellow — the fruitfulness, initial determination in mind, strive for excellence in

action

Blue - the Meilan root, breed the gifted, staffs’ care spread in action.
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MY MEILAN - MY HOME - OUR PEOPLE

During the past 17 years, Meilan Airport has been operating safely and social
responsibility has always been the core value of staffs, which pass the virtuous
concept from one generation to the next, and act for the benefit of society self-

consciously.
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Zeng Xiankun  Transport Service Department
B ERRGE

From 4 December 2015 to 9 January 2016, Mr. Zeng Xiankun, a member of the
Transport Service Department of Meilan Airport, responded to the nation’s call
and enrolled into the support unit for flights test of the newly built Nansha
Yongshu Jiao Airport on behalf of his organization. During the one-month
support, Zeng Xiankun upheld political responsibility and fully committed to
the team, overcoming the extreme conditions on the island, including high
temperature, high humidity as well as shortage of water and electricity. Stayed
vigilant and cooperated with other members of the support unit and the military
division stationed on the island, Zeng Xiankun accomplished missions with
his technical expertise and a wealth of experience finally, making a positive

contribution to the success of the flights test.
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Security Officer  Peng Jigian

oA B ey
THE EiEw

Airport Operations Commander  Ye Feili
HWITEITIEEE EFH

Substation Electrician ~ Wu Tingbiao
PUETT REE
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Stepping out of the ivory tower, | have become a security officer of Meilan Airport, trying to
make differences out of my ordinary position. We would miss our homes, but we even want
more people to get home safely. We would feel tired, but we understand the responsibilities
we shoulder. Being a security officer of Meilan Airport, | would stand with every one of us, to
safeguard the blue sky of our motherland wholeheartedly.

MIMIE D RIFIENTR - KA TXEEE -2 EBNLTRE - R B FLAME
7 ZEEFAANTE - RATRIEEK > MRBREEZ AFREK  HAT
ETER  MERMECEENEME HEXMESLRE  BEETTES
LA —E - FRROBTEMEEBNOAL  THEBRFENKRE -

The days and nights with the “Meilan Family”, was a lesson of persistence, a lifetime fortune,
and even a fate. Acting as an airport operations commander, our first and foremost duty is
to offer assistance and facilitate coordination with our earnest heart to secure the safety of
every flight, being responsible for ourselves, our Company and every individual.
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A substation electrician needs to be accountable and responsible; it is not just an empty talk,
we need to work it out in the workplace. Safety is the first thing which we are concerned,
no matter when we take up our duty, we carry out patrol, or keep the power transmission
under our surveillance. The work is hard, yet we stay pragmatic and enthusiastic, to excel in

our roles.
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THE MODEST HEART, BE BENEVOLENT,
MEILAN COMMUNITY SERVICES IN ACTION

Adhering to the principle of “Take from society, Give back to society”, the Group
incorporates social responsibility into daily operations and takes the lead to
organize or participates in various social welfare activities, striving to maximize
the Group's resources to construct a harmonious society.

In the year of 2015, Meilan Airport collaborated with different organizations
to host a series of campaigns, including blood donation, voluntary services,
charity shows, sports activities, charitable donations, etc., all of which received
tremendous support from the Group management and the staff.
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Number of Number of

campaign participant

Category W] SEENRE SHEAH
Blood donation fEERim 13 2,850
Voluntary service S FE AR & 18 660
Charity show DB 20 400
Sports activities BEEE 15 1,500
Charitable donation BEBN RMB650,000 in aggregate helped more than 400 people

ZitEEesB T AR - HBN4008: AKX

The Group insists on organizing blood donation campaigns and was awarded
“The Advanced Unit of Hainan Province in Blood Donation” for 13 consecutive
years. Our volunteer teams initiated “Spread Love, Joy Flows”, “Our Children’s
Day with Stay-at-home Kids” and “Healthcare Promotion in The Countryside”
activities with Haikou Social Welfare Institution, “Clean Our Home" with the
Meilan community and “Civilized Traffic” with Traffic Police of Haikou City, making
contribution to the society. Moreover, the Group recruits talents and forms an
arts team performing at the airport lounge and exhibiting the culture of Hainan
ethnic minorities to tourists. Sports activities take place in various formats such
as basketball, football and amusing athletic events, allowing staff to do more
physical exercise and enhance bonds in between. Last but not least, employees
would organize fundraising campaigns voluntarily to help families in poverty or

ailing co-workers, exemplifying the virtue of “Meilan Family".
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THE ENERGY CONSERVATION, SAVE THE
BLUE SKY, INNOVATION FOR GREEN IN
ACTION

Despite the fact that the aviation industry is developing under the framework
of rapid economic globalization and labeled as “high consumption of fossil

nou

fuels”, "high emission of air pollutants” and “high consumption of FMCG”, Meilan
Airport strives to reduce its impact on the environment through research and

development, scientific innovations as well as technological applications.

Meanwhile, Meilan Airport actively responded to the development principle
“Innovation, Coordination, Green, Openness and Sharing” proposed by the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China, and the slogan of “Green
City, Eco Home" brought up by Haikou government. Meilan Airport insists on
the importance of environmental protection and strikes a balance between
development and environmental protection, closely adhering to the ecological
conservation redline. The airport's ratio of green cover in the greenery area has
achieved 99.6%, and it enjoys the reputation of “Garden Airport” because of its
evergreen vegetations and aroma of flowers.

MEASURES FOR ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSION
REDUCTION OF MEILAN AIRPORT:

I. Fully utilize scientific potentials, strengthening innovation and
reducing energy consumption by introducing energy conservation
technology through discussions and comprehensively utilizing
energy saving products

(1) Introduction of BKS for central air conditioning management expert system.
Applying intelligent management to central air conditioning equipment, not
only can it improve the operational procedure, but also thoroughly remedies
the waste phenomenon which exists in the design. With BKS, it improves the
energy efficiency of central air conditioning system thus has greatly decreased
energy consumption. Upon the installation of the system, 30% of the energy
consumption is reduced, with 1,000,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved

annually.

(2) Introduction of sophisticated power saving power devices for lighting fixtures.
As at 31 December 2015, the equipment, facilities by which the electricity
consumption accounted for 55.5% in total, such as lighting fixtures for terminal,
street light and billboards, have now been covered under the scope of energy
saving in Meilan Airport, by which the measured energy saving rate reaches 20%,
with 400,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved annually.
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(3) Implementation of innovation of illumination sources in terminal area. Green
energy saving lighting fixtures are greatly promoted and applied, ensuring
illumination can be reached and reducing energy consumption, with 100,000
KWH of electricity consumption is saved annually.

(4) Reducing consumption of fossil energy by utilizing clean energy. Solar energy
lighting sources have been applied in street lights in VIP room'’s car park and
sightseeing lights in Meilan Airport. In the future, the coverage rate of solar lights
will be expanded further.

Il. Active promotion on the establishment of recycled water system

In order to reduce consumption of running water and to realize recycling of
water resources, the Group actively promotes the establishment of recycled
water utilizing system, builds water storage tanks, recycled water piping, recycled
water lift station by utilizing environmental-friendly equipment and facilities
available for Meilan Airport as such, where the first grade national standard of
sewage discharge is used in irrigation for green, water supply for landscaping,
and cleaning and washing, etc., by which, more than 300,000 tons of water is
saved annually.

Ill. Active promotion on project regarding the replacement of APU
with jet bridge on-board equipment

Jet bridge on-board equipment includes 400HZ power unit and ground air
conditioner for aircrafts, supplying power, air conditioning and air supply for
aircraft parking at bridge to replace APU (Auxiliary Power Unit) of aircraft. When
aircraft parks at bridge, aircraft stops using APU of aircraft, jet bridge on-board
equipment is used instead, as it can save expenses of using APU and reduce
exhaust emission and noise pollution. With the project being into use, more
than 410 tons of fuel is saved, nearly 105 tons of pollutant is reduced as per the

number of aircraft takeoffs or landing of Meilan Airport in 2015.

IV. Waste disposal through classification

Hazardous waste of Meilan Airport (including fuel, batteries, international waste
and medical waste) is disposed of by professional waste disposing company,
Hainan Yifengda Medical and Health Supplies Co., Ltd. (H7Fd i "2 53 B i AE
AR 2], an authorized unit by Meilan Airport; construction waste is levelled
and landfilled onsite according to topographic and geomorphic conditions
and household waste is uniformly disposed of as municipal waste by sanitation
department of Haikou city.
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V. Continuous initiative of “electricity changed from oil” for vehicles
for civil aviation of Meilan Airport

In 2015, it was an important period for enhancement of the “electricity conversion

|/«

from oil” initiative of electricity converted from oil for civil aviation vehicles
of Meilan Airport. Meilan Airport sought effective solutions through active
investigation and cooperation, strengthening the introduction of pure electric
driven or new energy vehicles and increasing frequency of use of this type of
vehicles. A total of 58 clean energy vehicles, including 40 pure electric-driven
shuttle buses, 10 units of hand-propelled passage stairs and 7 pure electric
driven mini-buses, were introduced to replace vehicles with heavy oil use so that
to reduce energy consumption including fuel consumption. It is expected that

247,080 liters of fuel will be saved annually.

At present, Meilan Airport has 513 vehicles of all kinds for various operation
and security purposes, among which, there are 58 pure electric driven vehicles,
accounting for 11.31% of the total vehicles. In the future, Meilan Airport will
further expand the ratio of clean energy vehicle to gradually realize the total
replacement for vehicles of “electricity conversion from oil” program can be

applied to.

The Group complies with applicable environmental rules and regulations during
the ordinary business operation and is fully aware that the task of environmental
protection is endless. In the future, the Group will continue to engage in scientific
research and invest more on environmental protection to consolidate the “Green

Garden Airport” brand of Meilan Airport, and to promote the brand further.
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Introduction of BKS expert system for central air conditioning
system

SI#EBKSH RZEFAERER RS

Introduction of sophisticated power saving power device for
lighting fixtures

SIERFAE IREARBENER

Promotion and application of green energy saving lighting
fixtures

HEERGEHEER

Reflective signal bar is promoted in straight taxiways

FERTTREGBREEEAR R

Implementation of post flight airport lighting aids to navigation
inspection maintenance energy saving & control

B MR G L AR B BT REEHIIR B

Promotion of lighting management mode for flight intervals

TR RELBTERRR

Timely opening and closing windows of terminal, making use of
Hainan tropical monsoons

NER - BIE@EPIE - MRERRGEERREE RER

Jet bridge with French window, ventilation shutters and shutters
for ventilation and arc-shaped ceiling for heat insulation
BERELAIRE - BEEEMRERNEIR

Keeping passage to mezzanine to utilize natural wind for heat
dissipation

Wi IR R BERERE - A B REMRR

Installation of solar garden light

7R KIS REEME

Promotion of establishment of recycled water utilizing system,
reused waste water

HEPKERRGER - BRSKEMNA

Introduction of automatic irrigation technology

EIN=EILN: 2530

1,000,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved
annually

BEAHERATI0EE

400,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved
annually

BEAHEAT408E

100,000 KWH or more of electricity consumption is
saved annually

BEAHHAEI08EN

60,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved
annually, reducing approximately RMB42,000 of
maintenance fee

BFEAHERAEEE  ROERKADARE42ET
30,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved
annually

BFASMHNAEIRE

10,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved
annually

BFAHHAEIEE

1,500,000 KWH of electricity consumption is saved
annually

BEAHOAEIS08E

Nearly RMB200,000 of expense for electricity is
saved annually

BFAHNENFI20BARE

Nearly RMB300,000 of expense for electricity is
saved annually

BEUHHNENMI0EARYE

Nearly RMB30,000 of expense for electricity is saved
annually

BFEAIEHNENFAI3BARE

Nearly 300,000 tons of water used for irrigation is
saved annually

B R EIAY T 308 MEE R A 7K

Approximately 80,000 tons of water used is saved
annually
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THE FRUITFULNESS, INITIAL
DETERMINATION IN MIND, STRIVE FOR
EXCELLENCE IN ACTION

From its initial operation, Meilan Airport has been committed to the vision

of "being conducive to economic efficiency and beneficial to environmental

effectiveness’, and abided by a “resource-conserving” and “environment-friendly”

development trajectory. With more than a decade of accumulation, our efforts

of energy conservation and emission reduction have been acknowledged and

gained praise from all walks of life.

BREZR > HASAD
FEAREETE

XMES R ERYN  —EREAE [BIREHE
M AaRNRERN]NES - EE[EIRESD
#B ] R [BRIFRAFE | BRI - + 2508
2 ERAKENRERERMERSFTEES
BREEZ AR ALY o

No. Awards and Honours Issuing Authority

Fr 55 PR RIS

1 National Verdurization Model Unit Awarded by China Green  China Green Committee
Committee in 2004
2004 F ERBISH 2 BRI ER T 2B REER PEZICEES

2 International Sanitary Airport Awarded by World Health ~ World Health Organization
Organization in 2005
2005 9F SR T& t FET AR AR A B PR AT AR 5 R BT

3 Top Ten Meritorious Enterprise for Energy Conservation and  Hainan Provincial Government
Emission Reduction Awarded by Hainan Provincial Government in
2009
2009FF IR TiB AR ERRL R T ADNBh (B 2% B BUT

4 Year 2010-2011 Energy Saving Advanced Unit (Enterprise) of  Hainan Water Supply Bureau
Haikou City Awarded by Hainan Water Supply Department
OT2010-20115F [ EiRe AL o BB L A KBE

5 Year 2011-2012 Water Saving Advanced Unit (Enterprise) of Haikou  Hainan Water Supply Bureau
City Awarded by Hainan Water Supply Department
BOT2011-201 25 FEIK B L EBEAT ((R2E) ETEER WY

6 Core Capacity of Port Awarded by World Health Organization in  World Health Organization
2012
012F 8 AEEMIS B RFAEAM O EROENESZOE HREEAS

7 National Advanced Port in Operational Management Awarded by  National Port Administration Office
National Port Administration Office in 2012
012FWAHEREBRIETERLEONR BRROFEBRRAE

8 Annual Green & Low Carbon Airport for Social Responsibility — China Airport Development Conference
Awarded by China Airport Development Conference in 2014
014FKEFEZEERBRBISH ST IER PERSERAS

9 Trial Unit for Building of Low Carbon Community Awarded by  Hainan Province Development and Reform

Hainan Province Development and Reform Commission in 2015

2015 FE T B A Rt R 2R AR B

Commission

BEEERMNERES
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THE MEILAN ROOT, BREED THE GIFTED,
STAFFS’ CARE SPREAD IN ACTION

Understanding the connotation of “One knife cuts both the bread and finger”,
the Group regards every Meilan staff as the contributor to its great development
and expansion. To enhance the working environment and uplift the living quality
of employees, the Group has established an employee caring centre to address
their needs and organize comprehensive and strategic staff caring activities to
elevate their job satisfaction, enrich their leisure life, and resolve their problems.

Throughout the year of 2015, the Group organized 43 staff caring activities
and 15 social welfare campaigns. The sports tournaments strengthened
employees’ physical states and increased team spirit; the health education
campaigns enhanced their consciousness of health protection; the corporate
culture promotions strengthened their sense of recognition; the environmental
protection campaigns facilitated energy saving. A variety of campaigns not
only enriches the leisure life of the employees, but also facilitates mutual
understanding and increases Group cohesiveness.

Moreover, in the virtue of the Chinese traditional merit of helping the needy, the
Group established “Meilan Airport Care Fund” on 4 March 2016, offering financial
support from RMB10,000 to RMB40,000 to employees and their immediate family
members to relieve their financial burden arising from serious illnesses, accidents
and financial losses due to inevitable causes.

Meanwhile, owing to the irregular nature of airport work, the majority of the
employees are not able to meet up with their family during festivals. The
management of the Group insisted on visiting every employee at work and
retired colleague as well as sending them greetings on those occasions. The
management also listened to employees’ voices through regular meetings and
would lend a helping hand to those who have difficulties in registering resident
permits and obstacles in children’s education, etc.

In 2015, the Group organized employee health checks for 3 times, ensuring every
individual would be able to receive a professional physical examination at the
registered clinic for at least 1 time per annum. To further enhance employees’
knowledge in health care and protection, the Group’s aid centre distributed 48
pieces of tips on health care and protection, as well as 12 monthly healthy tips.
As Hainan Province lies on the tropics, the mean annual temperature is relatively
high which favors breeding of pests and insects, as well as rodents and disease.
In order to provide a safe, clean and harmless workplace for employees and get
rid of those undesirable organisms, the Group organized cleaning activity on a
monthly basis.

WEBA BOHEAE
ETREZETH
KREEBFEAKESHA » MeEBA | F—uU=xE
HABEAEBSUERIHRKNERE - BYE
RAZEHSETINIHERENEFTEE @ A&

ERNKZETHEZY  UAEIRFKREMR %
R BEH BEEEWHREIMEI(F  BE
REEITEREE SE8TXHRLEE  UE

FRRETHERNE -

—E-RFEF ASEHBAHZEETIHEE
SEBAIN (LB RIRIEEISK o Ep - EBHIES
chfEE TRERR - WBPORE N - BEA AR
BIERWAEH  DEXEEEMRE THE
LEENPEERRAK  RRATEHERES
TIRIREEEES - FRAZBENETHEESEL
EETESREFENRE bS8 TEK—K
B mAIER T E L BN TRMERE - 1278
TRBAERLT] o

o - BREDBEGRERKZKERE - BIA RS
NEREEZ  AEBEER_Z—"F=AWABK
VI EFBREELESE ] AESSBBBER
FEERER  BIMSTUEHRESHREMHERKE
LEBERSENETAIMANERASGRENES
AEBEAMEIREFEREBES T AR®100007T
F40000L N EEE - NEBE T EMRARRE
ERRE -

BRI - BEREIS TIENSRIE - RZET
ELEMBHARABRE  AKEREH-FO
—HNBRHSEHARAE B EAERM MR
RET - X EEARREOE - WERBBE T
BREUATHRETIOE  REBTERMAE -
MBRETREPH  FREZHSTHE  ~5E
TEIHHRLET  FHRBME TITERRE
ZEHTHERE -

“E-REF AKREHAOBREBE T BM3
R ERBUETIBFELEXEXRE2HRE)
KRBl RRESEIKRRAZLEALES
ARG B 2ol R 0 2 B K48 R R R B AR
MR AERESRE - RS ERTIT
B FHREERS IFERRESLELEBES
RTIERZE BF  BENBTITHERE K
SEFAEAB KOE]FZ -

53



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Social, Responeibiliities and Environmental Report 3+ € £ 2 BE AR &

A variety of staff caring activities including “Employee Birthday Party”, “Retired
Employee Picnic on Double Ninth Festival”, “Carefree Outing”, “International
Women's Day Campaign for Female Employees”, “Mid-autumn Mooncake Home
Delivery Service”, “Airport Visit on International Children’s Day”, “‘Employee Health
Check’, “Distribution of Big Hit Movie Tickets”, make every employee feel the unity
and warmth of the Meilan family.

Reckoning “safety and precaution” as the fundamental development principal
for Meilan Airport, the Group gradually establishes a safety culture which is
well perceived by staff and incorporated in Company regulations. Building
a humanitarian environment and adopting the scientific model of “People,
Machine, Environment, Management”, the Group can effectively manage its
employees, preventing the occurrence of accidents and ensuring the well-being
of employees at the workplace.

In addition, the Group emphasizes the crucial positions and every department
needs to formulate an employee handbook according to the specific scope of
the job, which explicitly lays down the detailed roles and operations guidelines
for different positions. Furthermore, safety technical trainings, safety education
and promotional events have been rolled out comprehensively to cultivate a
sense of safe production among employees, allowing them to initiate safety
precautions on their own, and ensure safety of themselves during the production
stage. In view of the special operational environment of Meilan Airport, the
Group puts great efforts in dust prevention, noise prevention and precaution for
extreme heat, and provided different kinds of equipment to enhance the working
condition and satisfaction of employees. The Group also strictly adheres to labor
laws governing working hours and employee insurance.

[BTARE®] [EGMERERTFINSE] -
BMROEREEED [ \BLHLETHE
EE | [REASIFRIR]  [N—REHHS
—RBRAF] - F%Eﬁélﬁ“ﬁj [ZAFIIEME
FRERIEWASE  BRAMNETIHEER
PREUEHATNEERI I ZHAREDN
B G FURBE

AEERRK [Z2E— BHRE] ERER
BISLZ2ERAKEARA YERFELT [
LR~ IMERTT ~ BYER B k2L &
BERIEFNZEAREMMEBNTA - # R
BB BETIREMALCEEHEZESR
FIEBIMEER TR EEMHMEL - AURER
THAERBEZBIZTOATERE

BHN - RRRBIEEHEAIERELD EARBO
EWMPARBRARNXGHBREE THMATIF
F - FMFPFRSEBE MIRERER - XE
ZRRZEREEEI - Z2EIHERLREHEE
mE EEIHRTRAGRLZEERR &
[ERLE2]ERIHNELE] BREXELE
E’Jlﬁﬁ—ir MFETESREMHE - R SHEH%
BITRR - NRBERBEHE - IR - BHE
BEF/EIIIﬂE BB ESRAM - THE THEE
- BAREFAE I ITEERIEH - AEB N
RETEEIERERE TR EADER

Proportion of Employee Care and Public Benefit Activities in 2015
—E-IFETBEEBERUELSH
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security, appr

data analytics, finds out weak links to improve and elevate during future work.

Data of our Company about performance on sustainable development of 2015

is as follows:

Staff profile and safety performance:

Category
5l

Item Unit

HH {7

B BRERHTERENRE - 27 -

—T-REE  AREAREEREROMEN
FUT -

BIMRRLZ2RA

Year 2015 Remark
20156 EF fBx

Statistics of Staff
EI&st

Total Number of Staff person
BETHZ A
Classified by Type of Employment
BIEEHE S

Full Time

2R %
Part-Time or Temporary

FRB IR %
Classified by Type of Employment

Contract

RETSHNERE D

Long-term Open Ended

REERHEH %
Long-term Fixed Period

RHARYEH %
Temporary

AN %
Classified by Sex

B BI85

Male

Bt %
Female

pegi %

733

69.16

30.84

61.11

38.89
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REERNVE D
Management
EIBAR

Non-Management

FEEAR

Classified by Education

Background
REEE S
Postgraduate
ML
University

NS

Junior College
RE
Secondary School
hE

Others

Hith
Classified by Age
BRERED
20-29 Years old
20-295%

30-39 Years old
30-395%

40-49 Years old
40-495%,

50-59 Years old
50-595%

Over 60 Years old
60mE A |

Classified by Region

% i 35 &1 5
Mainland of China
B K Pt [

HK, Macao and Taiwan

FESRA R
Other than China
A B LA SNET R

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

11.2

88.8

2.46

3342

30.83

7.77

25.52

24.70

34.51

3246

8.19

0.14

99.58

0.28

0.14




TFELATR (B

1-2 Years (including)
1-2%F (&)

2-3 Years (including)
2-3% (&)

3-5 Years (including)
3-5% (§)

5-10 Years (including)
5-10%F (&)

10-15 Years (including)
10-15%F (&)

15-20 Years (including)
15-20%F (&)

%

%

%

%

%

%

5.46

3.28

532

19.10

24.55

34.92

7.37

Resignation Rate of Staff
BIRKR

Total Resignation Rate
BRARE
Classified by Region
R ith i 8 5
Mainland of China

B K P i

HK, Macao and Taiwan
FEER S R
Other than China
LV NEIES
Classified by Sex
BR8N D

Male

Xl

Female

i

Classified by Age
RERE D

Under 30 Years Old
305 AT

30-50 Years Old
30-50%%

Over 50 Years Old
5055 A |

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

10.20

65.60

34.40

37.70

50.80

11.50
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Category
5

Item

HH

Unit
By

Year 2015
201556 E

Remark

#E

Recruitment Rate of Staff

BETIHER

Recruitment Rate
BETER
Classified by Region
& 3 35 &l o
Mainland of China
R B K B b [

HK, Macao and Taiwan
FESR A
Other than China
AR B A SN R
Classified by Sex
&% B &2

Male

S

Female

g

Classified by Age
RERE D

Under 30 Years Old
305R A T

30-50 Years Old
30-50%%

Over 50 Years Old
508%A £

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

12.10

61.30

38.70

75.80

22.60

1.60

Staff Training
8 T3

Training of Skill

BT HEEEHI

Outside Training

pruapzzi|

Average Hours of Training
552 5 SREF

Average Hours of Working Per Week
1A T AN

Time

R
Person-time
AR

Hour

/NI

Hour

N

171

96.6

40

Health & Safety

RERZZR

Average Times of Health and Safety
Training

AR ER B &2 23R FIR B
Average Times of Physical
Examination for Personal

A BIIRE

Coverage of Physical Examination

= T g A FE g
ETRREEX

Time

N
Time

%

63
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8

BREREE i
Emission Load of Nitride Ton
AL mBERE A
Emission Load of Monoxide Ton
—& iR E 7}
Emission Load of Hydride Ton
LB E g
Emission Load of Sulfide Ton
B E 7
Emission Load of Greenhouse Ton of Carbon
Gas Dioxide
BMERBHHRE g — &bk
Emission Load of Fuel Ton of Carbon
Combustion Dioxide
R BE I = g — b ik
Waste Water Discharge 10,000 Tons
BEKEEE =
Hazardous Waste Ton
BEBEEY i
Nonhazardous Waste Ton
BEREY 188
Construction Waste Ton
EENIR o
Household Waste Ton
HTERIIR e
Weight of Water 10,000 Tons
AKEE B

139.183

27.168

99.482

4.993

7.54

37,012.49

2,024.25

35.65

62

17,330

12,650

4,680

210

To discharge after processed by sewage
processing system, and meet the first grade
national standard

RHIKER IR RGBSR 12 E BB R — AR BER
IREIRBEL

Including medical waste, things intercepted
by customs inspection and quarantine, to be
processed by professional waste-disposing

company
FRENT  BRRRBEREY XA
EXAEEEYRENFRE

Landfilled onsite

B IE I 1

Uniformly disposed of as municipal waste by
sanitation department

A ERBTERRPIHZ T BRI S — BRI
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Category Item Unit Year 2015 Remark
5 15 B By 20155E #E
Consumption for  Paper for printing Ton
Procurement
BREBHAE ENml 4% 3R M4 2.5
Large Size Carton for Luggage Piece Spec.: length x width x Height 30X30X45CM
Packing
REXIE2YNi# iv] & 29,800 R 1 KREm 30X30X45/EK
Small Size Carton for Luggage Piece Spec.: length x width x Height 30X28X35CM
Packing
IR %] & 31,008 Hitg : KE® 30X28X35FK
Woven Bag for Luggage Packing Piece
TR BRER 1& 422
Storage Bag for Luggage Packing Piece
TFTBRER 1@ 388
Packing Belt for Luggage Packing Roll Spec.: length 700M/Roll
eI 5 1488 A8 K700K/%
Packing Film for Luggage Roll Spec: 15KG/Roll
TEEER 5 321 RI& 158 T/%
Wire-mesh Cage for Pet Piece
Transportation
EYERPELE 1& 198
Small Size Carton for Goods Piece
Transportation
SEsw/ NS & 126
Three-Layer Case for Seafood Set
Transportation
= ERiERE E=S 696,804
Square Case for Seafood Set
Transportation
M7y s E mAe E 73,613
Case for Fish Fry Transportation Set
BEERNE E 147,598
Carton for Seafood Piece
Transportation
TSR ERAAE 1& 333,714
Carton for Fish Fry Transportation Piece
BEERAME 1& 24,299
Plastic-foam Box for Fish Fry Piece
Transportation
B E R RE & 24,304
Express Box Piece
RIEE R & 353
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Clear ond Foshonable Termunals
The tervunals of Mealan Aueport cover an area of (Y%, (00 square meters, the design of which
embodtes the wmantsm concept. of "envaronment protection, haamony, health ond conciseness’. Tt -
odopts the tdea of natural ventalation and Lighting an 1ts destgn, creatang an environment conducive

to the haviontous coextstence of human betngs, butldings and the nature.
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The VIP Room with ethmc charactertstics

There are (\f bustness VIP rooms in the passenger ternmunal, with a theme of decoration

focusang on pottery, brocade of La nationadaty and slver omaments. Each VIP coom s featured
the style of ancient grandeur, efegance and nobleness and eastness with the humantsm

chacactertstacs of Hatnan Provance.
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The Fixed Boacding Bradge

e the first transparent boarding bradge of scassors

pattem n Chana, tte unmque shape and functions make fuld
use of the clamate charactertstacs of natucal ventidation of

Haanon Provance, creatang natucal atmosphece for the customers.
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The Company is committed to complying with all the rules prescribed by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC") and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), as well as requirements
of other regulatory bodies. The Company has adopted a code on corporate
governance practices on terms no less exacting than the standard of the Code
of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code on Corporate Governance”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, which came into effect in
January 2005 and has been amended from time to time. During the year ended
31 December 2015, the Company had complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance and all governance and disclosure requirements.

The Company is well aware that good corporate governance is an important
prerequisite for sustainable development, continuous improvement of the
Company's value and safeguarding shareholders' rights and interests. In the
future, the Company will adhere to good and prudent governance style
and continuously improved corporate governance level to achieve efficient

management and standardized operation.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The committees under the Board are established in accordance with the relevant
rules prescribed in the Listing Rules. The chairmans of the committees are served
by independent non-executive directors.
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HNA Infrastructure Company Limited

(Comprised of four Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors)

EMERKROERAAE

(BRABHITES 3EIFNITES - 4RBUIERITEFERK)
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Audit Committee Remuneration Nomination Strategic
Committee Committee Committee
(Comprised of three (Comprised of two (Comprised of two (Comprised of three
Independent Independent Independent Independent

Non-executive Directors)

Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director)

Non-executive Directors
and one Executive Director)

BEREEE FHEES REZEEE
(3R BT TEEER) (2 BLIERTES (2 BIIFRTEE
RAZHITE FAER) RAZHITE FEAR)

Non-executive Directors,
one Executive Director and
one Non-executive Director)
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The Company's corporate governance function is carried out by the Board
pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted in compliance with
Code Provision D.3.1 of the Code on Corporate Governance which include
(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company's policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company's compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance and disclosure
in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by the directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of the
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, all of the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors' securities transactions during any time of the accounting

period covered by this annual report.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board of the Company comprises eleven Directors, including four
executive Directors ("Executive Directors”), three non-executive Directors
("Non-executive Directors”) and four independent non-executive Directors
(“Independent Non-executive Directors”). The Company has complied with
the requirement of the Listing Rules for comprising at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors and the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
accounts for at least one third of the members of the Board, and at least one of
the Independent Non-executive Directors shall have the appropriate professional
qualifications and has proper expertise in accounting or financial management.

The members of the Board well acknowledge their responsibilities and obligations
and treat equally to all of the shareholders of the Company. In order to safeguard
all of the investors' interest, the Company ensures to provide the documents and
information in relation to the Company's operations to members of Directors
in a timely manner. Independent Non-executive Directors act on their duties in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations to safeguard the interest of the
Company and shareholders as a whole.

AAFNEREABEHESTSBREEELT
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B2 EAREBETEARS ZEETA (]
IR ) MEEETHERH 2 TR - AART
FEEE (EE) LB TENE  2REF
AR RATRIE 2 T I 2 (E R - 2T
BT R AT BT AFTRE NS BEFNES
RSB -

EEEAM
ARBEFGHR T —MIEFAK - HPOEHT
B ([HTES)  Z2FNTES ([FHT
Ex)) e BUHRTEE ((BYFHTE
B ARADRBCEMRY) HELKRILE
DB IFRTEENBUFATEREES
ERBANBEL =Dz~ YEAEL—RFIIH
HTESABEENEXERIABEENS
HEBNBHERER -

ARREFERERMACHEEIMER - HA
REPER—BRALC - SERMBEREENNES
BMRE - ARBHEREEANETSXEIREEH
ARBERBXERER - BIUFFRTEFTRRE
BZRERNBRBETRE  #EARTI MR
AR -
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As of 31 December 2015, the Board of the Company comprised eleven Directors:

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Wang Zhen
(duly appointed on 4 May 2014)

VICE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Hu Wentai
(re-appointed on 3 July 2015)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhen

(duly appointed on 27 May 2013)
Mr. Yang Xiaobin

(duly appointed on 4 March 2013)
Mr. Gao Jian

(duly appointed on 3 July 2015)
Mr. Zhang Peihua

(duly appointed on 20 May 2014)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Wentai
(re-appointed on 3 July 2015)
Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph
(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Yan Xiang
(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Deng Tianlin

(duly appointed on 3 November 2014)
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon

(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. George F Meng

(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. He Linji

(duly appointed on 18 May 2015)
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Mr. Fung Ching, Simon curren
Non-executive Director of the Company. The Company confirms that Mr. Fung
Ching, Simon still meets the independence requirements set out in Rules 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Mr. Fung Ching, Simon has relevant accounting experience and
has a deep understanding of the Group's operation. Based on such, the Company
believes that Mr. Fung Ching, Simon is still independent of the Group and will
continue to make contribution to the Company.

There is no relationship among the Directors that is discloseable.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the annual
accounts.

PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

The Board believes that regular assessment of its performance is important and
beneficial for improving its operations. In 2015, the Board conducted assessment
on its performance.

BOARD MEETINGS

1. The Board had held 6 meetings as of 31 December 2015, being the
thirteenth to the eighteenth session of the fifth congress.
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2. The attendance records of the Directors in the Board meetings and the 2.
general meetings:

EEHFEEeERMBRRGEEAA

R

Number of Not attending
Board meetings Attendance any meeting
they should by audio in person for  Attendance
Independent attend for Attendance or video Attendance two consecutive  of general
or not the year inperson  conferencing by proxy Absence times meeting
AEES HERAR REEEMA LEREAE
Name of Directors ESig ROBIES  EIENM  BELERY HERY  ERURERE RERH FEESNEE  WHEE
Wang Zhen Ea-| No 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
o~ ~
=] [=]
Yang Xiaobin BVE No 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
I -~
A =]
Gao Jian (Note 1) B B () No 3 2 w 0 0 No 100%
Zhang Hao (former) (Note 1) & 2 (A1) (A1) No 3 2 1 0 0 No 100%
~ ~
[=] [=]
Liang Jun (former) (Note 1)~ & (A1) (H31) No 0 0 0 0 0 No 100%
& &
Zhang Pehua KE No 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
& &
Hu Wentai FiNEN No 6 5 I 0 0 No 100%
& &
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph BRUH No 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
& f
Yan Xiang o No 6 6 0 0 0 No 100%
& &
Deng Tianlin N Yes 6 5 1 0 0 No 100%
& &
Feng Ching, Simon 5 Ves 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
& f
George F Meng aZE Yes 6 4 2 0 0 No 100%
& &
He Linji (Note 2 GEERGE) Yes 5 5 0 0 0 No 100%
& &
Xu Bailing (former) (Note 2)  #:4h8 (1) (Fi3t2) Yes 1 0 1 0 0 No 100%
= A
Notes: Mt
1. Mr. Liang Jun ceased to be an Executive Director of the Company on 16 February 1. REFER_ZT—RAF - A+NBELEEER
2015. Mr. Zhang Hao took over the role of Mr. Liang Jun as an Executive Director of RAMITESRS - REXAER T —HEZ
the Company on 16 February 2015 and ceased to be an Executive Director of the ATRAEAREEAERERARNITES -
Company on 3 July 2015. Mr. Gao Jian took over the role of Mr. Zhang Hao as an YR -E—AF+ A= BEFLEEERAFTNT
Executive Director of the Company on 3 July 2015 and attended for the sixteenth EE - gREAN - T-RAFLA=ZHELR
session of the fifth congress of the Board held on 21 August 2015 for the first time SERERBRARTVNTES VR _E—RF
of the attendance of the Board meeting. NAZT—HARBBRNEREE TSRE
E2ERL BRBNEARFREEZEER -
2. Mr. Xu Bailing ceased to be an Independent Non-executive Director of the 2. BEREER-_ZT—AFRATN\ARFILER

Company on 18 May 2015. Mr. He Linji took over the role of Mr. Xu Bailing as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 18 May 2015 and
attended for the fourteenth session of the fifth congress of the Board held on 19
May 2015 for the first time of the attendance of the Board meeting.
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The Company encourages the Directors to participate in the continuous
professional development in order to develop and update their knowledge and
skills. The Company also actively organized relevant training in order to make sure
that the Directors make contribution to the Company with extensive information
and satisfaction. The Company made out registration forms, training record and
training certificates to assist them recording the courses they have participated.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the summarized training records of the
Directors are as follows:

ARAREGDBES2EREFEEI - EABR
I T E ABAERE °$ﬁ7ﬁ$@gﬁm%ﬁ@
EIARRESEABREERRIAAENE
THEESHHER - ARRREHFIRDIR - F
FIFLE RIBDIREE M IA GBI E E LB IS EN
BIRE - BE-Z—AF+-_A=+—HiL ' K
RRIEFEFZ YIRS T -

Outline of Case Sharing  Knowledge Sharing
Amended Code Outline of of the and Exchange
on Corporate Amended Hong Kong Regarding Corporate
Governance Listing Rules Stock Exchange Governance
(h¥ERTH) (LmRAD BARBR BREXER
AT AT Bt e3P WAZEZR
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BTES
Wang Zhen T 5 v v/ v "
Yang Xiaobin BINE / / / v/
Gao Jian 5 B v % v v
Zhang Peihua RIAE v/ v/ v/ v/
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHTES
Hu Wentai R v % v v/
Chan Nap Kee, Joseph BiE v / / v
Yan Xiang & v / / v
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BUFGTES
Deng Tianlin BAM / v/ v/ v/
Feng Ching, Simon B 1 v v / 7
George F Meng nER v v v v
He Linji ARE / / / /
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Note:

The above trainings were organized by the Office of the Board of the Company,
together with Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe and PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian LLP. The trainings were held at Conference Room No. 1, Qilu International
Hotel, Harbin City, Heilongjiang Province on 27 December 2015, with a total of
ten courses. The training courses aim strengthening the understanding of the
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company to the concept
and practice of laws and regulations and corporate governance of Hong Kong, in
order to improve the standardization of operations, enhance the level of corporate
governance and internal control.

AUTHORITY AND PRACTICE OF THE BOARD

Details of terms of reference of the Board and the management and the

respective areas to exercise their authority are set out in the articles of association

of the Company (the “Articles of Association”):

The Board is accountable to the shareholders' general meeting

and shall exercise the following duties and powers:

1.

70

to be responsible for convening general meetings and report to the
shareholders;

to carry out the resolutions of the general meetings;

to decide on the operational plan and investment plan of the Company;
to formulate the Company's annual financial budget and final accounts;
to formulate plans for profit distribution and recovery of losses;

to formulate plans for increases in or reductions of the Company's registered
capital, the issue of corporate bonds and other securities and the listing of

the Company;

to prepare plans for merger, division, dissolution and reorganization of the
Company;

to determine the internal management structure of the Company;

to appoint or dismiss the Company's general manager and secretary to the
Board on recommendation of the chairman of the Board; and to appoint or
dismiss deputy general managers and other senior officers of the Company
and determine their remuneration on recommendation of the general

manager;

BRE

A LB BARREESHAE R REER
EBT R EEACGET RS EHAT (R
AR B RZT—AF+-A=-++BE
BRETHARRETAEBRENLERERET
17 HEHHRRE o BIIRBHRE B EMBRAK
RAESE BERSREEABHBBEREE
R ARERESNERN TR  TEARF
REEE R RRIB M ABERIKF o

EESERERER
MAESERERENRERERS 8RR
EMEE - FAIBRAATATNER ((AF
®8))) -

EESHRRAREEE @ fTE TR

& TAREARERETf

HITIRERARERRE

RERANBLFTEMTEN R
HEARNEEMBRENR  RETE
BIERRRFE AT RMBAEEES R
BRI A BEIE ISk E R AT ME RN EIAR

BITRBES « ARfbEHFR EWMHTSR

BATAFAB -
R FE

DY BEEEE QBT

RERNRANFEIEEBRE

REEERNES  BERERBRREL
BEMESeWE  REECENRES BT
FERBRAFRBKLEMEESRERA
B REHHMER



to assess and determine the nature and acceptance of risks, to ensure the
realization of the Company's strategic goals;

to ensure the establishment and maintenance of appropriate and effective
risk management and internal supervision system;

to supervise the management for the risk management and the design,
implementation and control of the internal supervision system;

to propose the appointment or dismissal of external auditors for approval
by the shareholders' general meeting; and

other powers conferred under the Articles of Association or by the general
meeting.

The Board has established the audit committee, nomination committee,

remuneration committee and strategic committee. Each of these committees

has established its own written terms of reference and operates effectively on
this basis.

The general management can decide the following matters:

to supervise the management of production and business operations, and
organize the implementation of the resolutions of the Board;

to coordinate the implementation of the Company's annual business and
investment plans;

to formulate plans for the establishment of the Company's internal
management structure;

to formulate the basic administration system of the Company;

to formulate rules of the Company;
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6. to recommend the appointment and dismissal of vice general managers
and other senior officers (include financial officers) of the Company;

7. to design, implement and supervise the risk management and internal
control systems;

8. to provide confirmation of the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control system to the Board;

9.  to appoint or dismiss other managerial staff (other than those required to
be appointed or dismissed by the Board); and

10. to exercise other powers conferred under the Articles of Association and by
the Board.

Both the Board and the management act in strict compliance with relevant
requirements of the Company Law, the Articles of Association and the Listing
Rules.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND PRESIDENT

The chairman is responsible for development direction and effective running
of the Board, and ensuring the Board acts in the best interests of the Company.

The president is accountable to the Board, and is delegated with the responsibility
for running the Company's business and implementing the resolutions of the
Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the positions of Chairman and President
were held by Mr. Wang Zhen and Mr. Yang Xiaobin respectively, both being the
Executive Directors. The division of their duties was set out clearly in the Articles
of Association. Their terms of reference are clean and there is no relationship in
relation to finance, business and kinship between them. The governance structure
of the Company established well and clear.
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Simon, Mr. George F Meng and Mr. He Linji.

Mr. Hu Wentai's current term of appointment is from 3 July 2015 to 2 July 2018;

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph's current term of appointment is from 28 October
2013 to 27 October 2016;

Mr. Yan Xiang's current term of appointment is from 28 October 2013 to 27
October 2016

Mr. Deng Tianlin's current term of appointment is from 3 November 2014 to 2
November 2017;

Mr. Fung Ching, Simon's current term of appointment is from 28 October 2013
to 27 October 2016;

Mr. George F Meng's current term of appointment is from 28 October 2013 to
27 October 2016

Mr. He Linji's current term of appointment is from 18 May 2015 to 17 May 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
(Mr. Xing Zhoujin). The Company secretary shall report to the Chairman on the
corporate governance of the Board and shall be responsible for ensuring the
compliance with relevant Board procedures and facilitating the communication
among Directors, shareholders and the management. As at 31 December 2015,
the company secretary received over 15 hours of professional training for skill
and knowledge updates.
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INSURANCE ARRANGEMENT

According to the Recommended Best Practices A.1.9 of the Code on Corporate
Governance that an issuer should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against its directors. The Company has arranged the liability
insurance for the Directors, the supervisors (“Supervisors”) and other senior
management.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

In December 2014, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange published a summary
of consultation upon amending the “Code on Corporate Governance” and
“Corporate Governance Report” regarding the provisions relating to risk
management and the internal controls, determining a series of amendments
on risk management and internal controls for the existing Code on Corporate
Governance, in a bid to further enhance the status of risk management and
internal controls in the corporate governance. The revised “Code on Corporate
Governance” will effect from the financial year of 2016.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are featured with a
defined management structure with limits of authority and well-rounded policies
and procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations,
to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets
of the Group. The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis.

In a bid to further improve the establishment of the existing risk management
and internal control system of the Company in relation to, among others,
the business operation, finance and compliance, in the middle of 2015, the
Company initiated the “Promotion Work over the Risk Management and Internal
Control System” (“Promotion Work"). For the sake of ensuring the profession
and effectiveness of the work, the Company specially hired a professional
independent third party to give specific guidance on the Promotion Work, and
completed the construction work for the Group's risk management framework
in 2015. The Company has completed the procedure with scientific analysis,
assessment, and determined the risk management towards the recognized
risk points, including to conduct survey with the senior management of the
Company and business representatives, in which through analyzing the content
of the survey together with the on-site interview, on the basis of the risk and
strength and weakness, to recognize the top-10 risk points and the core risks.
With the integration of the real situation of the Company and various laws and
regulations, the management of the Company can act in concert with such
to develop solutions towards the risks, in order to organize systematically,
monitor and mitigate possible risks. The Company also formulated and delivered
“Risk Management Operation Manual of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”,
“Internal Audit Charter of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited” and “Internal
Audit Three-Year Strategic Plan of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited” etc. with
different series of risk management and internal control system in 2015, in a bid
to let all staff to comply with, and build a regulatory environment of risk control
and standardized operation.
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In addition, the Company has updated the terms of reference and procedures
under the jurisdiction of the audit committee of the Board (the “"Audit
Committee’) accordingly to conform the new “Code on Corporate Governance”
requirements. Meanwhile, with the assistance of the professional auditor, the
Audit Committee supervised the Company's revenue and expenditure for the
financial and economic activities, to further strengthen the functions of risk
management, to ensure the effective implementation of risk management and
internal control system and the Company's standardized operation and healthy
development. In order to comply with the relevant requirements under the
Code on Corporate Governance in relation to the corporate risk management
and internal controls, the Company is currently under the active discussion and
analysis on the establishment of an internal audit department for the purposes
of simultaneous updates between the corporate governance and the Code on
Corporate Governance and continuously improving the effectiveness of the
Company'’s risk management and internal controls.

In addition, the procedures on disclosure of inside information, i.e. the “Register
and Management System of Inside Information Insider” formulated and delivered
by the Company in 2012 and inside information training courses provided to the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company, were in place
to ensure that all relevant facts and circumstances that may have material effect
on the share price of the Company is assessed in a timely manner and that any
material information which comes to the knowledge of any one or more officers
of the Group be promptly identified, assessed and, if appropriate, escalated for
the attention of the Board to determine whether a disclosure is required.

The Board has the responsibility to maintain sound and effective internal control,
while the general management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the internal control system to manage risks. Sound internal control system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, in which reasonable but not absolute assurance can be provided.

The Board, together with the Audit Committee, is responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system for the year,
as well as considering the adequacy of the Company's resources, the staff's
qualifications and experience, the training courses and the related budgets in
accounting, internal review and financial reporting functions. In 2015, the Board
has completed two times review of the internal control system, accounting and
financial reporting function and satisfied with the results.

For details of the Company’s operational deficiencies or potential risks identified
and the corresponding measures during the year ended 31 December 2015,
please refer to the “Report of the Directors” contained in this annual report.
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The Company has formulated and implemented the following rules in accordance

"nou

with the “Company Law”,

Securities Law” and “Guidelines on Internal Control of

ARBERECREE) ~ (BFE) MK LT AR
ABPIEHIIE D) FARARMNER - FIELE M

Listing Companies”: T AT HIE S
No. Type of System Subject Matters Name of Rules
Fih  HERE HEAR HEAR
1 Articles of Association The latest Articles of Association as amended during ~ “Articles of Association of HNA Infrastructure Company
the extraordinary general meeting held on 30 October  Limited"
2015
RAER L0155 10A30BREEAIARBET «HHMARER  (BMERRNAERAFAARNER)
2 To standardize rules of procedures for general meetings ~ “Rule of Procedures for General Meetings”
RBERRAGEFEF (RRAGZEHA)
3 To standardize rules of procedures of the Board “Rules of Procedures for Board Meetings”
RBEFEAZREF (EZxgaFRA)
4 To standardize rules of procedures for the Supervisers'  “Rules of Procedures for Supervisors' Meetings”
meetings
REEFEAZEF (EEgEEHA)
5 To clearly state the terms of reference of the nomination ~ “Term of Reference of the Nomination Committee of
Operations of Three Committees E?mr?itte? ofthe Board " t%le foard
—gun ARV ESEREEESIEBEARAMR (EZgREZEQTIFEE)
6 To clearly state the terms of reference of the strategic ~ “Term of Reference of the Strategy Committee of the
committee of the Board Board"
AR UESeBREE e TIFEE AR (EZ2BREEQTERE)
7 To clearly state the terms of reference of the audit ~ “Term of Reference of the Audit Committee of the
committee of the Board Board"
ARV EFRERZE R IFEERERE (EZgERZEeIFRA)
8 To clearly state the terms of reference of the ‘Term of Reference of the Remuneration Committee of
remuneration committee of the Board the Board"
SR UERETMES e TIFEEREE (ESeFMES@TIFRE)
9 Governance of Directors, Supervisors and To regulate securities transactions by the Directors,  “Model Code for the Securities Transactions by
Senior Management Supervisors and senior management by formulating  Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of HNA
code of practice Infrastructure Company Limited”
BERER REEESEFRHTR  HIETATAR (BMERRNERLAEE LEREREEAR
BHXHFETA)
10 To ensure transparency and duly disclosure of  “Rules of Securities Information Gathering and

Information Disclosure
EEHE

information

BRESAHILRBETEERERE

To strengthen control of the trading of securities of the
Company and ensure due and effective disclosure of
information

MAERAEBFRFEAEERE - BREEREREAN

Disclosure of HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”
(BMERRNERRAEFEENEERERT)
“Internal Control on Connected Transaction of HNA
Infrastructure Company Limited”

(BRERBHERAABYIINHBEEHE)
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AREREEBRER
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13 To regulate signing and filing of contracts "Management of Contract of Significance”
RBARRELFERY (EXEREEHE)
14 ) To regulate purchase, usage, retirement and update of ~ “Management of Fixed Assets”
Operational Management :
g fixed assefs ‘
RBETEERE  £R  BERENES (BEBEEIEEHE)
15 To regulate procurement of the Company Management of Bids and Tenders”
RBRARBER (RIFREERHE)
16 Financial Management To regulate financial reporting of the Company and  "Measures on Financial Auditing and Fund
strictly control cash flow Management”
HEER REARAGBRENE  BEEERYER (MBRERERERERHE)
17 Management of Safety Operation To optimize internal control on the safety operation of ~ “Management of Air Security and Safety Operation of
the airport Airport and Work Safety Manual”
Z2ER TERSREAEER (BSEHZ2ERRZEHEFM)
18 “Risk Management Operation Manual of HNA
Infrastructure Company Limited"
(BMERBRNERRARRERBREFM)
19 ) To complete the risk management and internal control  “Internal Audit Charter of HNA Infrastructure Company
Risk f\f:nagemtint and Internal Control system Limited"
FRERRARES *EEREERNIEREE CSRERRAARATNBE 5R)
20 “Internal Audit Three-Year strategic Plan of HNA
Infrastructure Company Limited”
(BMEARBRNBRRANBETS=FEMTE])
21 To regulate corporate governance, strengthen internal ~ “Quality Enhancement Plan of HNA Infrastructure
control and enhance profitability Company Limited"
RBRRDAE - MBRERR - RAAME (BMERRNERNAZEERAE)
22 Others To regulate conducts of staff and create ideal image as  "Code of Conduct of the Staff of Meilan Airport”
s a listed Company
a REBTTAR BELTARERIER (ERHSE T RER)
23 To enhance the awareness of staff of confidentiality and ~ "Registration of Insiders”

optimize registration of insiders
MEEBTREED  TENBESABABLER

(REEEABABLEENE)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

A remuneration committee has been set up by the Company, which is a sub-
committee under the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”).

Composition of the Remuneration Committee: Mr. Deng Tianlin, an Independent
Non-executive Director, is the chairman, and other members consisted of Mr.
Fung Ching, Simon, an Independent Non-executive Director, and Mr. Zhang
Peihua, an Executive Director.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all
Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management

and etc.

As of 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee had held one meeting
on 30 March 2015 to determine the remuneration of Directors for 2014 and the

proposed remuneration package of Directors for 2015.

Directors' remuneration policy for 2015: allowance for Executive Directors, Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors are RMB70,000,
RMB50,000 and RMB100,000 per person respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration of the senior
management of the Company by remuneration band is set out below:

EENEREEASTH

AARRATHMES S  FHESeLESS
BE (FHEaE)) -

HHZ B MK TFEHEBIUIFATESERM
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AARFMEESHNEERERRARAEZESTR
SREEABNEEE Mﬁﬁ& %ﬁ§$Ak
Ltz AEEEgMIeEAstRBZEMm
&ﬁ&%ﬁ@%%%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
EREREEABNETINF

HE-_T—RAF+-A=+—HI ' ARER=
T-RAF=A=THER—XAFHZES=%
BETRAR_ZE—NFEEEEMEe R _T—AF
EESMESER

“E-RFBEEFMBER  TEERUHAR
#70,0007T A ¢ FEFITE FEBLA R 50,000

TN B IEITE F32 A R 100,000
TSN
HE_Z—AF+-_A=+—BIFE ' %L&8

DM ARBRREEABHHEIIMT

Number of

Remuneration band (RMB) individuals
FEE (AR®) AE
0-150,000 1
150,001-200,000 1
200,001-250,000 2
250,001-300,000 3
1

300,001-350,000

78



Superviso

Directors and Supervisors recommended by the Parent Company, Directors and
Supervisors nominated by controlling shareholder would not enjoy allowance
for holding the position. However, they were also entitled to receive respective

salaries according to their respective positions taken in the Company.

MEETING ATTENDANCE OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year. The attendance
of the meeting held by the Remuneration Committee during the year ended
31 December 2015 is as follows:

a;x*ﬁﬂﬂ‘]ﬁ% Eb%@ﬂ%;iﬁﬁ 1E|H%$E'<EEI
EARREENABBISESERN TERM -

FHEESEETR
HMERRNENRT—REE - LT AHMHE
BEBE-T-RF - A=t BLFESS
SEESE R P

Attendance of meeting held

by the Remuneration Committee
for the year ended

31 December 2015

BE-—Z—&fF
+-—B=+—HLFE
Member of the Remuneration Committee FHZEEERE BINFMHEESERHES
Deng Tianlin BRRAR 100%
Fung Ching, Simon B AE 100%
Zhang Peihua o il 2 100%
NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS EERE
A nomination committee has been set up by the Company, which is a sub- ZAAFIRY TIRERZEE  REZECREEE

committee under the Board (the “"Nomination Committee”).

Composition of Nomination Committee: Mr. He Linji, an Independent Non-
executive Director, is the chairman, and other members consisted of Mr. Deng
Tianlin, an Independent Non- executive Director, and Mr. Wang Zhen, an
Executive Director.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, to access the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company and etc.

wHE ((REREEE)) -

REZBEMAN  BIUFATESARE LAR
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FTEREREERER -

ARRRAZBENTIERARELEFRIE
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79



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Corporate Governance Report, 2 € § % 1 &

As of 31 December 2015, the Company held the eighth meeting of the
fifth congress of the Nomination Committee on 30 March 2015 to propose
appointment of Mr. He Linji as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, the ninth meeting of the fifth congress of the Nomination Committee
on 15 May 2015 to propose appointment of Mr. Hu Wentai as a Non-executive
Director of the Company and to propose Mr. Gao Jian as an Executive Director
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will identify candidates through different channels
under the requirements made by the Company to the Directors. Subject to the
approval of the Nomination Committee, the candidates will be recommended
to the Board for its verification and submit to the general meeting for approval
after passed the examination of the Board.

The nomination was made in accordance with the nomination policy of the
Company and against the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits
of diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service). It had also taken into account their respective contributions to the Board
and their firm commitment to their roles.

MEETING ATTENDANCE OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year. The attendance
of the meetings held by the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2015 is as follows:

BE_FT-AF+t-_A=1+—H1L XRFEAR=
?—EE—H—+E”ﬁ%£E%Amh%§§
8% RERTMRGTELEREARFELIE
WTEE R _FT-AFHEA+HEREARFELE
FARREBRZESEH  ERBEZTHXHRS
AREARFRNTESYRZZESERLRE
ERRFRTES -

REZBEREARFHESHENEK - €8
BTRREVENE FRAZEQERRB
% BNEFSHEBERSABRLCEFTSERR
BRIERBRAGHLE ©

EENRABNIRBEARAIRBBERET - UER
REFZDEREZTEKREZTTIEME S (’\ﬂ]ﬁﬂﬂ
TRINER - Fik  XEEHBFER - Bk -
X AL ABRRBFH) - TEE 'Jf)ﬁ
EHEZSNERAUBITRENAML -

REZEGERCE !
REZARRENRIMARSE U TAREE
EENBE—F-HF+-A=t-BLFES
IMREE RS NDY

Attendance of meetings held
by the Nomination Committee
for the year ended

31 December 2015

BE-_Z—51F

TZA=+—HLEE

Member of the Nomination Committee REZEERE ETWREZEEERLER
Xu Bailing (former) BIE (A1) 100%
He Linji RS 100%
Deng Tianlin B RAR 100%
Wang Zhen T & 100%
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RMB2,670,000. The bre

Amount (RMB)
28 (ARY)
Services fee related to annual audit of financial statements G HRRFERAHORGE 1,240,000
Services fee related to interim review of financial statements A7 3R P BB RV ARIS & 660,000
Reporting accountant service for certain capital REATHRS  1ERBR
market transactions SEMREE 770,000
TOTAL Eer 2,670,000
AUDIT COMMITTEE BERZERS
An audit committee has been set up by the Company, which is a subcommittee  RNARIRY TEREZES  BEXLESAEES

under the Board (the “Audit Committee”).

Composition of Audit Committee: Mr. Deng Tianlin, an Independent Non-
executive Director, is the chairman, and other members consisted of Mr. Fung
Ching, Simon, an Independent Non-executive Director, and Mr. George F Meng,
an Independent Non-executive Director.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing an independent review and supervision of financial
reporting, by satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal controls
of the Group, and as to the adequacy of the external and internal audits, to assure
that appropriate accounting principles and reporting practices are followed by
the Company and etc.

As of 31 December 2015, the Company held two meetings of the Audit
Committee.

During the first meeting of the Audit Committee in 2015, the Audit Committee
reviewed the 2014 annual report and auditors' report, and also considered the
re-appointment of auditor for 2015 and reviewed the working report of the Audit
Committee for the year of 2014

During the second meeting in 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the 2015
interim report, and interim report of auditors of 2015 and interim working report
of Audit Committee for 2015.

The Audit Committee suggested the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP as auditors of the Company in 2016.
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MEETING ATTENDANCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE: EREEEgRTH
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year. The attendance of the %’f?%%@ﬁ"ilﬂqg&ﬂﬂﬁ/"’@% AT AEZE
meetings held by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December BB ZE_T—AF+-A=+—HILFERT
2015 is as follows: MEZEE SR HECHK
Attendance of meetings held
by the Audit Committee
for the year ended
31 December 2015
BE-Z—1fF
+ZA=+—HLEE
Member of the Audit Committee EREZEEERE BINERZESERLUES
Xu Bailing (former) winEe (31) 100%
Deng Tianlin B R 100%
Fung Ching, Simon L E 100%
George F Meng TE¥E 100%
SHAREHOLDING INTERESTS OF SENIOR SREEAEBNFRES

MANAGEMENT

During 2015, none of the senior management held any shareholding interests
in the Company.

AMENDMENTS OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

During 2015, three rounds of amendments of the Articles of Association have

been made.

The first amendment was mainly due to the Company's name was changed to
"HNA Infrastructure Company Limited”, hence, an amendment on Articles of
Association is required. The amendment has been approved by the Company’s
extraordinary general meeting on 5 January 2015. Please refer to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange announcement dated 2 March 2015 for the revised Article of
Association.

DETAILS OF THE AMENDMENTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
The original Articles 2 is:
Company's registered name in Chinese: Y& 3% F [ B B35 1 {0 B BR 22 7

Company's name in English: Hainan Meilan International Airport Company

Limited
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Amended as:

Company's registered name in Chinese: {EfIFEFER% (7 B R /A F
Company's name in English : HNA Infrastructure Company Limited

The second amendment is mainly to ensure the safe operation of Meilan Airport
and to expand the Company's business scope, to play the Company's business
edges, to increase the ability in revenue, and thus having such an amendment
to the Company's business scope, the term “vehicle maintenance” is added into
the operation details. The amendment has been approved by the Company's
extraordinary general meeting on 3 July 2015. Please refer to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange announcement dated 30 December 2015 for the revised Article
of Associations.

DETAILS OF THE AMENDMENTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
The original Articles 11 is:

Activities examined and authorized by the department in charge of Company
examination and approval form the scope of business of the Company.

Business scope of the Company: To provide aircraft transportation, passenger
services and ground handling services for domestic and foreign airlines as well
as transfer and transit passengers; lease aviation business spaces and commercial
and office properties in the terminals and provide a wide range of services; build
and operate aeronautical and auxiliary properties and facilities in the airport;
provide cargo warehousing (excluding dangerous articles), packaging, handling
and transport services; and provide retail sales of jet fuel, hardware, electric
appliance, electronic products and communication devices, grocery, textile, arts
and crafts, as well as magazines to (among others) airlines or passengers within
the premises of the airport. (Licenses are obtained for any business activities
requiring administrative permit)

Amended as:

Activities examined and authorized by the department in charge of Company
examination and approval form the scope of business of the Company.

Business scope of the Company: To provide aircraft transportation, passenger
services and ground handling services for domestic and foreign airlines as well
as transfer and transit passengers; lease aviation business spaces and commercial
and office properties in the terminals and provide a wide range of services; build
and operate aeronautical and auxiliary properties and facilities in the airport;
provide cargo warehousing (excluding dangerous articles), packaging, handling
and transport services; and provide retail sales of jet fuel, hardware, electric
appliance, electronic products and communication devices, grocery, textile, arts
and crafts, magazines as well as vehicles maintenance to (among others) airlines
or passengers within the premises of the airport. (Licenses are obtained for any
business activities requiring administrative permit)
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The third amendment is mainly for the Company to establish a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system as soon as possible, to
strengthen the responsibility of the Board, the general management for the risk
management and internal control, to further create a governance atmosphere
with risk control and normative operation for the Company. The amendment
has been approved by the Company's extraordinary general meeting dated 30
October 2015. Please refer to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange announcement
dated 30 December 2015 for the revised Article of Associations.

DETAILS OF THE AMENDMENTS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
The original Articles 95 is:

The board of directors is responsible to the shareholders' general meeting and

exercise the following powers:

(1) to convene the shareholders' general meeting and report on its work to
the meeting;

(2) to implement the resolutions of the shareholders' general meeting;

(3) to decide on the Company's business and investment plans;

4) to formulate the Company's proposed annual financial budget and final
accounts;

(5) to formulate the Company's proposals for distribution of profits and

recovery of losses;

(6) to formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company's
registered capital, the issue of corporate bonds and other securities, and
listing;

(7) to prepare plans for the merger, division, dissolution or change in
corporate form of the Company;

8) to decide on the Company's internal management structure;
9) to appoint or dismiss the Company's general manager, and based on the
general manager's recommendation, to appoint or dismiss deputy general

manager and other senior management personnel, and to decide on their
remuneration;
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(13)

(14)

to make proposals to shareholders' general meeting on the appointment,
re-appointment or dismissal of accounting firms undertaking the audit of
the Company; and

other powers conferred by the Articles of Association and the shareholders'
general meeting.

Other than sections 6, 7 and 11 in this article, which must be approved by more

than two thirds of the directors, other sections above may be approved by more

than half of the directors.

Amended as:

The board of directors is responsible to the shareholders' general meeting and

exercise the following powers:

m

2

3)

4

(©)

(6)

)

to convene the shareholders' general meeting and report on its work to
the meeting;

to implement the resolutions of the shareholders' general meeting;

to decide on the Company's business and investment plans;

to formulate the Company's proposed annual financial budget and final
accounts;

to formulate the Company's proposals for distribution of profits and
recovery of losses;

to formulate proposals for the increase or reduction of the Company's
registered capital, the issue of corporate bonds and other securities, and
listing;

to prepare plans for the merger, division, dissolution or change in
corporate form of the Company;
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(8) to decide on the Company's internal management structure;

%) to appoint or dismiss the Company's general manager, and based on the
general manager's recommendation, to appoint or dismiss deputy general
manager and other senior management personnel, and to decide on their
remuneration;

(10)  to formulate the Company's basic management system;
(11)  to formulate the plan to amend the Articles of Association;
(12)  to prepare the Company's plans for major acquisition or sale;

(13)  to evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company's strategic objectives;

(14)  toensure the establishment and maintenance of appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

(15)  to oversee management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems;

(16)  to make proposals to shareholders' general meeting on the appointment,
re-appointment or dismissal of accounting firms undertaking the audit of
the Company; and

(17)  other powers conferred by the Articles of Association and the shareholders'
general meeting.

Other than sections 6, 7 and 11 in this article, which must be approved by more
than two thirds of the directors, other sections above may be approved by more
than half of the directors.

The original Article 108 is:

The general manager of the Company is responsible to the board of directors
and exercise the powers below: He is to

(1) preside over the Company's management work in production and
operation; to organize and implement board resolutions;

(2) organize and implement the Company's annual operational plan and
investment strategy;
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(6)

(7)

8)

offer suggestion to hire or dismiss assistant general managers and other
senior management personnel (including the chief financial officer);

hire and dismiss management staff who fall outside the scope of the
board's hiring and dismissal powers; and

exercise other powers conferred by the Articles of Association and the
board of directors.

Amended as:

The general manager of the Company is responsible to the board of directors

and exercise the powers below: He is to

(1)

)

3)

(4)

(©)

(6)

)

(8)

preside over the Company's management work in production and
operation; to organize and implement board resolutions;

organize and implement the Company's annual operational plan and
investment strategy;

formulate the Company's plan for installing internal management
structure;

formulate the Company's basic management system;

formulate the Company's basic regulations;

offer suggestion to hire or dismiss assistant general managers and other
senior management personnel (including the chief financial officer);

design, implement and monitor the risk management and internal control
systems;

provide a confirmation to the board on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;
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9) hire and dismiss management staff who fall outside the scope of the
board's hiring and dismissal powers; and

(10)  exercise other powers conferred by the Articles of Association and the
board of directors.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has placed emphasis on the communication with shareholders.
Shareholders can be updated with the operations of the Company and market
trends through its website and email and phone enquiries. The information of
the Company is delivered to the shareholders by the following methods:

1. publishing annual reports, interim reports, annual and interim results
announcements and other information disclosure on the websites of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company;

2. organizing shareholders' general meeting, which is one of the effective
channels to communicate with the shareholders;

3. the Company continues to strengthen communication with shareholders
by means including:

(1) arranging designated staff to meet with shareholders and answer their
enquiries;

(2) arranging on-site visit to the Company for shareholders to understand
the operation and the latest development of the Company in a timely

manner; and

(3) providing relevant financial and operation data on the Company's

website timely.

Shareholders or investors may make enquiries and offer suggestions through

the following channels:

Telephone no: 0898-65762132
Postal code: 571126
Address: Office of the Board of Directors, Office Building of

Meilan Airport, Meilan District, Haikou City, Hainan
Province
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shares entitling their holders to vote in the proposed general meeting request,

by signing one or more copies of a written request in the same form and submit

to the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting with an agenda of

the meeting. An extraordinary general meeting is required to be held as soon as

practicable upon receipt by the Board of such written request.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board did not receive any request

from shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting.

INVESTORS' RELATIONS

1.

Details of the classes of the Company's shareholders and particulars on
shareholding in aggregate are set out in the “Report of the Directors” in the
2015 annual report;

As at 31 December 2015, 226,913,000 H shares of the Company were held
by the public; and

The Company has maintained active communications with a professional
financial public relations firm and established daily communication channel
between the Company and its investors and fund managers and securities
analyst and media. The Company will publish the key operation data on a
weekly and monthly basis and report the Company's latest development in
relevant media and at the Company's website by means of press releases
and announcements in a timely manner.

By order of the Board

Wang Zhen

Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
18 April 2016
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Mr. Wang Zhen, aged 53, master degree candidate, and a member of the
Communist Party of China. He is the chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company. From 1983 to 1992, he worked for Xinjiang Airlines Aircraft Repair
Plant GETHEMTZE /N B FRIEHEIZRL) consecutively as the mechanic staff, the
machinist, the maintenance leader, and the deputy workshop director. From
1993 to 1999, he worked for Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. (ErI 22 & {5375 FR /A F])
consecutively as the mechanic staff and the vice captain of the engineering
department, the manager, the assistant to the department general manager
and the branch department manager of the maintenance department. From
October 1999 to January 2000, he was the vice general manager of the human
resources department at Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. From January 2000 to May
2000, he was the chief of the production operation center at Hainan Airlines Co.,
Ltd. From May 2000 to December 2002, he was consecutively the vice executive
president and the assistant of the executive president at Hainan Airlines Co,,
Ltd. From December 2002 to May 2003, he was the president of Sanya Phoenix
International Airport Co., Ltd. (=88 BVEBIFE 5 R /A F]). From March 2003
to November 2006, he was consecutively the chief executive officer and the
general manager of Hainan Meilan International Airport Company Limited (i
= R B PR 5 A% 10 B TR 2 F]). From November 2006 to January 2007, he
was the vice executive president of HNA Airport Group Limited (iEHiiE&5 5 E
BBR/AF]). From January 2007 to September 2008, he was the vice executive
president of HNA Airport Group Holdings Limited (EHIEIG 2% £ BTG BR A F)).
From September 2008 to July 2012, he worked for Sanya Phoenix International
Airport Co., Ltd. consecutively as the president, the deputy commander of the
construction management department, the executive chairman of the board
and the chairman of the board. From July 2012 to May 2013, he worked as the
deputy leader of the Meilan Airport aviation industrial park project promotion
Group of the airport management division at HNA Industrial Holdings (Group)
Co., Ltd. (BMIE R (£E]) HIR/AF]). From May 2013 to May 2014, he
was the vice chairman of the Company. He served as chairman of the Company
since May 2014.
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Mr. Yang Xiaobin, aged 45, obtained his bachelor degree in law from Jiangsu
University (YL&& AK£2) in 2009. He is an Executive Director and president of the
Company. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in civil aviation. He worked for
Qingan Aerospace Equipment Company (BFZZFMia% /A7), a state-owned
Company, from October 1992 to February 1994, and was the secretary of the
deputy chief executive and control room deputy safety officer of Haikou Meilan
International Airport Company Limited (1[0 3% B B FE %455 [R F (T2 F]) from
December 2000 to October 2002, the control room safety officer of the Company
from June 2003 to September 2004, and safety supervisor of the operation safety
office of the Company from September 2004 to May 2007, the control room
deputy general manager of the Company from July 2007 to December 2008,
the general manager (operation) of HNA Airport Group Company Limited from
December 2008 to August 2009, the chairman of Yichang Three Gorges Airport
Co., Ltd (HE ZIRHESERE(E/AF]). From September 2009 to September
2011, the deputy general manager of the Company from September 2011 to 18
March 2013 and the President of the Company from 19 March 2013

Mr. Gao Jian, aged 35, was appointed as the vice standing executive of the
Company on 30 March 2015 and was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 3 July 2015. Mr. Gao is an Executive Director and standing vice
president of the Company. He was graduated from the Civil Aviation University
of China, major in electronic information. He has extensive experience in human
resources and corporate governance. From October 2003 to November 2005,
Mr. Gao was a secretary of HNA Group Company Limited; from November 2005
to August 2007, he was an assistant to the secretary of the Board of HNA Group
Company Limited. From August 2007 to June 2008, he was head of secretary
department of HNA Group Company Limited; from June 2008 to December 2008,
was an officer of HNA Group Company Limited. He was a vice officer of HNA
Group Company Limited from December 2008 to June 2010; head of human
resources department of Jinhai Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. (&&= LRMHBERA
A]) from June 2010 to September 2014; and was vice president of Jinhai Heavy
Industry Co., Ltd. from October 2011 to March 2015. He served as the standing
vice president of the Company on 30 March 2015.
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Mr. Zhang Peihua, aged 44, is a certified public accountant of the PRC and has a
master degree in accounting. Mr. Zhang is an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Zhang was the accountant of the Hainan branch of China Construction Bank
(Fh B SR T YR 431 T) from July 1994 to January 1995, the chief accountant
of Hainan International Finance Company Limited ({7 BIFREA #5746 BR/A F)
from February 1995 to June 2000, the deputy manager of the budget control
office and supervisor of the financial control office of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd.
from September 2000 to August 2003, the assistant to chief accountant, chief
financial officer and chief information officer of Xi'an Minsheng Group Co., Ltd.
(T RAESEE & HBRZAF]) from August 2003 to September 2005, the deputy
general manager of financial control department of Chang’an Airlines Co., Ltd.
(EZMZEE R E E/AF]) from August 2005 to March 2006, the general manager
of the financial control department of HNA Hotel Holdings Ltd. GEHITIE S 0%
EEBFIR/AE] from March 2006 to November 2007, the chief financial officer
and general manager of the financial control department of Yangtze River Real
Estate Group Company Limited (35 TVl ESEEH R /A F]) from February 2006
to September 2007, the general manager of the financial control department
of Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited (K#THEVIIRIE
B (22 FFR/AF]) from August 2007 to February 2009, the chief financial
officer and general manager of the financial control department of Grand China
Shipping (YanTai) Co., Ltd. CK#T#Efn (o) BIRAF) from February
2009 to December 2009, the chief financial officer of Hainan Zhuxin Investment
Co., Ltd. (BFEFEEHRERMER/AF) from December 2009 to August 2010,
the chief financial officer of HNA Realty Group Company Limited (i ZE 1A%
(5£H) HIR/\F]) from August 2010 to December 2011
officer of HNA International Tourism Island Development and Construction
(Group) Company Limited (EHiTE PR i 0F 5 # a3 (SEHE) HBR/AF]) from
March 2011 to March 2012. He has been the chief financial officer of HNA Airport
Group Company Limited since February 2012, the chief financial officer of the

and the chief financial

Company since 23 August 2012 and the deputy general manager and chief

financial officer of the Company concurrently since 19 March 2013.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Wentai, aged 60, was re-appointed as a Non-executive Director and
vice chairman of the Company in July 2015. He has also served a member of
the strategic committee of the Company. Mr. Hu Wentai joined HNA Group
in June 2000. He working as the general manager of Hainan Henghe Property
Management Company Limited (EFERYIZEEHGR/AF]), the executive
vice president of Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited. Since
Mr. Hu joined the Company in 2002, he has held a number of senior positions
in the Company, including the chief operating officer and vice president of the
Company. In February 2006, he was also the chairman of Haikou New City Area
Construction Development Company Limited (- #3522 B 2 5 IR A F])
and the deputy general manager of Beijing HNA Realty Group Company Limited
ARy ZE £ EE R /A F]). Mr. Hu Wentai has extensive experience in the
area of airport management and project construction.

Mr. Chan Nap Kee, Joseph, aged 55, was re-appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in October 2013. Mr. Chan acquired his master's degree
from the University of Strathclyde in the major of International Marketing and a
diploma from Peking University in China Investment and Trade Study. He holds
licenses of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance),
and Type 9 (asset management) under Chapter 571 of Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance respectively. Mr. Chan has nearly 30 years management
experience in banking, investment banking and asset investment. Mr. Chan was
the deputy general manager of Credit Agricole Bank from 1986 to 1994, where
he was also in charge of China business. From 1992 to 1994, he was also the
co-head of Credit Agricole Asset Management South East Asia Limited. From
1994 to now, Mr. Chan has been a founding partner of Oriental Patron Financial
Group. He is also an executive director of Oriental Patron Asia Ltd. Mr. Chan was
appointed as an executive director of Kaisun Energy Group Limited (Stock Code:
8203), which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, in September 2008 and is the chairman of that Group. Mr. Chan was
appointed as a non-executive director of North Asia Strategic Holdings Limited
on 19 February 2013.
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Mr. Yan Xiang, aged 52, was re-appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in October 2013. Mr. Yan graduated from Peking University, where he
received a bachelor’s degree in Economics and a master’s degree in Economics.
From January 1988 to August 1991, he had been a teaching assistant and lecturer
in Economics at Peking University. After August 1991, he was a research fellow
with the Research Center of the People’s Government of Hainan Province, the
general manager of Hainan Securities Exchange Center and the president of
Hainan Securities Company Limited. He had been a director of Zhongfu Industrial
Co., Ltd. and an independent director of China United Travel Company Limited.
Mr. Yan is the Chairman of the China Region of the Oriental Patron Financial
Group and the President of the Oriental Patron Resources Investment Limited.
Mr. Yan had been the executor director of Hainan Development Promotion
Association, committee member of Experts Committee in Research of National
Debts and Futures and committee member of Credit Assessment Experts
Committee of China Credit Securities Assessment Limited.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Deng Tianlin, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in November 2014. He also acts as chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, the chairman of the Audit Committee and members
of the Nomination Committee and strategic committee of the Company. Mr.
Deng is a certified public accountant, a senior accountant and a guest professor
of Hainan University (& Fg A%2). Mr. Deng has extensive experience in the field
of finance and accounting. He previously served, among others, as the section
chief in the personnel division of Hubei Provincial Department of Finance (#
&S EUEE), a deputy director of Fang County Tax Bureau in Hubei Province (
WAL BB ), the chief of the loan section of the World Bank Group and
a deputy director of the Department of Agricultural Tax (E23Fi5%). Mr. Deng
was appointed by the Organization Department of the CPC Central Committee
(F gL #H #5%:56) to Hainan Provincial Department of Finance (g & B4 FEE) as
a director of the accounting department and the secretary general of Hainan
Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants (R &£ M &2t AlitH &) in
1990. Mr. Deng retired in 2009 and has been an independent director of Hainan
Airlines Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: Hainan Airlines: 600221; Hainan Airline B Shares:
900945) since April 2012.
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Mr. Fung Ching, Simon, aged 47, was re-appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company in October 2013. He has also served as the
chairman of the strategic committee and members of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Fung graduated from the
Queensland University of Technology in Australia with a bachelor’s degree,
majoring in accountancy. Mr. Fung is a Hong Kong resident. He is a fellow
member of the CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fung worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers
between 1994 and 2004, and he served as the chief financial officer and
secretary to the board of directors of Baoye Group Company Limited (ZF £ £E ]
A B R /A F]) (Stock Code: 2355.HK) between 2004 and 2010. Mr. Fung joined
Greentown China Holdings Limited (#kk B IR /AF]) (Stock Code:
3900.HK) in August 2010 and served as the chief financial officer and Company
secretary since then. Mr. Fung has over 11 years of experience in managing
finance and accounting functions, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising and
investor relations for a PRC Company listed in Hong Kong, and has over 10
years of experience in auditing, accounting and business advisory with a “Big-4"
international accounting firm. And Mr. Fung is also a non-executive director of
Baoye Group Company Limited currently.

Mr. George F Meng, aged 72, was re-appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in October 2013. He has also served as a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Meng graduated from
Civil Aviation University of China (1B ERAEERE) in 1966, where he studied radio
communication and English language. In 1972, he entered into Tianjin Foreign
Studies University (FIRINEIEEAERL) for further study of English language.
From 1984 to 199
sponsored by Aviation Training Services, Long Island, New York, Advanced

1, he once studied FAA Aircraft Dispatcher Training Course

Training in Aviation Course with Ansett Airlines, and MBA course at Oklahoma
City University. During the years of 1966 to 1988, Mr. Meng served various
positions including Radio Station Master of Communication Department of CAAC
Chengdu Administration, Dean of the Technical English Department of Civil
Aviation University of China, and Deputy Director of CAAC Training Center. After
1991, he was a director and the general manager of China Resource Ltd., USA.
From 2000 to now, Mr. Meng is the president of Soaring Eagle Industrial LLC,
USA. Since September 2010, he has been the principal of Northern New Jersey
Huaxia Chinese School (non- profit organization). He has served as the general
manager (United States) and certified senior translator of Hua Ling Consultant
Inc. in Toronto, Canada since January 2012
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Mr. He Linji, aged 59. He was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in May 2015, and served as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company and a member of the strategic
committee. Mr. He graduated from Hainan University (EF A£2) in economic
law (undergraduate course) in December 1999 and graduated from Wuhan
University (B A E2) in economic law (postgraduate course) in December 2000.
He is a third-grade senior judge (==L E) recognized by the Supreme
People’s Court in the PRC in August 2006. Mr. He has extensive experience in
the field of law. He served successively as the vice president and the president
of Haikou Military Court of Guangzhou Military Area (/M EE & ¥ 1 B 22E %)
from January 1992 to August 1998. He also successively held the positions of the
deputy chief of discipline inspection Group, the director of supervisory office and
the presiding judge of case filing chamber and member of judicial committee of
Haikou Intermediate People’s Court from September 1998 to February 2004. Mr.
He was the president of the People’ s Court of Longhua District, Haikou (i T
FEFEM A\ RIEPE) from March 2004 to August 2010. Subsequently, he served as
a minister-level judge (IEEE#EFHIE) of Haikou Intermediate People’ s Court
from September 2010 to September 2013.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Dong Guiguo, aged 53, was re-appointed as a Supervisor of the Company
on 3 July 2015 and has served as the chairman of the supervisory committee
of the Company. Mr. Dong graduated from Civil Aviation University of China
majoring in aircraft engine. He has pursued further studies in China Europe
International Business School. He is an aviation engineer and accountant. He has
extensive experience in civil aviation and finance. Mr. Dong has worked at civil
aviation maintenance base in Beijing, Beijing Aircraft Maintenance Engineering
Co., Ltd., HNA Group Purchase Management Department, HNA Group Airport
Management Department and HNA Airport Group Company Limited. Since
October 2000, he has respectively served as deputy manager of the aviation
material and equipment procurement center of the procurement department of
HNA Group, deputy general manager of airport management department of HNA
Group, general manager of Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited,
executive chairman’s assistant, general manager of the finance department and
general manager of the project management department, vice chairman, vice
president and chief financial officer of HNA Airport Group Company Limited. Mr.
Dong was appointed as a Director of the Company from March 2006 to October
2008 and become the Financial Officer of the Company in December 2006. He
was appointed as the Chief Financial Director of the Company in April 2007. In
December 2008, he resigned from the Company. Currently, Mr. Dong is the vice
president of HNA Infrastructure Holding Group Company Limited (ST ZERE 2%
LE£EFRR/AF]) and a Supervisor and the chairman of the supervisory committee
of the Company.
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Literature. He w.

and concurrently Gansu Youth . nce worked as newspaper
editor and reporter for Gansu Daily and as chief reporter stationed at Gansu for
People’s Daily. In June 1994, he was re-designated to China Civil Aviation News
working as the chief editor and Party branch secretary and was responsible for
the management of China Civil Aviation News. He has been the vice chairman
of Gansu Province Journalist Association, the president of the Association for
Resident Correspondent in Gansu Province, the managing director of China Press
Cultural Advancement Association and a deputy chairman of the Association of

China Industrial Newspapers.

Mr. Han Aimin, aged 45, graduated from Beijing Business College (1t & &£
[5%) in 1995. He was re-appointed as the staff representative Supervisor of the
Company on 28 August 2014. He joined the Company in November 2008. From
July 1995 to June 2004, Mr. Han worked at the freight department of Hainan
Airlines Co., Ltd. He served as the vice general manager of Haikou freight center
of the marketing department of Hainan Airlines Co., Ltd. from June 2004 to March
2007. He was the general manager of the freight Company under Hainan Meilan
International Airport Company Limited from November 2008 to December 2009,
and the general manager of Hainan Meilan International Airport Cargo Co., Ltd.
from January 2009 to September 2010. He has been the general manager of the
business development department of the Company since September 2010. He
served as an assistant to president of the Company since December 2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wen Jiang, aged 41, was appointed as vice president of the Company on
30 March 2015. Graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics and
Law (FH R A 8 EE KER), major in investment and economic management as
well as business law, he has gained extensive experience in respect of capital
operation, securities business and securities margin trading. From August 2001 to
January 2008, he was an assistant to general manager of the securities business
department and a manager of investment cooperation team of the securities
business department of HNA Group Company Limited (KETHEVIFTIER: (£
) HER/AF). From January 2008 to February 2011, he was an assistant to
president of Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited; was a
manager of strategic planning department of Grand China Logistics Holding
(Group) Company Limited from January 2008 to March 2010. He was also a
general manager of project development and management department of
Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from March 2010 to
October 2011
Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from February 2011

; vice financial officer and assistant to president of Grand China
to August 2011,
chief financial officer and assistant to president of Grand China Logistics Holding
(Group) Company Limited from August 2011 to January 2012, vice president of
Grand China Logistics Holding (Group) Company Limited from January 2012 to
June 2012 and assistant to president of HNA Logistics Co., Ltd. He served as vice

president of the Company since 30 March 2015

Mr. Wu Jian, aged 39, was appointed as deputy general manager of the
Company on 19 March 2013. Mr. Wu graduated from the computer science
department of Civil Aviation University of China and is a assistant engineer. He
was the manager of the service support department, manager of the operation
department, general manager of the IT department and the assistant to the
executive officer of Hainan Airlines Aviation Information System Co., Ltd. ({8
R ZE(E B AHA FR/ATD), the general manager of the operation department
of HNA Airport Group Company Limited, deputy general manager of the airport
operation department of HNA Infrastructure Industry Group Limited, the manager
of the IT office of airport management department of HNA Industrial Holdings
(Group) Co,, Ltd. He has extensive experience in the implementation of airport
IT system and intelligent system.
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is engaged in the management and operation of the Company since 2002 and
fully participated in the listing of H shares of Hainan Meilan International Airport
Company Limited and worked as a board secretary of the Parent Company of
the Company, Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited. He has also
been responsible for handling the results disclosure and daily operation of the
Board of the Company after its listing.
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provnciad governmvient and Hadkou mumcapad government attoch great importonce
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ollowonce are 1ssued by both the provincial and mumcipod govermimvents to support
the development of Meddan Arport.
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The Board has approved to present the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in both aeronautical and non-aeronautical
businesses. Its aeronautical business mainly consists of the provision of terminal
facilities, ground handling services and passenger services. Its non-aeronautical
business mainly includes commercial and retail spaces leasing at Meilan Airport,
airport-related business franchising, advertising space leasing, car parking
business, cargo handling services and sales of consumable goods.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company conducted its business
within one business segment, i.e. the operation of an airport and provision of
related services in the PRC. The Company also operated within one geographical
segment and its revenues are primarily generated from its assets located in the
PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segment data is presented.

In 2015, the Group's total revenue amounted to RMB1,063,430,885, representing
an increase of 20.57% as compared to 2014. Income from aviation business
amounted to RMB580,049,375, representing an increase of 17.42% as compared
to 2014. Income from non-aviation business amounted to RMB483,381,510,
representing an increase of 24.58% as compared to 2014.

The total passenger throughput for the year reached 16.1670 million, flight
takeoff and landing for transportation up to 121,827 times and cargo throughput
up to 246,787.50 tons, with a year-on-year growth of 16.7%, 15.1% and 13.4%,
respectively, in Meilan Airport.

In the non-aviation business income, franchise income accumulated to
RMB256,458,436, representing a significant year-on-year increase of 22.98%,
where freight and packaging income reached RMB104,666,441, representing
a year-on-year remarkable increase of 40.72%; and rental income reached
RMB38,486,680, representing a year-on-year slight increase of 1.76%. In addition,
parking fee income also reached RMB17,023,384, representing a year-on-year
increase of 6.03%. Meanwhile, VIP room income, recorded a continuous drop

owing to the influence of the government policies.
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the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, and the financial positions of the Group and
the Company as at 31 December 2015 are set out in page 131 to page 138 of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For business review of the Group as at 31 December 2015, please refer to page
29 to page 37 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

In 2015, to implement sustainable green, low-carbon strategy, the Group
launched “green airport” project in full swing. Details about the Group's 2015
environmental protection measures and effects are set out on page 48 to page
52 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the business operation of the Group had
complied with the relevant environmental laws and regulations.
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MAJOR OPERATION RISKS

In 2015, the Company completed the Promotion Works. The Company also

formulated and delivered “Risk Management Operation Manual of HNA

Infrastructure Company Limited”, “Internal Audit Charter of HNA Infrastructure

Company Limited” and “Internal Audit Three-Year Strategic Plan of HNA

Infrastructure Company Limited” etc. with different series of risk management

and internal control system in 2015, made scientific analysis and sorting of the

deficiencies or potential risks found in the operation and identified the key risk

points affecting the Company's operation. Amongst all, the top-3 risks affecting

the usual operation of the Company and the weakening/avoiding measures

issued by the Company are as follows:
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Names of Risks Risk Descriptions Measures
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Risk of flight release  Reduced normal rate of flight release and flight on- (1) Speed up the exploitation of airspace
normal rate time rate due to airline defaults (including aircraft resources to increase air routes;

104

maintenance, flight dispatching, etc.) or non-airline
factors (e.g. weather conditions, air traffic control,
mechanical trouble, passenger, etc.) may result in that
the CAAC reduced the flight number or restricted the
flight number increase of Meilan Airport, which may
reduce or make passenger traffic volume unable to
grow, thus leading to a major adverse impact on the
economic benefit of the Company.

Improve the efficiency of passengers boarding
and efficiency of flight operation; increase
parking aprons by promoting the construction
of airport infrastructure, and optimize the
distribution of lounge bridges and dispatching
of shuttle buses by IT system construction so
as to further improve the efficiency of flight
operation; improve the professional skills of the
first-line employees by arranging professional
skill training and qualification certification so
as to improve the working efficiency of the
first-line service personnel; and improve the
efficiency of passenger boarding by installing
advanced security inspection equipment and
other intelligent equipment in Meilan Airport;
and

Raise the utilization of daily lower-peak time by
focusing on the cooperative development with
airlines to cultivate the air routes in lower-peak
time period.
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Risk of media malice
speculation and
publicity

In the event that any adverse or false news report (1)
or negative information about the Company occurs,

the dearth of standard and efficient crisis to public
relation contingency mechanism may lead to failure

for effectively monitoring public opinions, and
timely guiding the public opinion and resolving the
contradictions, which may bring a major adverse
impact on the corporate brand image or reputation.

Establish a systematic public opinion collection
and reporting mechanism. Engage university
teachers, quality association personnel,
excellent company employees and media
reporters as social supervisors to supervise the
operation and service quality of Meilan Airport,
and radically improve the quality of services
and services level of Meilan Airport so as to
inhibit the occurrence of incidents affecting
the corporate image;

Establish a handling mechanism to tackle
public opinions and public relation crisis.
Keep a good cooperation relationship with
the professional public relation companies so
as to be able to work out a solution to public
relation crisis in case of any malice speculation
incident; and

Actively carry out and partake in the activities
favorable for displaying the positive image and
increase the social reputation of the Company,
and encourage/organize the social benefit and

environment protection activities.
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Names of Risks Risk Descriptions Measures
BB £ 7 JeB e i 3t FE& 15 e
BERBRREEWENET BHE —LERARRN TN AENFERES (1) BURSECHERBKEERES - BERS
EYEN BEEER  BRRZAE ARNGHAMES e BEMEAE  ARREFET - K

RIS T ARY - ETCRE AR EEEIE
KB e Bm s EMTF BB TIES @ AIERGA
RANMETRABBHEREATNTE

BLESERHERBEEEER - HXH
BWENELRIGETES  HAE LRAE
WIS IRIEE 8 RRIBKF - WIREBHIF
ERRRERNFMHEE

BYBESREMEHAMEIERS - BE
ENRBARRARBRESERER  REE
WIESHELRERREEEEABEE
TR R

RBRARK - 282ENRABA QB IEEF
REBARNRMEGEENEE  TE
HAEFARTEAEMRFREN LD -

Policy risk Any change in the return subsidy proportion of civil
aviation development fund and the airplane take-off
and landing and other relevant charges due to the
change in government polity or the issuance of new
regulation may cause a major impact on the aviation
business revenue and even the total profit of the
Company.
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Collect policy information and take timely
measures. The Company has established a
policy information collection and reporting
mechanism to facilitate the management and
relevant departments in timely grasping the
policy changes trend and taking measures to
cope with; and

By rationally planning the terminal function
layout and updating the commercial
positioning, the Company may increase the
non-aviation business revenue from the
franchise, freight & packing, rent and parking
lot so as to reduce the dependence on aviation
business revenue.
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In the year 2015, the Company conducted two times review on its risk
management and internal control systems in order to enhance its effectiveness
of the Company's risk management and internal control systems.
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EVENTS AFTER THE RELEVANT PERIOD

At the extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company held
on 30 December 2015, the Company was approved for private placement of
Renminbi corporate bonds with a maximum principal amount of RMB3 billion and
maturity of not more than 5 years before 31 December 2017 (the “Non-public
Issuance of Renminbi Corporate Bonds"). The Company submitted application
to Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“Shenzhen Stock Exchange”) in January 2016 and
has obtained the approval in February 2016.

The Non-public Issuance of Renminbi Corporate Bonds will help the Company to
raise funds for projects construction, to repay of the bank loans and to improve
the capital structure so as to strengthen the Company’s risk resistance ability
in the tighter capital market. All the proceeds from the Non-public Issuance
of Renminbi Corporate Bonds will be used by the Company to finance the
construction of the terminal complex project and the Phase Il expansion project
of Meilan Airport, to repay stock of financing debts and to supplement working
capitals.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

In the year of 2015, Meilan Airport collaborated with different organizations to
host a series of charitable compaigns, among which, RMB650,000 in aggregate
had been donated to help more than 400 people, which were almost organized
by our employees voluntarily to help families in poverty or ailing co-workers,
exemplifying the virtue of “Meilan Family”.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2016, the Company will further deepen transformation to adapt in the market.
Whilst developing the throughput of the base company, the development of
small and medium-sized unnavigable airports are continuously promoted. It
will enhance the depth and width of route network of Meilan Airport. Based
on the market characteristics, it will focus on strategy layout of “Belt and Road
Initiative”, implement the development strategy of Southeast Asia hub airport.
It will continue to seek the government'’s policy support and strive to improve
the standards of airlines incentives, and concern about the 3 major problems
on "route, moment and punctuality”, seize “operational efficiency”, promote
"patronage rate”, perform the market development work at the prime time.

NON-AVIATION BUSINESS

In 2016, whilst the Company proactively seeks for customers to broaden its
customer base in the aviation market, it will unearth the potentials of business
resources. It will partake in the confirmation of integrated business model and the
overall development work, strive for realization of gains, maximization of profits;
further strengthening the operational control as well as strengthen business
resources in building up the investment system. It will continue the cooperation
amongst its offshore duty free franchisee, initiate whole cargo flight business,
strive for whole cargo flight subsidy policies, introduce regular whole cargo flight
schedule. It will also change the concept of developing VIP market in order to
have an increase in VIP room income.
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In the meantime, the Company also carries out work to enhance its brand,
striving for realizing the goal of overall SKYTRAX five-star. It will optimize its
finance structure to ensure a balance in funding base. It will strengthen its safety
control, and smoothly realize the 18th safety operating year for Meilan Airport.
It will promote infrastructure with all strength, and to ensure there is a stable
progress on the construction of every aspect on the infrastructure project for
Meilan Airport, while vigorously promoting construction and planning of GTC
in an attempt to turn Meilan Airport into a comprehensive three-dimensional
transportation center based in northern Hainan with coverage of the whole
Hainan Province and Southeast Asia within 5 years.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has passed the resolution, at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company on Wednesday, 18 May 2016, to recommend the payment of
a final dividend on or before Thursday, 14 July 2016 of RMB0.120 per share
(tax inclusive) to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
Company'’s register of members on Sunday, 29 May 2016 (the “2015 Final
Dividend"). The 2015 Final Dividend shall be subject to approval by shareholders

at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held by the Company.

The dividends to H-shareholders are declared in Renminbi but paid in HKS. The
exchange rate of Renminbi to HKS to be adopted shall be the average middle
exchange rate of the five business days preceding and including the date of
declaration of such dividends at the forthcoming annual general meeting on

Wednesday, 18 May 2016 as announced by the People’s Bank of China.

According to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC ( { P EE AR LA B %
FriS#i%) ), which took effect on 1 January 2008, and its implementation rules
and the relevant interpretation by tax authorities in the PRC, when a Company
makes distribution to non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear
on the H-share register of the Company, such Company is required to withhold
and pay on behalf of such shareholders an enterprise income tax at a rate of 10%
in general (except as required otherwise by the laws, regulations and tax treaties
regarding tax revenue). Any shares registered in the name of a non-individual
shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominee or trustee,
or other organisation and group, are deemed as shares held by non-resident
enterprise shareholders. As such, the dividends that such shareholder is entitled

to are subject to the enterprise income tax.
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The Company will strictly comply with the laws and/or requirements of relevant
government departments, and will withhold and pay the enterprise income tax
on behalf of its non-resident enterprise shareholders whose names appear on
the H-share register of the Company on the record date. The Company will take
no responsibility and will not deal with any request in relation to any delay or
error in ascertaining the identities of shareholders, nor will the Company handle
any disputes arising from the arrangement of withholding tax. However, the
Company may provide assistance within its capability.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company's register of members will be closed from Monday, 18 April 2016 to
Wednesday, 18 May 2016 (both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be qualified for attending and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company, all share transfer instruments, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and forms of transfer, shall be lodged with the
Company's share registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 April 2016.

The Company's register of members will be closed from Tuesday, 24 May 2016
to Sunday, 29 May 2016 (both days inclusive), during which no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to be qualified for the 2015 Final Dividend, all share
transfer instruments, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and forms
of transfer, shall be lodged with the Company’s share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23 May 2016. The Company will pay the 2015
Final Dividend on or before Thursday, 14 July 2016 upon approval at the annual
general meeting of the Company.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group and the Company are set out in
Note 4(21) to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2015 and the
change in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 4(8) and Note 4(9) to the
financial statements.
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TAXATION

Details of taxation of the Group and the Company (including all tax preferences)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 3 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Change in reserves of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in Note 4(26) and Note 4(27) to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of capital reserve and statutory reserve of
the Company amounted to approximately RMB683,509,755 and approximately
RMB246,394,231, respectively, which were determined in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC and China’s accounting standards and regulations. In
addition, pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Company’s distributable
retained profits amounted to approximately RMB1,816,450,020.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are set out in Note
5(1) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The largest customer and the top five largest customers of the Group represented
16.46% and 43.98% of the total sales of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015, respectively.

The largest supplier and the top five largest suppliers of the Group represented
9.87% and 25.45% of the total operating costs of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015, respectively.

The Group and customers as well as the supplier comply with the principle of
fairness, transparency and friendliness for a couple of years. The Group believes
that with the expansion of the business scope and increase of business volume,
the Group will comply with regulated procurement and auditing system and
cultivate good relationship with the customers and suppliers.

The Company entered into relevant transactions with the Parent Company, details
of which are set out in the section headed “The Connected Transactions” below.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2015, none of
the Directors, their close associates or, to the knowledge of the Directors, any
shareholders holding more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company were
interested in the top five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group and the employees established a harmonious relationship through
the staff caring activities and the social welfare campaigns. For details, please
refer to page 53 to page 54 to this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued share capital of the Company
was 473,213,000, of which:

BHMERERAERAR
—ENEFER

Report of the Directors € # ¥ %2 &

HES ZERF

AEEBBEHAKHEIHNETD YESY
MR A D ERAKE S TRISAFNEE
SERMI - HERSRAFHESIESEAE -

N
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Percentage of

Number of Shares total issued shares

RE  HERITARG LS
Domestic shares A& IR 246,300,000 52%
H Shares HA% 226,913,000 48%
Total 4R E 473,213,000 100%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, so far as known to the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than a Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken
to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the issued voting shares of any other member of the
Group or had any option in respect of such capital, or would be required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DOMESTIC SHARES

FTERRHOKROER
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Number of Percentage of Percentage of
Class of ordinary domestic total issued
Name of shareholder Capacity shares shares shares issued share capital
HERT HERT
RER BRA
R A7 514 R 43 % 51 EEREE BOt AL
Haikou Meilan International Beneficial Corporate 237,500,000 (L) 96.43% 50.19%
Airport Company Limited owner
(Note 1)
=3RBSRI 2 EnEAA i
BREERA

(BfsE1)
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Name of shareholders

BB . BEA
BRR & BERER SEREE HRBE Dt B
Zhang Gaobo (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Rk (FiEE2) B2 IVNGIE
Zhang Zhi Ping (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
RETF (PaE2) B IVNIE
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Limited (Note 2)
Oriental Patron Financial Services Group B AR ER
Limited (Fff&F2)
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited Interest of controlled corporations 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
(Note 2)
Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited B AR ER
(FizE2)
Oriental Patron Resources Investment Beneficial owner 94,343,000 (L) 41.58% 19.94%
Limited (Note 2)
Oriental Patron Resources Investment BERBEAA
Limited (P7¥2)
UBS AG (Note 3) Beneficial owner, security interests 27,174,400 (L) 11.98% 5.74%
in shares and interests of
controlled corporations
UBS AG (ii5E3) ERBEAA  HROFBERERE
Y SRt VNGl 5
Beneficial owner 15,000 (S) 0.01% 0.00%

BREAA



BRRER

EERHE

HR B 2t

Bt

UBS Group AG (Note 4)

UBS Group AG (ff&£4)

ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Note 5)
ARC Capital Holdings Limited (Kf#¥5)

ARC Capital Partners Limited (Note 5)
ARC Capital Partners Limited (FfizE5)

Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Asia Opportunity
Fund LP. (FiizE5)

Pacific Alliance Equity
Partners Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Equity Partners

Limited (Ff3E5)

Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management

Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Group Asset
Management Limited (P &E5)

PAG Holdings Limited (Note 5)
PAG Holdings Limited (Pi{zE5)

Pacific Alliance Group Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Group Limited (P &ES)

Security interest in shares
and interest of controlled
corporations

HE M B REERR
RS A RS

Interest of controlled corporations
IR R

Interest of controlled corporations
St VNG £

Investment manager

REKE

Interest of controlled corporations

Interest of controlled
corporations
AR R

Investment manager

RARE

Interest of controlled corporations

LN

Interest of controlled corporations
et VNG 5

26,817,400 (L)

83,000 (5)

32,788,500 (L)

32,788,500 (L)

32,788,500 (L)

32,788,500 (L)

32,788,500 (L)

32,788,500 (L)

32,788,500 (L)

11.82%

0.04%

14.45%

14.45%

14.45%

14.45%

14.45%

14.45%

14.45%

5.67%

0.00%

6.93%

6.93%

6.93%

6.93%

6.93%

6.93%

6.93%



Name of shareholders

RRAE R ER EERHA HREZ Bt
Pacific Alliance Investment Interest of controlled corporations 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Management Limited (Note 5)
Pacific Alliance Investment SN AR
Management Limited (Bfi#E5)
Walden Ventures Limited (Note 5) Beneficial owner 32,788,500 (L) 14.45% 6.93%
Walden Ventures Limited (PfizE5) EnBEAA
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (Note 6) Beneficial owner 18,164,508(L) 8.01% 3.84%
and security shares
interest in shares
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft (Fii5E6) EnkEB ARERN
FHAREER
Greenwoods Asset Investment manager 13,844,000 (L) 6.10% 2.93%
Management Limited (Note 7)
Greenwoods Asset Management HEEE
Limited (Fff&E7)
JP Morgan Chase & Co. (Note 8) Beneficial owner and custodian 13,607,488 (L) 5.99% 2.88%
corporation/approved lending
agent
JP Morgan Chase & Co. (FitzE8) EnkBARTE
EB /A
RIEA
Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. (Note 9) Investment manager 11,387,747 (L) 5.02% 241%

Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. (Ff&9)

Notes:

hEgE

it

1. Haikou Meilan International Airport Company Limited is a Company established in 1. SO EBEEE#ISERETRATNETBEEARNK

the PRC and is the controlling shareholder of the Company. o RARDRRZIERIRE -



Zhang Gaobo and Zhang Zhi Ping held 49% and 51% interest in Oriental Patron
Financial Group Limited, respectively. Oriental Patron Financial Group Limited held
95% interest in Oriental Patron Financial Services Group Limited. Oriental Patron
Resources Investment Limited was wholly-owned by Oriental Patron Financial
Services Group Limited.

According to the disclosure of interest filed by UBS AG on the website of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, among the 27,174,400 shares in the Company, UBS AG was
deemed to hold 8,896,000 shares through its security interest in those shares and held
15,000 shares as beneficial owner. UBS Fund Services (Luxembourg) S.A., UBS Global
Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd and UBS Global Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited were all wholly-owned by UBS AG, and were beneficially holding 14,194,100
shares, 2,164,300 shares and 1,905,000 shares in the Company, respectively.

UBS Group AG held 100% equity interest in UBS AG, which, according to the disclosure
of interest filed by UBS Group AG on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
was deemed to hold 8,896,000 shares through security interest and held 115,000
long position shares and 83,000 short position shares as beneficial owner. UBS Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Ltd, UBS Asset Management (Singapore) Ltd, UBS Fund
Management (Luxembourg) S.A. and UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG, all
indirectly wholly-owned by UBS Group AG, were beneficially holding 1,170,000 shares,
2,164,300 shares, 14,468,100 shares and 4,000 shares in the Company, respectively.

PAG Holdings Limited held 99.17% interest in Pacific Alliance Group Limited, which
in turn held 90% interest in Pacific Alliance Investment Management Limited. Pacific
Alliance Investment Management Limited held 52.53% interest in Pacific Alliance
Equity Partners Limited. Pacific Alliance Equity Partners Limited held 100% interest
in ARC Capital Partners Limited. ARC Capital Partners Limited was deemed to be
interested in 32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. ARC Capital
Holdings Limited is a corporation controlled by ARC Capital Partners Limited for
the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. ARC Capital Holdings Limited was holding
46.67% interest in Walden Ventures Limited which in turn held 32,788,500 H shares
of the Company in its capacity as a beneficial owner. Pacific Alliance Investment
Management Limited held 100% interest in Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management
Limited. Pacific Alliance Group Asset Management Limited was deemed to be
interested in 32,788,500 shares in its capacity as investment manager. Pacific Alliance
Asia Opportunity Fund L.P. is a corporation controlled by Pacific Alliance Group Asset
Management Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO. Pacific Alliance Asia
Opportunity Fund L.P. held 36.67% interest in Walden Ventures Limited which was
in turn held 32,788,500 H shares of the Company.
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6. Among the 18,164,508 shares in the Company, Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft was
deemed to hold 18,161,000 shares as person having a security interest in shares and
held 3,508 shares as beneficial owner.

7. Greenwoods Asset Management Limited was wholly-owned by Greenwoods
Asset Management Holdings Limited, which in turn was held 81% by Jiang Jinzhi.
Greenwoods Asset Management Limited holds 13,844,000 shares of the Company in
the capacity of investment manager.

8. Among the 13,607,488 shares in the Company, JP Morgan Chase & Co. was deemed
to hold 12,963,588 shares as custodian corporation/approved lending agent and held
643,900 shares as beneficial owner.

9. Svenska Handelsbanken AB Publ. held 11,387,747 shares in the Company by virtue
of its capacity as investment manager.

10. (L) and (S) represent long position and short position respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, so far as known to the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, no other person (not being the
Directors, Supervisors, and chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other member of the Group, or had any option in respect
of such capital; or would be required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives
of the Company had any interests and short positions in the shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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THE CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BEXZER

The Parent Company is the controlling shareholder of the Company as it holds ~ BFR Bl#58 A2 A]50.19%H i #E - RN ER)HE
50.19% interest in the Company, and accordingly is a connected person of the ~ BRARER - HULTFAA R EINBEEA L - A
Company. Details of connected transactions between the Parent Company and &t A RIMFER SR FIBEFIENT -

the Company are set below:

1. AIRPORT COMPOSITE SERVICES BY PARENT 1. HE XS REKEGESRE 21

COMPANY (THE “SERVICE AGREEMENT"”) = ([R%wm=]
Date: 28 November 2013 WA —E—=F+—H=-+/\H
Parties: the Company and Parent Company FIHTT AR REAE
Subject matters: pursuant to the Service Agreement, Parent Company FRBAR  BRERBEHRE  ERZLELRRD
has agreed to provide or procure any third party if necessary with the AIERAEMNBERT @ MIBARREREESE
Company’s consent to provide to the Company the following services: A% = F AR TREA TR : QREZR
(a) security guard service; (b) cleaning and environment maintenance; (c) % BERRIIRIRRE (OB KEEBEYRE
sewage and refuse processing; (d) power and energy supply and equipment B BN REREERZEEEL  @F
maintenance; (e) passengers and luggage security inspection; and (f) other BERITFELZERE  ROARBIMHRECE
services required by the Company. fth AR T ©
Price and payment: charges as to the service in items (a) to (c) above will BREME L@ = ()ERE KB EIRIE
be determined in accordance with the cost incurred by Parent Company in B R AERMZERBE TS &2 BAS M
providing such services plus a 5% management fee; charges as to the service SHEREBEMET  Lili(d)BRBKEFIR
in item (d) above will be determined in accordance with the cost incurred BENRISRBHZERBETS R ZKAS M
by Parent Company in providing such service plus a 25% management fee; BHEREMET « Fili(e)BRFWE KR
charges as to the service in item (e) above shall be calculated in accordance BEMBHE CEEAE - WHARARK
with the standards prescribed by CAAC and collected by the Company BIARMA B ZE AR - & B (hIEHE
on behalf of Parent Company from the relevant airlines; and charges as b AR 75 Uk 5 16 22 AR A5 B P B IER T B0 P9 48 7E &Y
to other services in item (f) above shall be calculated by reference to the TEEZEE (F) KL BEZIZERZR
pricing standards prescribed by the relevant PRC government authorities TEEBEESRK AN INERELEFE -
(if any), or, in the absence of the same, the industry pricing standards or a REEEFNEFEZN - BRBEHE T
cost plus mark-up fee basis. FRFERRRERS 2 BB RIRR— AR
¥BHIETE -
The service fee shall be paid either on a quarterly or an annual basis and will RE BRI IZZENARFESN - KhRBES
be determined by the parties to the Service Agreement depending on the FRBEE AR RERSER IR R
type of services to be provided by the Parent Company and in accordance BHEE - REARFR=_Z—=F+—H
with normal business practices. According to the announcement of the ZHNB2ZRE - REBBER_ZE—LFE
Company dated 28 November 2013, the annual cap for transactions under M 5REE A ARB236000007T c HZEZ
the Service Agreement in 2015 was RMB23,600,000. As at 31 December T—AF+_A=+—HBit —E—AFE
2015, the actual amount for 2015 was RMB22,171,223, which did not exceed BEREAEEEAEARK22,171,22370 © KB H
the annual cap for the year. ZEERHRE -
Term: a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2014 and ending B MEANR=F A-_Z—NE—A
on 31 December 2016. —ARE_T-—RFTA=T—H1-
For details of the Service Agreement, please refer to the announcement of EERBHENTE  BRHAQRAZZE
the Company dated 28 November 2013. —=F+—AZTN\AHNRE -
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OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

118

CONSTRUCTION OF THE TERMINAL EXPANSION PROJECT
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT (“EXPANSION PROJECT
INVESTMENT AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT?")

On 12 December 2012, the Company and Parent Company entered into
the Expansion Project Investment and Construction Agreement, details of
which are set out below.

Date: 12 December 2012
Parties: the Company and Parent Company

Subject matters: pursuant to the Expansion Project Investment and
Construction Agreement, Parent Company shall continue to complete the
construction of the terminal expansion project (the "Project”) carried out
by Parent Company according to the original schedule previous agreed
by the Company and Parent Company, unless the schedule of the Project
is adjusted due to the reasons beyond the control of the Company and
Parent Company.

The funds provided by the Company to Parent Company under the
Expansion Project Investment and Construction Agreement could be
used to pay for the consideration for the transfer of the Project as agreed
between the parties in the future. Parent Company and Company agree
that the actual construction cost of the Project as audited by a competent
independent auditor upon completion of the construction of the Project
shall not exceed 110% of the estimated construction cost of RMB876,500,000.

Consideration: under the Expansion Project Investment and Construction
Agreement, the Company will provide funds to Parent Company according
to the progress of the construction of the Project based on the estimated
construction cost of the Project in the amount of RMB876,500,000 and
the land use right in the amount of RMB150,180,000, which in total is
RMB1,026,680,000. The amount of RMB439,000,000 has already been paid by
the Company to Parent Company according to the acquisition agreement
(entered between the Company and the Parent Company dated 26 August
2011) prior to the termination of such agreement shall be used to offset the
total investment under the Expansion Project Investment and Construction
Agreement. The accumulated Project construction fee payments made by
the Company to Parent Company up to 31 December 2015 amounted to
RMB733,361,200 (31 December 2014: RMB643,361,200).

For details of the Expansion Project Investment and Construction
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12
December 2012.
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On 21 August 2015,
Phase Il Expansion Investment and Construction Agreement, details of

mpany and Parent Company entered into the

which are set out below.

Date: 21 August 2015

Parties: the Company and Parent Company

Subject matters: pursuant to the Phase Il Expansion Investment and
Construction Agreement, the Company has agreed to provide funds
for building the Company’s construction project, with the amount
of approximately RMB7.158 billion. Parent Company will serve as the
project representative of the airport project, and will be responsible for
the organization and supervision of the implementation of the airport
construction plan and the funds raising issues of the Parent Company
construction project until its completion and acceptance.

Unless otherwise agreed between the Company and the Parent Company,
the Parent Company has agreed to register the ownership of the relevant
asset constituting the Company’s construction project in the name of the
Company upon the completion and acceptance of the airport construction,
including but not limited to the land using rights and property ownership
of the buildings. The ownership of assets of the Parent Company of the
construction project will be held by the Parent Company.

The Parent Company has irrevocably agreed, undertaken and confirmed that
the Company has the right to occupy, use and benefit from and dispose of
assets constituting the Company’s construction project without paying any
money to the Parent Company to the extent permitted by applicable PRC
laws before the registration of assert ownership constituting the Company's
construction project in the name of the Company.

For details of the Phase Il Expansion Investment and Construction
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21
August 2015.
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Consideration: Pursuant to the Phase Il Expansion Investment and
Construction Agreement, the Company will provide all the funding covering
the construction of the Company’s construction project, the estimated
total amount is about RMB7.158 billion. Restricted by the airport project’s
completion and closing report which requires approval of the relevant
bodies (if required) and the assets invested by and registered under
the name of the Company upon the completion and acceptance of the
airport project. It is estimated that the maximum amount of investment
will have to be further adjusted. In the event that any factor is beyond the
Company'’s control and foreseeability, leading to the investment amount
exceeds RMB7.158 billion, the Company will seek shareholder’s approval
and make further disclosure in accordance with compliant regulations in
the Listing Rules.

Expected date of completion: expected to complete and to pass the
acceptance by relevant authorities by the end of 2020.

HAINAN MEILAN AIRPORT ASSET MANAGEMENT
LIMITED’S EQUITY TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“EQUITY
TRANSFER AGREEMENT")

On 13 November 2015, the Company and the Parent Company entered into
the Equity Transfer Agreement, details of which are set out below.

Date: 13 November 2015
Parties: the Company and the Parent Company

Subject matters: pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement, the
Company agreed to acquire 100% equity interests in Meilan Airport Assets
Management, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Parent Company. Upon
the acquisition, the Company will directly hold 100% equity interests in
Meilan Airport Assets Management, thus becoming the sole shareholder
of Meilan Airport Assets Management.
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of the equity
capital contribution obligation by the Parent Company to Meilan Airport
Assets Management.

The consideration shall be paid by two installments as follows:

(i) RMB574,560,000 (being 95% of the total consideration) shall be payable
within 60 business days from the date of approval of the Equity
Transfer Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder by
the extraordinary general meeting; and

(i) RMB30,240,000 (being 5% of the total consideration) shall be payable
within 15 business days from the date of completion of the necessary
industrial and commercial registrations and filings relating to the Equity
Transfer Agreement and the transaction contemplated thereunder in
the Industrial and Commercial Bureau of Hainan Province.

Time to complete: the Equity Transfer Agreement will be completed upon
the completion of the necessary industrial and commercial registrations
and filings relating to the Equity Transfer Agreement and the transaction
contemplated thereunder in the Industrial and Commercial Bureau of
Hainan Province.

For details of the Equity Transfer Agreement, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 13 November 2015.

CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDITOR

With respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Company,
the Independent Non-Executive Directors, having reviewed the aforesaid
transaction, are of the opinion that the transaction was:

(@) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) conducted on normal commercial terms; and
(c) conducted in accordance with the terms of the relevant transaction

agreement and on terms which were fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP was
engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed
by the Group on page 117 in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

None of the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions within the meaning of
the Listing Rules, except for those described in this section headed “The
Connected Transactions”, in respect of which the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors as at the date of this report are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Zhen

(duly appointed on 27 May 2013)
Mr. Yang Xiaobin

(duly appointed on 4 March 2013)
Mr. Gao Jian

(duly appointed on 3 July 2015)
Mr. Zhang Peihua

(duly appointed on 20 May 2014)
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(re -appointed on 28 October 2013

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Deng Tianlin

(duly appointed on 3 November 2014)
Mr. Fung Ching, Simon

(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. George F Meng

(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. He Linji

(duly appointed on 18 May 2015)

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Dong Guiguo

(re-appointed on 3 July 2015)
Mr. Zhang Shusheng

(re-appointed on 28 October 2013)
Mr. Han Aimin

(re-appointed on 23 August 2014)

The Directors and Supervisors who have resigned during the financial year and
as at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Liang Jun
(duly resigned on 16 February 2015 as an Executive Director)

Mr. Xu Bailing
(duly resigned on 18 May 2015 as an Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Zhang Hao
(duly resigned on 3 July 2015 as an Executive Director)

Brief biographical details of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are set
out on page 90 to page 99 of this annual report. There is no relationship among
the Directors that is required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

Each of the Directors and Supervisors had entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors
had entered into any service contract with the Group which is not terminable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

None of the Directors, Supervisors or their respective associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) held any shares, debentures or other interests in the
Company, nor were they granted, nor had they exercised any rights or options to
subscribe for shares in or debentures of the Company at no time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
holding company of the Company, and the Company’s subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or Supervisor of the Company or an entity connected
with a Director or Supervisor of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly in indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or Supervisors holds any interests in any competing
businesses against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities or
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged the liability insurance for the Directors, the Supervisors
and other senior management. The coverage of liability insurance, including but
not limited to indemnity for Company’s security , indemnity for supervisory crisis,
indemnity for Company's improper employment, indemnity for the loss of key
personnel and indemnity for the intellectual liability, etc.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into between the Company, Directors
and Supervisors and the resolution passed at the general meeting, the allowance
paid to the Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company in 2015 were RMB70,000, RMB50,000 and
RMB100,000 per person, respectively; and the allowance paid to the Supervisors
was RMB20,000 per person.

Directors and Supervisors recommended by the Parent Company, proposed
that Directors and Supervisors nominated by controlling shareholder would
not enjoy allowance for holding the position. But they were also entitled to
receive respective salaries according to their respective positions taken in the
Company. Details of remuneration packages for the Directors and Supervisors of
the Company were set out in Note 7(4)(g) to the financial statements.
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were either Directors

remuneration are set out in Note 7(4)(h) to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or existence
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company and there is no similar restriction against such rights under
the relevant PRC law that is applicable to the Company as a joint stock limited
Company incorporated in the PRC. Therefore, the Company is not required to
offer new shares, if any, to its existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

TRANSACTIONS IN ITS SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2015, the Company did not issue or grant any convertible
securities, options, warrants or other similar rights. The Company had no
redeemable securities as at 31 December 2015.

ENTRUSTED DEPOSITS AND OVERDUE TIME
DEPOSITS

The Group had no entrusted deposits and overdue time deposits as at 31
December 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As the Company was established and conducts its business operations in
mainland China and is also listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, our
establishment and business operation have to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in both mainland China and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Company have complied
with the relevant laws and regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong.

MATERIAL LITIGATION OR ARBITRATION

The Group had no material litigation or arbitration for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP and it has indicated its willingness
to be continuously in office. A resolution will be proposed by the Board at the
annual general meeting to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

as the auditor of the Company until the next annual general meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 24 September 2002
with terms of reference in accordance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three members, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Deng Tianlin, an Independent Non-executive Director,
is the chairman. The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements and to provide recommendations and
advices thereon, including review of the relationship with external auditors, the
Company'’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems.
There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee and the external
auditors on the accounting policies adopted by the Company. The Audit
Committee of the Company has reviewed the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A table of the operating results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 7 of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT REQUIREMENT

As at the date of publication, according to the public information held by the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the public float was
226,913,000 H shares, representing 47.95% of the total share capital of the
Company, which is in compliance with the minimum public float requirement
pursuant to Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Wang Zhen
Chairman

Hainan Province, the PRC
18 April 2016
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Articles of Assoaatlon the Superviso
conducted supervision and inspection in the best interests of the shareholders
and the Company and pursuant to regulatory laws and regulations as well as the
requirements for corporate governance. During 2015, all Supervisors performed
their supervisory duties conscientiously and effectively by convening and
attending meetings, listening to the management's reports, attending regulation
conferences and training. Acting on the principle of honesty and diligence,
the Supervisory Committee successfully executed its work plan for 2015 and
continuously improved the Company’s governance practices.

The major activities of the Supervisory Committee during 2015 were as follows:

1. Attending meetings of the Board and monitoring the decision making
process of the Board in terms of regulatory compliance, legal and managerial
system;

2. Attending meetings at the office of the chairman of the Board, participating
in important activities of the Company in the ordinary course of business,
and monitoring the daily operation and management by the chairman and
other senior officers and providing constructive suggestions thereto; and

3. Reviewing the financial statements of the Company on a regular basis and
the vouchers and accounts of the Company on an ad-hoc basis.

In consideration of above works carried out, the Supervisory Committee believed
that the shareholders’ equity continued to grow in 2015, and the profitability of
the Company was enhanced, dividend distribution policy was reasonable and the
overall financial position was sound. We expressed our independent opinions as
followings in relation to relevant matters:

1. LEGALITY OF THE COMPANY’S
OPERATION

The Company's business operation is in compliance with the Company Law
and the Articles of Association. The decision making procedure is lawful and
valid. During the reporting period, the members of the Board, the general
manager and other senior management observed the principle of diligence
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and honesty, and performed their duties in good faith and in the interests
of the shareholders and the Company. The Supervisory Committee was
not aware of any breach of laws, regulations and the Articles of Association
or actions to the detriment of the interests of the shareholders and the
Company on the part of Directors, senior management in carrying out
their duties.

TRUTHFULNESS OF THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial report for the year gives a true, objective, fair and accurate
view of the Company’s financial position and operating results.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

During the reporting period, the Supervisory Committee was not aware
of any acquisition and disposal of assets to the detriment of shareholders’
interests or leading to loss of the Company’s assets or insider trading.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting period, the Company entered into connected
transactions by following the legal decision making procedure, in strict
compliance with the principle of fairness, in accordance with the Listing
Rules, with open and transparent information disclosure and without
harming the interests of the Company.

In 2015, Meilan Airport, as one of the world’s largest airports which passenger

throughput surpassing 16 million for its debut history, continuously improve its

security, operation, services and management. It is expected that the business of

the Company in 2016 will keep steady increase, and the Supervisory Committee

is fully confident in the prospects of the Company’s future development.

Meanwhile, we will continue to safeguard the interests of all the shareholders

and the Company, carry out our duties diligently and focus on monitoring the

Company'’s actions for fulfilling its commitments to shareholders.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee

Dong Guiguo

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee

Hainan Province, the PRC
18 April 2016
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2016) No. 10067
(Page 1 of 2)

To the Shareholders of
HNA Infrastructure Company Limited,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HNA Infrastructure
Company Limited (hereinafter the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
and company income statements, the consolidated and company statements of
changes in shareholders’ equity and the consolidated and company cash flow
statements for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

1. MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP, 11/F PricewaterhouseCoopers Center
2 Corporate Avenue, 202 Hu Bin Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai 200021, PRC

T: +86 (21) 2323 8888, F: +86 (21) 2323 8800, www.pwcen.com
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PwC ZT Shen Zi (2016) No. 10067
(Page 2 of 2)

2. AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

3. OPINION

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) and the Company as at 31 December 2015, and their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian LLP

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China
29 March 2016
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Consolidated ond Company Badonce Sheet £ 4 2 2 9K % A A &

As at 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB") unless otherwise stated) (R4 RIZEBRSN @ ©FBE L A ARKET)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 20154 201445
12A31H 12H318 12A31H 12H318
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
o3 & =i AT NG
ASSETS gE
Current assets RBEE
Cash at bank and on hand EkES 1) 791)  1,023,267,032 1,884,557,387  1,018,071,646 1,880,585,089
Accounts receivable JEUAR K 4(2) 7102) 303,184,304 120702313 300,803,069 120,097,158
Advances to suppliers ERE 4(3) 73(3) 1,936,434 1763323 1,349,798 1,581,246
Interests receivable FEUAI 2, 1,122,387 2,269,667 1,122,387 2,269,667
Other receivables H b R 4(4) 79(4) 23,965,933 4,560,931 25,059,831 5,665,259
Inventories & 174,758 36,417 174,758 36,417
Other current assets H & E 4(5) 73(5) 388,331,072 785832 388,329,277 784,037
Total current assets REEEAR 1,741,981,920 2,014,675870  1,734,910,766 2,011,018,873
Non-current assets FRBEE
Long-term receivables RHEEUGK 4(6) 74(6) - 380,000,000 - 380,000,000
Long-term equity investments RERERE 47), 7907),
14(1) 7-79(1)  1,210,687,572 1,128,146,862  1,220,887,572 1,138,346,862
Fixed assets EEEE 49 798  1,598,841,660 1,040314,740  1,593,344,409 1,036,036,144
Construction in progress FEEIR 4(9) 79(9) 568,551,255 122,543,328 568,551,255 122,543,328
Intangible assets B EE 4(10) 79(10) 177,709,903 181,681,666 177,709,903 181,681,666
Deferred tax assets ERERMBHEE  411)8(11) 7,816,592 13,156,516 7,816,592 13,156,516
Other non-current assets HiIEREEE  412)5(12) 1,656,654,004 841228194  1,656,654,004 841,228,194
Total non-current assets EREEES 5,220,260,986 3,707,071,306  5,224,963,735 3,712,992,710
Total assets EEMG 6,962,242,906 5721747176 6,959,874,501 5,724,011,583
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EERER
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable FERTARFR 4(13) 9(13) 19,064,006 15,234,088 18,071,821 14,566,343
Advances from customers WA 4(14) 79(14) 10,840,253 9,290,271 10,510,053 8,702,370
Employee benefits payable JFE 11 B T 325 4(15) 79(15) 27,881,900 24,119,398 21,807,298 17,025,059
Taxes payable [ERTE 4(16) 73(16) 45,807,492 44,688,696 44,234,584 44,516,193
Interests payable FERTFIE 4(17) 23(17) 49,952,295 50,416,960 49,952,295 50,416,960
Dividends payable JEAT AR A 4(18) 73(18) 499,500 499,500 499,500 499,500
Other payables HAo e 4(19) 79(19) 283,759,288 114236355 322,184,417 144,395,326
Non-current liabilities due —FREHH
within one year FERFEE 4(20) 7920)  1,461,412,354 444673972 1,461,412,354 444,673,972
Total current liabilities RBEES 1,899,217,088 703,159,240  1,928,672,322 724,795,723
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Consolidated and Company Balance Sheet, (Continved) 4 4 & %2 8 X & & % £ (&%)

As at 31 December 2015 2015412 H31H

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) unless otherwise stated) (K4 BIZERESN -

SREMSARETT)

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 20154 20144
12A31H 12318 12831H 12A318
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Hiat CXii GVl NF NG
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Long-term borrowings REIER 421) B9(21) 932,955,163 1245963758 932,955,163 1,245,963,758
Corporate bonds NEEH 4(22) 19(22) 794,952,116 793619030 794,952,116 793,619,030
Long-term payables RHRERR 4(23) 79(23) 62,177,707 66,295,336 62,177,707 66,295,336
Long-term employee benefits payable RPEABIEM 475 2015 1,244,453 2,273,043 1,244,453 2,273,043
Other non-current liabilities HibIEmBBE’E  424) H024) 20,305,734 19,082,600 20,305,734 19,082,600
Total non-current liabilities ERBEBE 1,811,635,173 2127233767 1,811,635,173 2,127,233,767
Total liabilities aB&as 3,710,852,261 2,830,393,007  3,740,307,495 2,852,029,490
Shareholders’ equity RREE
Share capital AR A 4(25) 73(25) 473,213,000 473213000 473,213,000 473,213,000
Capital surplus VYN 4(26) 79(26) 683,509,755 668,585,780 683,509,755 668,585,780
Surplus reserve oo YN 427) P3(27) 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231 246,394,231
Undistributed profits A ELFE 4(28) P9(28)  1,826,832,534 1487,909356  1,816,450,020 1/483,789,082
Total capital and reserves attributable 55ERA AT
to shareholders of the Company RRER S 3,229,949,520  2876,102,367 3,219,567,006  2,871982,093
Minority interest DR EER 4(29) 19(29) 21,441,125 15,251,802 - =
Total equity ERA 3,251,390,645 2,891,354,169  3,219,567,006 2,871,982,093
Total liabilities and equity SERERE 6,962,242,906 5721747176  6,959,874,501 5,724,011,583

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:

PEEEA - FERFTEANEEA -
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua
E- im
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Person in charge of accounting department:
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Consoladated ond Comparwy Tncome Statements 4 14 & 2 § #4# %

For the year ended 31 December 2015 20155 /&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB") unless otherwise stated) ((r4ERIZEBRSN @ ©XBE L A ARKET)

2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 0145 20155 W014EE
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item BELE Hizt aft =X A NG
Revenue ERIA 430)14(2)
7930) + 1792)  1,063,430,885 882013345 940,421,962 792,504,622
Less: Operating costs W EERA 430)14(2)
7I30) - +792)  (405,913,389)  (325892795)  (304,115,791) (251,290,635)
Taxes and surcharges el 431) 79(31) (20,534,997 (16404275)  (20,126,327) (15,993,760)
General and administrative expenses EEEH 430)1402)
Z930) - +490)  (57,923,244) (54950682)  (54,080,994) (51,158817)
Financial expenses — net NBER - FE 4(32) 79(32) (73,935,712) (82855339)  (73,639,747) (82,690423)
Provision for asset impairment losses BERERR 4(33) 749(33) (1,828,230 (443883) (1,828,230) (721,708)
Add: Investment income o REKE 4(34) 159(34) 67,616,735 31,442,666 67,616,735 35333903
Including: Share of profit of H : W bR
associates BENE 67,616,735 31472638 67,616,735 31472638
Operating profit EES e 570,912,048 432,909,037 554,247,608 425983,182
Add: Non-operating income o EEINEA 4(35) 7935 16,329,901 9,023,869 16,105,244 8,998,842
Including: Gains on disposal of He - ERg&E
non-current assets BREMNE - 75,200 - 75,200
Less: Non-operating expenses B EEIT (8,437,774) (3227,287) (8,422,544) (3,169,892)
Including: Losses on disposal of He : EREEE
non-current assets RERX (7,970,513) (3,134.964) (7,962,264) (3,134964)
Total profit ANk 578,804,175 438705619 561,930,308 431812132
Less: Income tax expenses ST &R 436)7936)  (133,843,714)  (101,104753)  (129,421,410) (98,206,269)
Net profit FAE 444,960,461 337600866 432,508,898 333,605,864
Attributable to shareholders of the Company ~ BREBRAL AIIRERATFFIE 438,771,138 333868533 432,508,898 333,605,864
Minority interest PR RS 6,189,323 3732333 - -
Earnings per share Sk
Basic earnings per share EAZR MG 437) 73(37) 0.93 071 N/A RiEM N/A NE
Diluted earnings per share mERRER 4(37) 3(37) 0.93 071 N/A FER N/A TN F
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Concolidated and Company Tncome Statements (Continued) £ 1 & & 9 243 % (¢%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 20154 &

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) unless otherwise stated) (BRErAIFEBRS) @ &8 B A AR IT)
2015 2014 2015 2014
201558 W45 E 20155 % W4FE
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item EH HiaF aft EXiii AT NG
Other comprehensive income after tax HiGeWRnnReTE - - - -
Total comprehensive income GElEAE 444,960,461 337600866 432,508,898 333,605,864
Attributable to shareholders FRRAARRER
of the Company e e 438,771,138 333868533 432,508,898 333,605,864
Minority interest GBROERER
el e 6,189,323 3,732,333 - -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function:

PREEA FTEEIIIENERA - BiHERAA -
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua Shang Min
£ wimE L=
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Person in charge of accounting department:
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Consolidoted and Company Cosh Flows Statements £ 14 & 2 9 A4 %t %

For the year ended 31 December 2015 20154 f&

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB") unless otherwise stated) ((r4ERIZEBRSN @ ©XBE L A ARKET)
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 W014FE 20155 0145 E
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item 5H it CXid aff AF AF]
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELNHLRE
Cash received from sales of goods HEEm « RS
or rendering of services WEfEE 902,567,875 883,164,576 772,350,753 785,849,249
Refund of taxes and surcharges BRI B RE 250,354 464,887 250,354 464,887
Cash received relating to other WE E A B E)
operating activities @GRS 202,112,639 181,023,517 201,882,030 180,612,841
Sub-total of cash inflows RETEEERA DG 1,104,930,868 1,064,652,980 974,483,137 966,926,977
Cash paid for goods and services BEEM  BXEHB
XHHRS (156,984,681)  (191,538436)  (71,508,033)  (140,376045)
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees INEBTIARART
XEHE (142,413,935)  (131,187043)  (109,214,748)  (102,453,755)
Payments of taxes and surcharges SREBIERE (164,003,696) (112,090861)  (156,417,519) (104,565,645)
Cash paid relating to other operating S EM SRR RS 439
activities BENRS P939)(c) (207,187,984) (209.964,790)  (205,755,083) (209,014,495)
Sub-total of cash outflows RETHREML Gt (670,590,296)  (644781,130)  (542,895,383)  (556,409,940)
Net cash flows from operating RETHEEN 4396
activities BeTEEE 139G 434,340,572 419871850 431,587,754 410517037
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELENESRE
Cash received from disposal of an investment b=l apien - = - 53,105
Cash receipt of investment income HEREKaEmkE e e 29,977,778 - 29,977,778 4758,160
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets BEETEEERE
HeRd 83,117 642,133 83,117 642,133
Cash received relating to other W E b 45 B R )
investing activities AENES 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
Sub-total of cash inflows RETERERANDGt 33,060,895 642,133 33,060,895 5453398
Cash paid to acquire fixed assets and BRETAEMEAM
other long-term assets RAEEZ TS (1,620,574,859) (739,111353)  (1,619,037,465) (738:835,220)
Cash paid relating to other investing S NEM LB RS
activities BBNE S - (380,000,000) - (380,000,000)
Sub-total of cash outflows REZHRDRH st (1,620,574,859)  (1,119111353) (1,619,037,465)  (1,118835220)
Net cash flows from investing RETHEEN
activities BeRERE (1,587,513,964) (1,118469,220) (1,585,976,570) (1,113,381,822)
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Concolidated and Compary Cash Flows Statemente (Continued) £ 14 & % 9 % 4 %€ % (8%)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 20154 &

(Allamounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) unless otherwise stated) (BRErAIFEBRS) @ &8 B A AR IT)
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 W014FE 20155 W14EE
Note(s) Consolidated Consolidated Company Company
Item 2R it CXid aff AF A7
Cash flows from financing activities EETHELENRERE
Cash received from borrowings BEETNENRES 1,088,000,000 - 1,088,000,000 -
Cash received relating to other financing WE| BB R EE)
activities BEBENEE 29,993,558 - 29,993,558 =
Sub-total of cash inflows EETHREFAN N 1,117,993,558 - 1,117,993,558 -
Cash repayments of borrowings BEEEINNERES (496,255,565) (109916,100)  (496,255,565) (109916,100)
Cash payments for distribution of dividends AERF] - FIERERFIS
or profits and interest expenses IREEE (271,380,385) (216,387,129)  (271,395,709) (211,815,564)
Including: Cash payments for dividends or Hif: FRAISRGLH
profit to minority shareholders ARER R - FIE
of subsidiaries - (4,571,565) - -
Cash payments relating to other financing IRHEMESEEE
activities E@NES (58,332,106) (87,551,091) (58,332,106) (87,551,091)
Sub-total of cash outflows EGTHRSRE /G (825,968,056) (413,854320)  (825,983,380) (409,282,755)
Net cash flows from financing EETHELN
activities BeRETHE 292,025,502 (413,854,320) 292,010,178 (409,282,755)
Effect of foreign exchange rate EZ2BHRERBLEEY
changes on cash and cash equivalents 2 (142,465) (1,401,860) (134,805) (1,401,408)
439)()
Netdecreasein cashand cash equivalents ~ RERBEZEWFHLIE  FG90b)  (861,290,355)  (1,113853550)  (862,513,443)  (1,113548948)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at m: EReRREEEN
beginning of year B 1,884,557,387 2998410937  1,880,585,089 2,994,134,037
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBLSRBESEENGHE 1,023,267,032 1884557387  1,018,071,646 1,880,585,089

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:
PREEEA
Wang Zhen

£
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Person in charge of accounting function:
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Zhang Peihua

BiEERRA -

Shang Min

fe 84

Person in charge of accounting department:
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Concolidted Statement; of Chanses in Sharholders’ Tquity 4 44 4 % 1 & B 4

For the year ended 31 December 2015 20154 f&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB") unless otherwise stated) ((r4ERIZEBRSN @ ©XBE L A ARKET)

SENRRRMRRER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Total
Share Capital Surplus Undistributed Minority ~ shareholders'
capital surplus reserves proﬂts interests equity
Note(s) e 7N BHOE  ROEAE JERRER RREmA:
Item BH k3 4025 P123) 4(26) P2) 427) B527) 428) P26 429 529
Balance at 1 January 2014 201451 B1REIHE 473213000 699650702 246394231 1233993923 16091257 2669343113
Movements for the year 2014 0145 RS EE
Total comprehensive income HANREE
Net profit pEerilhed 333868533 3732333 337,600,866
Qther comprehensive income Hiner A lizs - - -
Total comprehensive income Al EEA 333,868,533 3732333 337600866
Profit distribution MEn
Profit distributed to shareholders HRRAOAE 428) 5128) (79.953,100) (4571,565) (84,524665)
Liquidation of a subsidiary TR - (223) 223
Other movement of capital surplus EiERNEED 426) 526) - - (31,064922)
Balance at 31 December 2014 2014512831 R EREEH 1487909356 15251802 2,891,354,169
Balance at 1 January 2015 20156181 R EAEE 1/487,909356 15,251,802 2,891,354,169
Movements for the year 2015 2015¢EEWX§§J§
Total Comprehensive income et
Net profit /?ﬂ hid 438,771,138 6,189,323 444,960,461
Other comprehensive income Hirkra s - - -
Total comprehensive income FelmaEast 438,771,138 6,189,323 444,960,461
Profit distribution HMEDE
Profit distributed to shareholders HRENDE 428) 75928) - - - (99,847,960) - (99,847,960)
Qther movement of capital surplus HBAATRE 4026) 75126) - 14,923,975 - - - 14,923,975
Balance at 31 December 2015 01512831 B ERGE 473,213,000 683,509,755 246,394,231 1,826,832,534 21,441,125  3,251,390,645

18 P Bt 75 SR B S AR B A5 SRR O AR BB D

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative: Person in charge of accounting function: Person in charge of accounting department:

PRERA - FEBFITIEHREA - EIHIEREAN -
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua Shang Min
=) wmEE OF=
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Componyy Staccement, of Chanses in Sharoholders’ Equity 5 9 8 34 4 B 4

For the year ended 31 December 2015 20154E &

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) unless otherwise stated) (B& 45 BlIZEERS) » ©EEER A AR TT)
Total
shareholders’
Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed equity
capital reserves reserves profits RE R
Note(s) A BARTE BHAE  KOEMHE Bt
ltem HE Kz 425) P9(25)  426) H(26)  427) PI27)  4(28) F(28)
Balance at 1 January 2014 201451 1B 65 473,213,000 699,650,702 246,394,231 1,230,136,318  2,649,394,251
Movements for the year 2014 20145 EEHEEE
Total Comprehensive income Ak A%
Net profit pEm b - = - 333605864 333,605,864
Other comprehensive income Hipir sl - - - - -
Total comprehensive income BelEBER: - = - 333605864 333605864
Profit distribution FE B
Profit distributed to shareholders HRRN A 4(28) 79(28) - - - (79953,100)  (79,953,100)
Other movement of capital surplus HihEARTEL 4026) 19(26) - (31,064,922) - - (31,064,922
Balance at 31 December 2014 2014512 A31 A FREFHE 473213000 668585780 246,394,231 1483,789,082 2:871,982,093
Balance at 1 January 2015 201551 A1 B F 8 473,213,000 668,585,780 246,394,231 1,483,789,082 2,871,982,093
Movements for the year 2015 20155 H BB E
Comprehensive income malanes
Net profit FE - - - 432,508,898 432,508,898
Other comprehensive income Hibir Al - - - - -
Total comprehensive income RelEEEa - - - 432,508,898 432,508,898
Profit distribution FES A
Profit distributed to shareholders YRR DI 4(28) 19(28) - - - (99,847,960) (99,847,960)
Other movement of capital surplus HEARNEEH) 4(26) P9(26) - 14,923,975 - - 14,923,975
Balance at 31 December 2015 201551231 £ R4 473,213,000 683,509,755 246,394,231 1,816,450,020 3,219,567,006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Legal representative:

Person in charge of accounting function:

PREEA FTEEIIIENERA -
Wang Zhen Zhang Peihua
E wmE
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Shang Min
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GENERAL INFORMATION

HNA Infrastructure Company Limited (formerly known as “Hainan Meilan
International Airport Company Limited") (the “Company”) was established
as a joint stock company with limited liability in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") on 28 December 2000. The legal address and headquarters
of the Company is at Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC. The Company’s
H-shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 18 November 2002. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) are mainly engaged in the operation of the Meilan Airport
in Hainan Province, the PRC (the “Meilan Airport”) and certain ancillary
commercial businesses. The parent company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Haikou Meilan Airport Co., Ltd. (“Haikou
Meilan”), a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC with limited
liability.

On 5 January 2015, as approved by the extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders, the Company changed its name to HNA Infrastructure
Company Limited.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 29 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Basic
Standard of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, specific
accounting standards and other relevant regulations (hereafter collectively
referred to as the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises” or “CAS”)
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC on or after 15 February 2006.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group's long-term bank borrowings of US$200,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,298,720,000) is due for repayment by installments in June 2016
and December 2016 (Note 4(21)) and was classified as current liabilities
as at 31 December 2015, which led to the Group recorded a net current
liabilities of RMB157,235,168 (31 December 2014: net current assets of
RMB1,311,516,630). The Group has planned refinancing arrangements
for these borrowings, including but not limited to issue corporate bonds
and obtain facility lines from other domestic financial institutions. The
Company has obtained the approval from Shenzhen Stock Exchange for
private placement of corporate bonds to qualified investors with maximum
principal of RMB3 billion and maturity of not more than 5 years in February
2016. Management has prepared the Group’s cash flow forecast for the
year ending 31 December 2016, by taking into accounts the operating cash
inflows and funds raised from bonds issuance, management is of the view
that the Group would have sufficient funds to settle the debts when they
fall due. As a result, the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2015 have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Statement of compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015 are in compliance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and truly and completely present the financial position of the
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2015 and of their financial
performance, cash flows and other information for the year then ended.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Accounting year

The Group's financial year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (RMB).

Business combinations

Business combinations involving enterprises under common
control

The consideration paid and net assets obtained in a business combination
are measured at the carrying amount. The difference between the carrying
amount of the net assets obtained from the combination and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid for the combination is treated as an
adjustment to capital surplus (share premium). If the capital surplus (share
premium) is not sufficient to cover the difference, the remaining balance
is adjusted against retained earnings. Costs directly attributable to the
combination are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Business combinations involving enterprises not under common
control

The cost of combination and identifiable net assets obtained in a business
combination are measured at the fair value at the acquisition date. Where
the cost of the combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognised as
goodwill; where the cost of combination is lower than the acquirer’s interest
in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss for the period when the combination is incurred.
Costs directly attributable to the combination are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(3)

(4)

(5)
(a)

(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of

the Company and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and are de-consolidated from the date that such control ceases.
For a subsidiary that is acquired in a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, it is included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date when it, together with the Company,
comes under common control of the ultimate controlling party. The
portion of the net profit realised before the combination date is presented
separately in the consolidated income statement.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, where the accounting
policies and the accounting periods of the Company and subsidiaries are
inconsistent, the financial statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted in
accordance with the accounting policies and the accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from business combinations involving
enterprises not under common control, the individual financial statements
of the subsidiaries are adjusted based on the fair value of the identifiable
net assets at the acquisition date.

All significant inter-group balances, transactions and unrealised profits of
the Group are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. The
portion of a subsidiary’s equity and the portion of a subsidiary’s net profits
and losses and comprehensive income for the year not attributable to the
Company are recognised as minority interests and presented separately
in the consolidated financial statements within equity, net profits and
comprehensive income respectively. Unrealised profit or loss in transactions
where the Company sells assets to its subsidiaries are fully eliminated
and deducted from the net profits attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Unrealised profit or loss in transactions where a subsidiary
sells assets to the Company are eliminated and deducted proportionately
from the net profits attributable to equity holders of the Company and
the minority interest. Unrealised profit or loss in selling assets between
subsidiaries are eliminated and deducted from the net profits attributable
to equity holders of the Company and of the minority interest in proportion
to the equity interest of the sale side held by the Company and minority
interests.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

A transaction will be adjusted from the perspective of the Group in
condition that assertions are different when accounting entities are the

Group and the Company or its subsidiaries.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits that can be
readily drawn on demand, and short-term and highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

At the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into RMB using the spot exchange rates on the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from these translations
are recognised in profit or loss for the current period, except for those
attributable to foreign currency borrowings that have been taken out
specifically for the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical costs
are translated at the balance sheet date using the spot exchange rates at
the date of the transactions. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash

is presented separately in the cash flow statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Financial instrument

Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories at initial
recognition: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and held-to-maturity investments. The
classification of financial assets depends on the Group’s intention and ability
to hold the financial assets.

The financial assets of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and for the year
then ended are receivables. Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

market.

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised at fair value on the balance sheet when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument, and transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets are included in their initially recognised amounts.

Receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of financial assets at each balance
sheet date. If there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired,
an impairment loss is provided for.

A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Financial instrument (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an impairment loss on a financial asset carried at amortised cost has
occurred, the amount of loss is measured at the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of its estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred). If there
is objective evidence that the value of the financial asset recovered and the
recovery is related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed and
the amount of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when any of the below criteria is met: (i)
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expire; (ii) the financial asset has been transferred and the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset to
the transferee; or (iii) the financial asset has been transferred and the Group
has not retained control of the financial asset, although the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative
changes in fair value that had been recognised directly in equity, is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Financial instrument (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into the following categories at initial
recognition: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The financial liabilities in the Group as at 31 December
2015 and for the year then ended mainly comprise other financial liabilities,
including payables, borrowings and corporate bonds.

Payables, including accounts payable, other payable, interest payable,
dividend payable and long-term payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings and corporate bonds are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities with maturities no more than one year (one year
inclusive) are classified as current liabilities. Other financial liabilities with
maturities over one year but are due within one year (one year inclusive) at
the balance sheet date are classified as the current portion of non-current
liabilities. Others are classified as non-current liabilities.

A financial liability is derecognised or partly derecognised when the current
obligation is discharged or partly discharged. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or the derecognised part of the

financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Determination of fair value of financial instrument

The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded in an active market is
determined at the quoted price in active market.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(10) Receivables

Receivables comprise accounts receivable, other receivable and interest
receivable and long-term receivables. Accounts receivable arising from
rendering of services or sale of goods are initially recognised at fair value of

the contractual payments from the service recipients or buyers.

Receivables with amounts that are individually significant are subject to
assessment for impairment on the individual basis. If there exists objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the amount under
the original terms, a provision for impairment of that receivable is made.
The method of providing for bad debts for those individually significant
amounts is as follows: the amount of the present value of the future cash
flows expected to be derived from the receivable below its carrying amount.

Receivables with amounts that are not individually significant and those
receivables that have been individually assessed for impairment and have
not been found impaired are classified into certain groupings based on
their credit risk characteristics. The provision for bad debts is determined
based on the historical loss experience for the groupings of receivables with
similar credit risk characteristics, taking into consideration of the current
circumstances. The Group uses ageing analysis method to make provision
for impairment of receivables with amounts that are not individually

significant.

(11) Inventories

Inventories include food and spare parts, and are presented at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in first out
method. Provision for declines in the value of inventories is determined at
the excess amount of the carrying amounts of the inventories over their net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined based on the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale and related taxes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments

(a)

(b)

148

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s long-term equity
investments in its subsidiaries and the Group's long-term equity investments
in its associates.

Subsidiaries are all investees over which the Company is able to control.
Associates are the investees that the Company has significant influence on

their financial and operating policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are presented in the Company’s financial
statements using the cost method, and are adjusted to the equity method
when preparing the consolidated financial statements; Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method.

Determining initial investment cost

The long-term equity investments of the Company acquired by payment in
cash, the initial investment cost shall be the purchase price actually paid.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of related profit or
loss

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the cost method,
they are measured at the initial investment costs, and cash dividends or
profit distribution declared by the investees are recognised as investment

income in profit or loss.

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method,
where the initial investment cost of a long-term equity investment exceeds
the Group's share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets
on the acquisition date, the long-term equity investment is measured at
the initial investment cost; where the initial investment cost is less than
the Group's share of the fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets
on the acquisition date, the difference is included in profit or loss and the
cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted upwards accordingly.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(b) Subsequent measurement and recognition of related profit or

loss (Continued)

For long-term equity investments accounted for using the equity method,
the Group recognises the investment income or losses according to its share
of net profit or loss of the investee. The Group discontinues recognising
its share of net losses of an investee after the carrying amount of the
long-term equity investment together with any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the investor's net investment in the investee
are reduced to zero. However, if the Group has obligations for additional
losses and the criteria with respect to recognition of provisions under the
accounting standards on contingencies are satisfied, the Group continues
recognising the investment losses and the losses are recognised as estimate
debts. For changes in shareholders’ equity of the investee other than
those arising from its net profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
profit distribution, the Group adjusts the carrying amount of long-term
equity investments and records its proportionate share directly into capital
surplus. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced by the Group'’s
share of the profit distribution or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The unrealised profits or losses arising from the intra-group transactions
amongst the Group and its investees are eliminated in proportion to the
Group’s equity interest in the investees, and then based on which the
investment gains or losses are recognised. For the loss on the intra-group
transaction amongst the Group and its investees attributable to asset
impairment, any unrealised loss is not eliminated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(12) Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Basis for determining existence of control and significant
influence over investees

Control is the power over the investee to be exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from the Group'’s involvement with the investee, and the
ability to use the power over the investee to affect those returns.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

Impairment of long-term equity investments

The carrying amount of long-term equity investments in subsidiaries and
associates is reduced to the recoverable amount when the recoverable
amount are below their carrying amount (Note 2(17)).

(13) Fixed assets

(a)

150

Recognition and initial measurement of fixed assets

Fixed assets comprise buildings, machinery and equipment, transportation,
office equipment and others.

Fixed assets are recognised when it is probable that the related economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the costs can be reliably measured.
Fixed assets purchased or constructed by the Group are initially measured
at cost at the acquisition date.

Subsequent expenditures incurred for a fixed asset are included in the cost
of the fixed asset when it is probable that the associated economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the related cost can be reliably measured.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All the other
subsequent expenditures are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(13) Fixed assets (Continued)

(b) Depreciation method of fixed assets

(c)

Fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of the assets to their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives. For the fixed assets being provided for impairment loss, the
related depreciation charge is prospectively determined based upon the
adjusted carrying amounts over their remaining useful lives.

The estimated useful lives, the estimated residual values expressed as a
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percentage of cost and the annual depreciation rates are as follows: EXRJIRAT :

Annual

Estimated Estimated depreciation

useful lives residual value rate

FEIHEAST  FEIDFEER FIEER

Buildings and structures BENMEEY) 15-40 years 3% 6.5%-2.4%
15-40%F

Machinery and equipment SR 14 years 3% 6.9%
145

Transportation BT A 10 years 3% 9.7%
106

Office equipment and others WENRR A R EAth 6-15 years 3% 16.2%-6.5%
6-154F

The estimated useful life, the estimated net residual value of a fixed asset
and the depreciation method applied to the asset are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate at least at each year-end.

The carrying amount of fixed assets is reduced to the recoverable amount
when the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount (Note 2(17)).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(13) Fixed assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Recognition and measurement of fix assets held under finance
leases

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset. Fixed assets held under finance leases
are recognised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The difference between the
recorded amount of the leased assets and the minimum lease payments is
accounted for as unrecognised finance charge (Note 2(23)(b)).

Fixed assets held under finance leases are depreciated in accordance
with the policy on self-owned assets. If there is reasonable certainty that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the
lease term.

Fixed assets disposal

A fixed asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The amount of proceeds
on sale, transfer, retirement or damage of a fixed asset net of its carrying
amount and related taxes and expenses is recognised in profit or loss for

the current period.

(14) Construction in progress

152

Construction in progress (“CIP") is measured at actual cost. Actual cost
comprises construction costs, installation cost, borrowing costs that are
eligible for capitalisation and other costs necessary to bring the fixed assets
ready for their intended use. CIP is transferred to fixed assets when the
assets are ready for their intended use, and depreciation begins from the
following month. The carrying amount of CIP is reduced to the recoverable
amount when the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount
(Note 2(17)).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(15) Borrowing costs

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
construction of a fixed asset that needs a substantially long period of time
for its intended use commence to be capitalised and recorded as part
of the cost of the asset when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs have been incurred, and the activities relating to the acquisition and
construction that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
have commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
asset under acquisition or construction becomes ready for its intended
use and the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are recognised in profit or
loss for the current period. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
during periods in which the acquisition or construction of a fixed asset is
interrupted abnormally and the interruption lasts for more than 3 months,
until the acquisition or construction is resumed.

For the specific borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of
a fixed asset qualifying for capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by deducting any interest income
earned from depositing the unused specific borrowings in the banks or
any investment income arising on the temporary investment of those

borrowings during the capitalisation period.

For the general borrowings obtained for the acquisition or construction of
a fixed asset qualifying for capitalisation, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying the weighted average
effective interest rate of general borrowings, to the weighted average of the
excess amount of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amount
of specific borrowings. The effective interest rate is the rate at which the
estimated future cash flows during the period of expected duration of the
borrowings or applicable shorter period are discounted to the initial amount
of the borrowings.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(16) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are land use rights (“LUR") and are measured at cost.
LUR acquired are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated

useful lives.

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review of its useful life and
amortisation method is performed at each year-end, with adjustment made
as appropriate.

The carrying amount of intangible assets is reduced to the recoverable
amount when the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount
(Note 2(17)).

(17) Impairment of long-term assets

154

Fixed assets, construction in progress, intangible assets with finite useful
lives and long-term equity investments in subsidiaries and associates
are tested for impairment if there is any indication that the assets may
be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result of the impairment
test indicates that the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, a provision for impairment and an impairment loss are
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset impairment is
determined and recognised on the individual asset basis. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable
amount of a group of assets to which the asset belongs is determined.
A group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to generate

independent cash inflows.

Once the above asset impairment loss is recognised, it will not be reversed

for the value recovered in the subsequent periods.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(18) Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given in exchange
for services rendered by employees or compensation paid in order to
terminate the employment relationship. Employee benefits include short-
term employee benefits, demission benefits, termination benefits and other
long-term employee benefits, etc.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries, bonuses,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, social security contributions, housing
funds, labor union funds, employee education funds and short-term
absence with salaries etc. When an employee has rendered service to the
Group during an accounting period, the Group shall recognise short-term
employee benefits as liabilities and charge to the cost of an asset or as
an expense at the same time. Non-monetary benefits are measured in
accordance with fair value.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are classified as defined contribution plan and
defined benefit plan. Defined contribution plan is a plan under which the
Group pays fixed contributions to a separate fund and then has no legal or
constructive obligation to make further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension
plan that is not a defined contribution plan. During the year, the Group's
post-employment benefits include mainly contributions to pension fund
and unemployment insurance which are defined contribution plans.

Basic social pension security

Employees of the Group participate in the basic social pension plan set
up and administered by the government authorities. Basic pensions are
provided monthly according to stipulated proportions and basis, which are
paid to local labor and social security institutions will pay related pension to
employees accordingly. After retirement of employees, local labor and social
security institutions will pay related pensions to employees accordingly.
When an employee has rendered service to the Group during an accounting
period, the Group shall compute and recognise liabilities according to the
above stipulation and charge to the cost of an asset or as an expense at
the same time.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(18) Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payables when employment is terminated by the
Group before the employment contract expire, or compensation provided
as an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy. The
Group recognises termination benefits as liabilities and charges to profit or
losses at the earlier of the following dates: when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of termination plan; and when the Group recognises
costs for restructuring which involving the payment of termination benefits.

(d) Early retirement benefits

The Group is obligated to pay the early retirement benefits for voluntary
early retired employees. Early retirement benefits are payable to the
employees not reaching mandatory retirement age and voluntarily quit
jobs as approved by the management of the Group. The Group pays for
their salary and social insurance during the period from early retirement
date to the mandatory retirement date. Similar to termination benefits, a
provision for early retirement benefits is recognised and charged to profit
or loss of current year when the above conditions are satisfied, during the
period from the early retirement date to the mandatory retirement date.
Changes in actuarial assumptions and benefits policies are charged to profit
or loss of current year.

Termination benefits which will be settled within one year would be
disclosed as current liability.

(19) Dividend distribution

Cash dividend is recognised as a liability for the period in which the
dividend is approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(20) Revenue recognition

The amount of revenue is determined in accordance with the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of

rebates and discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, the relevant revenue can be reliably
measured and specific revenue recognition criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities as described below:

(a) Rendering of services

—  Services have been provided;

- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group;

- the revenue and costs of rendering of services can be measured
reliably.

(b) Sale of goods

- The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

—  The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over

the goods sold;

- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group;

- The relevant amount of revenue and costs can be measured reliably.

Z FEEFERME AR

(%)

(20) Yt A FERR

(a)

(b)

WA ERERAEEEAEKL LS TR
HEBMEERRE - CWHERA RS
ZEFNAABERETE - WARHBRHEEN
& K HE R OH)FERTIR -

R ZEENRBENREHRAREE - 18
AR ABESIA] et 2 BimE T Y& IR8E
TEBR R T WA TERIZER - HEREEN YK
A

ZHURA
— BBEKRHE:

— XRZHEBENEENDERAARE

]

—  BHRAMGERAGESH A SEAE -

HER DU

EmfERLLNEZERLHRMEE
BB

fh}

= KEITE;T;AW o B e A A T
SRR B R )

- RS EBEHE BN mEHRALR S

5

—  AAEEMA TR AN BE ST SEH A & o

157



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements 833 1 £ % #

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (f&4ERIEERBAN -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(20) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

158

Transfer of asset use rights

Interest income is recognised based on the time that other parties occupy
cash of the Group using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease. VIP room income is recognised base on specified minimum rent
guarantees.

Parking fee income is recognised by the charge rate per hour or per day
and the period the customers using the parking lot.

Airport Fee

Airport fee represents Civil Aviation Development Fund (the “Airport Fee")
which is recognised when the related services are rendered to the outbound
passengers departing from the airport. The charge rates of the Airport Fee
are regulated by Civil Aviation Administration of China (“CAAC"). Revenue
is recognised according to the authorised charge rates attributable to the

Group collected from outbound passengers.

Franchise income

The Company grants the right to certain operators to operate retail, catering
and advertising businesses in Haikou Meilan Airport and charges them for
franchise fee. The franchise fee is charged at certain percentage of sales
generated by franchisee with a minimum basic charge rate on a monthly
basis and is recognised as franchise income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(21) Government Grants

Government grants are transfers of monetary or non-monetary assets from

the government to the Group at nil consideration.

A government grant is recognised when the conditions attached to it
can be complied with and the government grant can be received. The
government grant is a monetary asset which is calculated in accordance
with amounts received or receivables. For a government grant in the form
of transfer of non-monetary assets, it is measured at fair value; if the fair
value is not reliably determinable, the grant is measured at nominal amount.

A government grant related to an asset is recognised as deferred income,
and evenly amortised to profit or loss over the useful life of the related
asset. Government grants measured at nominal amounts are recognised

immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

For government grants related to income, where the grant is a compensation
for related expenses or losses to be incurred by the Group in the subsequent
periods, the grant is recognised as deferred income, and included in profit
or loss over the periods in which the related costs are recognised; where
the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses already incurred
by the Group, the grant is recognised immediately in profit or loss for the
current period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(22) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

160

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are calculated and recognised
based on the differences arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount (temporary differences). Deferred tax
asset is recognised for the deductible losses that can be carried forward to
subsequent years for deduction of the taxable profit in accordance with
the tax law. No deferred tax asset or deferred tax liability is recognised for
the temporary differences resulting from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities due to a transaction other than a business combination, which
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). At
the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for deductible temporary differences,
deductible losses and tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available in the future against which the deductible
temporary differences, deductible losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference,
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. When it is probable that the temporary differences
arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates will be reversed
in the foreseeable future and that the taxable profit will be available in
the future against which the temporary differences can be utilised, the

corresponding deferred tax assets are recognised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(22) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when:

The deferred taxes are related to the same tax payer within the Group
and same fiscal authority; and

That tax payer has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax

assets against current tax liabilities.

(23) Lease

(a)

(b)

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a lease other than
a finance lease.

Operating leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease, and are either capitalised as part of the
cost of related assets, or charged as an expense for the current period.

Finance leases

The leased asset is recognised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the recorded amount of the leased asset and the minimum lease
payments is accounted for as unrecognised finance charge and is amortised
using the effective interest method over the period of the lease. A long-term
payable is recorded at the amount equal to the minimum lease payments
less the unrecognised finance charge.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(24) Segment information

The Group identify operating segments based on the internal organisation
structure, management requirement and internal reporting, then disclose
segment information of reportable segment which is based on operating

segment.

An operating segment is the component of the Group that all of the
following conditions are satisfied: (1) that component can earn revenues
and incur expenses from ordinary activities; (2) whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the Group’s management to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and
(3) for which the information of financial position, operating results and
cash flows is available to the Group. If two or more operating segments
have similar economic characteristics, and certain conditions are satisfied,
they may be aggregated into a single operating segment.

(25) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

162

The Group continually evaluates the critical accounting estimates and
key judgments applied based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions

The critical accounting estimates and key assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are outlined below:

(a) Fixed assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its fixed assets. This estimate is
made based on management’s experience in operating airport and
the conditions of the fixed assets. It could change significantly as a
result of actual use and improvements. Management will increase the
depreciation charges where useful lives are shorter than previously
estimated lives.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(25) Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Fixed assets (Continued)

Management determines the residual values of its fixed assets based
on all relevant factors (including the use of the current scrap value in
current market as a reference value) at the end of each financial period.

Civil Aviation Development Fund refund rates

Civil Aviation Development Fund is a fee charged to passengers taking
domestic flights in the PRC. Pursuant to the “Interim Measures for the
Collection, Use and Management of the Civil Aviation Development
Fund” promulgated by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, effective
from 1 April 2012 till 31 December 2015, the former Civil Airport
Construction Fee was superseded by the Civil Aviation Development
Fund, the charge rate remains the same. In the meantime, the original
airport construction fee is cancelled. On 9 December 2015, the Ministry
of Finance of the PRC issued “Notice by Ministry of Finance over the
issues Regarding the Civil Aviation Development Fund and the Tourism
Development Fund”, in which the notice stipulates that collection of
Civil Aviation Development Fund and Tourism December Fund will
levies from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2020, and the refund
policy that the Group enjoys under the Civil Aviation Development
Fund remains unchanged and till 31 December 2020.

According to the “Notice Regarding the Grant of Subsidy of Civil
Aviation Development Fund to Haikou Meilan Airport Company
Limited” issued by CAAC on 11 April 2012, the refund of Civil
Airport Construction Fee granted to the Group was correspondingly
superseded by the refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund, the
refund rate should be determined by CAAC. Given the nature and
refund method of both funds are same, the actual refund rate of the
airport fee is 48% since 2008 and the Group did not receive any notice
from relevant authorities in respect of change of the refund rate during
the current year, the Group continued to recognise the refund of Civil
Aviation Development Fund at a rate of 48%.

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(25) Critical accounting estimates and judgments
(Continued)

164

Critical accounting estimates and key assumptions (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop franchise income

As at 31 December 2015, the franchise agreements between the
Company and Haimian Haikou Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop Co., Ltd.
("Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop”) in respect of the operation of duty-
free shop in Meilan Airport has been expired, the new agreements
are in the process of negotiation. Taking into account the latest result
of negotiation and the preliminary agreement reached by the two
contractual parties in respect of the revised rate and payment themes
of franchise fee charged by the Company to Meilan Airport Duty-Free
Shop, the Group has recognised the franchise fee income for the year
based on management’s best estimate on the charge rate.

Income taxes

There are many transactions and events for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Significant judgment is required from the Group in determining the
provision for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination

is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
BEMSARETT)

3 TAXATION = BIE

(1) The main categories and rates of taxes applicable to the Group are setout (1) AEBFERANESHEREFRIIRAT
below:
Category Tax base Tax rate
BE SRR G
Corporate income tax (“CIT") Taxable income 25%

SN
Value Added Tax ("VAT") (Note)

eI #R

Taxable value added amount (Tax payable is
calculated using the taxable sales amount
multiplied by the applicable tax rate less
deductible input VAT of current year)

6% or 17%

BEW (K77) FEMMTILERE (JENTHFIR B AT 8 & SR LAE A 6%3%17%
MR E B PR E IR R R R T E
Business tax (Note) Taxable turnover amount 5%
BEN (Bfat) e L SR 5%
Civil maintenance and construction fee VAT and business tax paid 5% or 7%
Y T A R AR A ARG ER AN E R BB 59%3%7%
Educauon fee VAT and business tax paid 3%
A B BARE IR B S X TR 3%
Local Education fee VAT and business tax paid 2%
i 75 25 B KN AN IR B T A = S T T R 2%
(Note) In 2015 and 2014 revenue from the aeronautical business (of which revenue MiaE © R2015%20144F 8 2N &£ B 12 69 fin 22 %

charge to offshore units and refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund are
free of VAT), VIP room income, equipment lease income and freight related
service of the Group are subject to VAT, and the applicable tax rate is 6%,
6%, 17% and 17% respectively.

Except for aforementioned, revenue from other businesses of the Group is
subject to Business Tax, and the applicable tax rate is 5%.

Pursuant to “Notice regarding to fully implement pilot work for the Change
from Business Tax to Value Added Tax” (“BT changed to VAT") issued by
the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China and the State
Administration of Taxation (Caishui [2016] No.36), starting from 1 May 2016,
all the enterprises are subject to VAT, but the details of implementation has
not been formally announced. Therefore, the management of the Group
can not estimate the potential impact to the Group for the new tax policy
at the moment.
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%WAWEM%FRéLEﬁ%%@P
Eﬁ)ﬁ%*%k HREHEERAT

BRBWAEBEER  BHESFAE
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3 TAXATION (continued) = BE @

(2) Preferential tax treatments and approval document (2) BUEER #t X
Pursuant to the relevant tax regulations of the PRC, the Company was RIRA AT S IRBIARE - N2 R B 2004F =
entitled to the exemption of CIT from 2004 to 2008, and 50% deduction 2008 F BRI HEFTISHL © 2009 =2013F 5
of CIT from 2009 to 2013. The tax preference treatment was expired on RN FEFTER o LalifBUERE 12013
31 December 2013. The effective tax rate of the Company in 2015 is 25% FI12A31BER « RAFIR2015FEHER
(2014: 25%). K B25% (20146 & : 25%) °
The applicable tax rate of the other group companies in 2015 is 25% (2014 ZF% BREAM R R R2015F E KA EFT
25%). SRBIER25% (2014F & : 25%)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL [0 &S4fEr#skRzR1E B M
STATEMENTS
(1) Cash at bank and on hand (1) EES

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12831H 2014128318

Cash on hand BEFRE 35,641 134,357

Cash at bank RITER 1,023,231,391 1,884,423,030
1,023,267,032 1,884,557,387

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's deposit in HNA Group Finance Co.,, 2015124318 + 7R Bl 5 /8%

Ltd ("HNA Group Finance”, a related party) amounted to RMB350,671,059 FBBRAR (M) BiRT T_,TA

(31 December 2014: RMB199,358,573). A R #350,671,0597T (20144128318 © A

R #199,358,5737T) °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (2) FEUWBRFX
31 December 31 December

2015 2014
2015%F12A31H 201412 A31H

Accounts receivable by nature FEW R FRIR B Bl
~ from aeronautical services — RERMZELKRA 123,335,441 97,186,683
— from non-aeronautical services — RERIEM =LA 181,677,093 27,354,656
305,012,534 124,541,339
Less: provision for bad debts W EEREE (1,828,230) (3,839,026)
303,184,304 120,702,313

Accounts receivable by customers U IR R &l D
— from third parties — U E =R 248,580,881 78,692,001
Less: provision for bad debts L EEREE (1,828,230) (3,839,026)
246,752,651 74,852,975
— from related parties — FEUL REESE T BR TR 56,431,653 45,849,338
Less: provision for bad debts R AR - -
56,431,653 45,849,338
303,184,304 120,702,313
Credit terms granted to customers are determined on an individual basis AEBER THERFPHEAHBEELEERE

with a general range from 1 to 3 months. EREZET  —MRRI1E3EA -

167



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements 833 1 £ % #

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (f&4ERIEERBAN -

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

SRBM/ARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

168

(a)

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable, based on the date of
recognition, is set out as follows:

(2) EUWERFR (@)

(a)

JE U BR SR BN BR B HA Y BR e 5 AT 4R
T

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

2015%12831H 2014 12H31H

Within 90 days 90K 178,533,954 104,971,482
91 to 180 days 91 RE 180K 38,807,796 5,790,303
181 to 365 days 181K E 365K 82,037,452 6,200,229
Over 365 days 365K A _E 5,633,332 7,579,325
305,012,534 124,541,339

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has performed an impairment
assessment on accounts receivable from third parties, accounts
receivable of RMB114,075,553 (31 December 2014: RMB5,142,852)
are past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade
receivables, based on the date of recognition, is set out as follows:

R2015F12A31H ' AEBEEER
BEERREELHE = HEWERKGEE
ITRER G - AR ERERRHEA
R %114,075,5537¢ (20149128318 :
AR#5142,85270) B @ HAE RET A
BEEE ZEARBSENERES TN
T

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

2015%F12A31H 201412 A31H

91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 33,082,494 885,800
181 to 365 days 181K E365K 80,668,113 2,340,000
Over 365 days 365K A _E 324,946 1,917,052
114,075,553 5,142,852

The balances aged within 365 days represent mainly the franchise
income due from Meilan Airport Duty-Free Shop of RMB109,599,325,
which are expected to be recovered within one year. Those aged
over 365 days are to be settled through CAAC Settlement Center, the
management is negotiating the payment schedule with the counter

parties.

ARl AR B365 KA IBE E BEIE
HeBERTEEEFEFRBEEAAR
#109,599,3257T * T EARI £ — F A K
B o365 R ERRBRMRIBEERE R
SR E RO R A R X IE B 2 R
&7 el A 7 R EGRIE -
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivable (Continued)

(@]

(d)

As at 31 December 2015, accounts receivable from related parties of
RMB5,319,398 (31 December 2014: RMB9,381,487) are past due but

not impaired. The aging analysis of these trade receivables is set out

(@]

SO B E|RIER M E @

(2) EWERFR (@)

20155128318 @ FE Uk BE B 75 BR 7Kk
A R #5,319,3987T (2014128318 :
AR #9381,4877T) E@MHEE LB FH1E

as follows: B o sZIAEINERFABRAR DT ¢
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155128318 201412 A31H
91 to 180 days 91 KE180K 907,642 3,554,612
181 to 365 days 181 K E 365K 331,595 3,679,401
Over 365 days 365 KA 4,080,161 2,147,474
5,319,398 9,381,487

The balances aged within 365 days are related to a number of related
parties for whom there is no recent history of default, which are
expected to be recovered within one year. For those aged over 365
days, the management is under negotiation of the payment schedule
with the related parties.

The movement of provision for bad debts is set out as follows:

(d)

365K LA A BR e ) ZRIE B R W S LB 1
W AR SRR BB 5 - TEEA R —
FRUE o 365K A EEREBAFRIBAIE
BB T N AEBX N A RD
FEWGRIA o

BREREEEERAEEEBER
T :

Decrease in current year

31 December AE R D 31 December

2014 Additions Written off Reversals 2015

20144 20155

12831H AN %58 e 128318

Provision for bad debts ZEREG 3,839,026 1,828,230 (3,165,286) (673,740) 1,828,230
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(3) Advances to suppliers

The ageing of advances to suppliers is analysed as follows:

SRBM/ARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(3) A FIE

BENFRERE DA

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

2015F12H31H 2014 12H318
% of total % of total
Amount balance Amount balance
LA ZE LB Ih#BEE LBl
X (%) Gt (%)
Within 1 year —E PR 1,936,434 100.00% 1,644,333 93.25%
1 to 2 years —B| = - - 118,990 6.75%
1,936,434 100.00% 1,763,323 100.00%

(4) Other receivables

(4) H bWk

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

20155128318 201412 H31H

Deposits for borrowing BRREE 16,500,000 -
Others HAith 7,465,933 4,560,931
23,965,933 4,560,931
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued) (4) HtEWR ()
The ageing of other receivables is analysed below: HA UK ARES TR T -
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

20155128318 201412 A31H

Within 90 days 90F LA 6,720,287 1,710,860
91 to 180 days 91 RE180K 12,782,094 147,465
181 to 365 days 181 K2 365K 975,211 1,155,926
Over 365 days 365K B E 3,488,341 1,546,680
23,965,933 4,560,931
As at 31 December 2015, the balances of other receivables of the Group 2015128318 © NEEE th fE UL FRER B
aged over 365 days are related to a number of related parties which the FBIB36S RMHIEEE RN H A RK - B
management does not recognise as issues of recoverable. No provision was BERAETFEERERRE - EtEKF0R
made against these receivables. Bt REREE -
Other current assets (5) HittRBEE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

20155128318 2014128318

VAT recoverable IR ER 8,329,277 784,037
Entrusted long due within —FEL NIRRT E S

one year (Note(a)) (B15£(a)) 380,000,000 -
Prepayments of other taxes and levies B E AR 2 1,795 1,795
388,331,072 785,832
(@ In year 2014, the Group granted a two-year entrusted loan of @ ZAEBER20145F BB G M B 75 (A 7E B
RMB380,000,000 to Hainan Haidao Commercial Management Co., Ltd. A EEREESEAER AR ([ES
("Haidao Commercial”, a related party) through HNA Group Finance mE]D) REASM-_FHNEZEEN &
which is at fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The entrusted loans B A A R #380,000,0007T + & TE G F =&
will be due for repayment in December 2016, therefore were classified 8%  #% Zb 10 IR H20165F 12 A E

as other current assets as at 31 December 2015. B S REEMRBEE °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(6) Long-term receivables (6) REFEW

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12A31H 201412 A31H

Entrusted loan (Note 4(5)(a)) ZEEE R (B 309(5)@) - 380,000,000
(7) Long-term equity investments (7) REBRERE
Associates - Unlisted companies BErE - F LHna

Movement in current year
A
Share of net
profit and loss

of investees Other
under equity movement
31 December method of equity 31 December
2014 (Note 4(34)) (Note 4(26)) 2015
WRERERE Hith
20145 H)F IR 3y 4 20154

12A318  (W7#mc4) (B7#026) 12A31H

Haikou Decheng Industrial and BOEHEXERE
Development Co,, Ltd. BRAR]
("Haikou Decheng’) (DeREH) 30,874,298 1,111,290 - 31,985,588
Hainan Airlines Airport Holding EMEIZ R (SE)
(Group) Company Limited BRAR ([SHs
("HNA Airport Holdings”) (Note) YRR 1) (B E)
(Note 4(21)) (Kritrmi1)) 1,097,272,564 66,505,445 14923975 1,178,701,984
1,128,146,862 67,616,735 14,923,975 1,210,687,572
There is no significant restriction on the long term equity investments. AEEEBREPE AN FEERES T E
EARR A o
Note: The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Holding and its Mizx : ‘B R EF AT ([/Emkisir
subsidiaries (the "HNA Airport Group”) are in the PRC, and there is no business R EE ) B9t & B4R & 1 17
relationship between the Group and HNA Airport Group. BIERN - EANEBEEER FAER -
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

SRBEVSARKET)

SO B E|RIER M E @

q =
(8) Fixed assets (8) EEEE
Machinery Office
Buildings and equipment
and structures equipment Transportation and others Total
EEREEY ] EWTH BAREREAM CEl
Cost RE
31 December 2014 2014F12A318 1,202,606,226 84,860,647 88,476,861 75,592,705 1,451,536,439
Increase in current year AREEN
Purchase BE 503,743,193 39,316,470 20,750,022 20,426,436 584,236,121
Transfer from CIP FETREEA 41,922,890 2,393,691 - 468,354 44,784,935
Decrease in current year RERD
Disposal and other decrease e B K E AR (44,260) (8,906,171) (4,602,733) (5,569,550) (19,122,714)
31 December 2015 20154128318 1,748,228,049 117,664,637 104,624,150 90917945  2,061434,781
Accumulated Depreciation ZEE
31 December 2014 2014%12A31H (317,458,310) (19,357,811) (30,886,518) (43,519,060) (411,221,699
Increase in current year ANELEN
Depreciation charged in
current year i (32,845,360) (11,388,907) (9,574,867) (8,631,373) (62,440,507)
Decrease in current year RERD
Disposal and decrease RE NEAMRD - 2,537,200 3,965,133 4,566,752 11,069,085
31 December 2015 20154124318 (350,303,670) (28,209,518) (36,496,252) (47,583681)  (462,593,121)
Carrying amount REEE
31 December 2015 201512 A31H 1,397,924,379 89,455,119 68,127,898 43,334,264 1,598,841,660
31 December 2014 201412 A31H 885,147,916 65,502,836 57,590,343 32,073,645 1,040,314,740

(@) Depreciation of RMB61,922,994 and RMB517,513 have been charged to  (a)
operating costs and general and administrative expenses for the year (2014:

RMB57,973,925 and RMB677,017) respectively.

RNEEFABERANEEBANINES B
A R%61,922,9947T A & A R#517,5137¢C
(201455 : DRI AARYES7,973925TT A K
AR#677,0177T) °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) Fixed assets (Continued)

(b) Fixed assets held under finance lease
As at 31 December 2015, fix assets with a carrying amount of RMB102,675,243
(original cost of RMB145,370,653) (31 December 2014: carrying amount of
RMB97,421,373, original cost of RMB121,350,558) of the Company and the

Group (Note 10) are held under a sale and finance leaseback arrangement,
which is analysed as follows:

SRBM/ARETT)

N S OF R R R IR B MR @

(8) BIE&EE (@)

(b) AEHAALEEEZE
201512318 - XEBERA ARG EE
BEARE10267523T(REBA AR
145,370,65370) HIEE EE A A E R E &
BHEEHANHEA (2014F128318 : FE
BEAARK 42137378 REAARE

121,350,5587%) (FizE+)

- BEAHMT :

~HR=2

Accumulated Carrying

31 December 2015 Cost Depreciation amount
201512 A31H RE BitinE FREIEE
Machinery and equipment W22 TR 70,829,969 (24,299,254) 46,530,715
Transportation Eig T A 71,570,484 (17,223,469) 54,347,015
Office equipment and others AR R EAM 2,970,200 (1,172,687) 1,797,513
145,370,653 (42,695,410) 102,675,243

Accumulated Carrying

31 December 2014 Cost Depreciation amount
2014F12A318 - JRE REE FRE(EE
Machinery and equipment Hes L 79,089,139 (15,533,238) 63,555,901
Transportation BT A 38,543,679 (7,540,221) 31,003,458
Office equipment and others PR R EAD 3,717,740 (855,726) 2,862,014
121,350,558 (23,929,185) 97,421,373
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fixed assets (Continued)

The Group and Haikou Meilan entered into an investment agreement
related to international terminal building, west gallery expansion and
other ancillary projects on 26 August 2011 (Note 7(6)(a)). The international
terminal building and its ancillary projects, which have been completed
and put into use in 2013, were recognised as fixed assets at an original cost
of RMB236,748,630 (including the original cost of international terminal
building of RMB186,133,521 and the original cost of other ancillary projects
of RMB50,615,109) in 2013. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount
of these assets is RMB223,352,604 (31 December 2014: carrying amount of
RMB229,093,758). The ownership of the international terminal building are
jointly held by the Company and Haikou Meilan. The west gallery expansion
project have been completed and put into use in October 2015 and were
recognised as fixed assets of RMB601,120,441, as at 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of these assets is RMB598,431,745, whose ownership
certification were in the progress of obtain.

As at 31 December 2015, the international terminal building with a
carrying amount of RMB175,601,466 (original cost of RMB186,133,521)
were pledged as collateral for the Haikou Meilan’s long-term borrowings
of RMB560,000,000 (31 December 2014: RMB291,000,000), the borrowing
is specifically for financing the construction of the international terminal
building, west gallery expansion and other ancillary projects, the Company
and Haikou Meilan are the co-borrowers.

(8)
(c)

(d)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
SREMSARETT)

SOt FEHRIEFEE ME @
BE&EE (#80)

R2011F8H26H + AEBE G OXEHH
1B S BB A U A2 © M A AE TR 38 R R
RIRUREMESREETIZEZREL H
Z (aEEG)@) EFEEMmEREE
TREMMDBEETTIVTLEEETEEAR
#5236,748,6307C (BB MUt R E R E A A
R#¥186,133521 * At TREREAARE
50,615,1097C) * FA20155E12 8318 @ % 3 &
TEMEERBEEEASAR223352604
7T (2014128310 : EEEEAARK
229,093,7587C) * BB MILERNFE EE#EE
AEEOERES -  MUERERERT
FBER2015F 10 T EEHBEEEEAR
#601,120,4417T » F2015F12 318 » 3% &P
HIEMNEERAEEASAR598431,745
TC HEREEE RERES o

H2015F 128318 BREAEE A AR
175,601,4667C (R H & A R #186,133,521
T0) MBBMUEIE (FAEBOERARE
560,000,0007C & B 1E& ZX A ¥ (20144512
A31H : AR #291,000,0007T) @ & HE
1B AR BB SIS « FIUGIETE 5 BRiE T T2
AREMESHRETIZERIAR - BOXH
BARNRBZERNERERA °

Construction in progress (9) EETRE
Including:
Transfer to interest
31 Increasein fixed assets 31  Accumulated capitalisation Interest
December current in current December interest in current  capitalisation
2014 year year 2015 capitalisation year rate
Rk X
20145 KEEA 20155 EHERAER BRER BRER
12A31R REZM EEEE 128318 LRiHeE  ER(EE AR
Terminal complex project IhRGAE 98979369 425,952,961 - 524932330 211442330 146,803,189 6.49%
West Gallery expansion and
other ancillary project FEBRERETR 16,320,707 25,602,183 (41,922,890) - 41,922,890 25,602,183 8.26%
Phase Il expansion project e - HRETE - 8,550,000 - 8,550,000 8,550,000 8,550,000 8.90%
Other projects EMIRER 743250 30687718 (2862,045) 35,068,925 - -
122,543,328 490,792,862 (44,784,935) 568,551,255 261,915,220 180,955,372
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(10) Intangible assets (10) BMELEE
Land use right
T fERARE
Cost JR{E
31 December 2015 and 201512 H31B &
31 December 2014 2014%12H31H 224,715,283
Accumulated amortisation AT
31 December 2014 2014 12H318 (43,033,617)
Amortisation in current year Wi (3,971,763)
31 December 2015 201512 A31H (47,005,380)
Carrying amount ARIE 58
31 December 2015 2015512 A31H 177,709,903
31 December 2014 2014512 A31H 181,681,666

(@) Amortisation expenses of RMB3,971,763 (2014: RMB3,971,764) were

charged to operating costs in the current year.

(b) The international terminal building and its ancillary projects were put
into use in 2013, as at 31 December 2015, the relevant LUR amounted
to RMB43,123,945 (original cost of RMB45,078,000) (31 December 2014:
carrying amount of RMB43,932,520, original cost of RMB45,078,000) of
which the LUR certification is held by Haikou Meilan.
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(a)

AFEEFEENEHESESR
AR #3971,7637C (2014F € : AR
3,971,7647T) * ZFART AE A o

TS B MG S R TR E B
B R20135F % A A (Bt 52 (8)(0) -
MR20155F12H31H % Ti2 M8 B /) - i
FRAEREEELN A AREKA3123945
70 (R B« A R #45,078,0007T) (2014
F12ANBE: FEHEEAORARE
43,932,5207T  JR1E A A K #45,078,000
JC) - T Hb A RERE M B8 O R R
ﬁ o
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(10) Intangible assets (Continued)

(@]

(e)

As at 31 December 2015, LUR with a carrying amount of RMB8,469,301
(original cost of RMB11,852,138) (31 December 2014: carrying amount
of RMB8,717,183, original cost of RMB11,852,138) was pledged as
collateral for the Group’s long-term borrowings of RMB1,298,720,000
(31 December 2014: RMB1,529,750,000) (Note 4(21)).

As at 31 December 2015, LUR with a carrying amount of RMB69,232,255
(original cost of RMB86,905,771) (31 December 2014: RMB70,768,483,
original cost of RMB86,905,771) was pledged as collateral for the
Haikou Meilan’s long-term borrowings of RMB560,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB291,000,000), the borrowing is specifically for
financing the international terminal building, west gallery expansion
and other ancillary projects, and the Company and Haikou Meilan are
the co-borrowers.

The carrying amount of land use rights by regions and years of
limitation are analysed as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
SREMSARETT)

SO EHRRIEA B ME @

(100 BEEE (@)

(@]

20158128318 © BRABEAARE
8,469,3017C (JRB R A K®11,852,1387L)
(20145128318 : EEEBEAARE
8,717,1837C * |RBE &/ A K ¥11,852,138
) BT ERE - ERITEARE
1,298,720,0007T #) 35 7T & B f& X Ay 3K
¥ (2014F128318 : T AR
1,529,750,0007T) (KizEME(Q21)) °

R2015F128318 BREEBE A A
K %69232255T(R B B A R &
86,905,7717%) (2014512 A31H : BR M|
BEABARK70,7684837C ' REAA
X #586,905,77170) BY + 3 R # - {E
A8 03 A R#560,000,0007T & H (&
REKIRY) (2014F128318 : AR
291,000,0007T) * 7% {8 5K F 18 A A B R
uhiE - AUt EEEMER TENAR
HM#IZRETRERER - BOE
BHEAR R R AZE RO ERBRA °

T fsh A AR AT AR D [ K SR o T 4R
T

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
2015%F12H31H 2014 12H31H

Inside Mainland China — NLF R B A 3 —
between 10 to 50 years 10Z504F 55,013,653 56,623,807
over 50 years 509 LA 122,696,250 125,057,859
177,709,903 181,681,666
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(11) Deferred tax assets (1) EBEFESREE
(a) Deferred tax assets - before offset (a) KA HRELTEZHEE
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
2015%12A31H 201412 H31H
Deductible Deductible
Deferred temporary Deferred temporary
tax assets differences tax assets differences
IEIE GIE: %l IRAE GIE: &0

FEHEE ERMER mMENEE 2 ERHEER

Provision for asset impairment BEREERS 457,058 1,828,230 959,757 3,839,026
Accrued allowance for directors TAfRRE R ER, 120,547 482,192 162,686 650,744
Accrued termination benefits TafR R E A 531,237 2,124,947 824,334 3,297,336
Accrued airline subsidy TEFE M AR 5 2 AR Bl X 3,265,250 13,061,000 3,725,000 14,900,000
Government grants related to
fire alarm system BT E B 48 B 3,442,500 13,770,000 2,967,500 11,870,000
Accrued remuneration for directors, ~ TB1REE - B5E -
supervisors and senior management =R EIEA SIS - - 4,517,239 18,068,956
7,816,592 31,266,369 13,156,516 52,626,062
Including: Hr
Deferred tax assets to be TEFTR1EA
recovered within one year (E14)
(one year inclusive) A EIfE ek 651,837 668,759
Deferred tax assets to be TERTA 1 F &8 B A
recovered after more than one year - 7,164,755 12,487,757
7,816,592 13,156,516

(b) As at 31 December 2015, no deferred tax liabilities is recognised (b) 72015F12A318 + AEEEELEMSHE
(31 December 2014: nil). & (2014F12A31H « #]&) °

178



EBMERKROGERAR
—E-RFFR

Votes to the Financial Statements 83 1 % #

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BlERRAN -

4 NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(12) Other non-current assets

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
SREMSARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(12) EteFRBEE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
20155 12H31H 2014512 H31H
Advance of the terminal ARG ERERE TIERE
expansion project (Note 7(6)(a)) 2XEE (Bit+6)aE) - 361,534,570
Advance of the terminal
complex project (a) B uhATAR A i T2 (a) 452,900,683 468,302,800
Advance of acquisition agreement (b) AR EBER (b) 570,000,000 =
Advance payment for LUR of Phase |l
Expansion Project (c) Tt —HAEE TR 3R (c) 600,000,000 -
Advances of other projects HEIEN TR 33,753,321 11,390,824
1,656,654,004 841,228,194

Up to 31 December 2015, the Group has paid RMB766,390,683
to Yangpu Guoxing Construction Co., Ltd (“Yangpu Guoxing”) in
connection with the terminal complex project (31 December 2014:
RMB502,643,028), of which RMB313,490,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB34,340,228), were transferred to construction in progress. Details
of the terminal complex project are set out in Note 7(6)(b).

In current year, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into an
equity transfer agreement pursuant to which, Haikou Meilan agreed
to transfer 100% of the equity interest in Haikou Meilan Airport
Assets Management Co., Ltd. to the Company at a consideration of
RMB604,800,000. As at 31 December 2015, the Group has paid the
consideration of RMB570,000,000 to Haikou Meilan (31 December 2014:

nil). Details of the acquisition agreement are set out in Note 7(6)(c).

(a)

& 22015128318 KN &£ B & &
SREFHERETRERER QA
([ m B 2 ) 28 3 3 B R 4 45 ik A1
BRAREENRABNIBRRAARK
766,390,6837C (201451283180 : AR
#5502,643,0287C) ' T LHERFEE S
fE 2 T2 A R #313,490,0007T (20144F
128318 : AR®34,340,2287T) ° Uh AT
BEBIRBNFABRAFE2RWEE
©6)(b) °

RAFEE  AQREEOEBER
EEZWE BOEBREEEEE
FHHISEESEARAD A100%%
7 {E{B A R ¥604,800,0007T ° & =
20155F12H31H - "EBE R4
80 X/ AR %570,000,0007T (20144
12H318 : &) - RIEEEGZNFH
BERFEL B EL6)) e
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12) Other non-current assets (Continued) (12 HtERBEE (40
(© In current year, the Company prepaid RMB600,000,000 to the (© RAFE -  AREPEBEKS — B9
government for the LUR of the Meilan Airport Phase Il Expansion BEE ((ZHERZEBEE ] ITARK
Project (“Phase Il Expansion Project”). Details of Phase Il Expansion 600,000,000 IR o — BRI IE B /Y
Project are set out in Note 7(6)(d). IR FES R EG)d) °
(13) Accounts payable (13) FE{TERTX
The ageing analysis of accounts payable, based on the dates of recognition, FERBRFUZ E AR HHARBRER D ATZA T ¢

is set out as follows:

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015%512831H 201412 H31H
Within 90 days 90K AR 14,282,146 9,249,894
91 to 180 days 91K ZE 180K 4,444,660 2,478,336
over 180 days 180K BA 337,200 3,505,858
19,064,006 15,234,088

(14) Advances from customers (14) AR RRIE

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

2015F12A831H 20144%12H318

User fees of VIP room EEEFHE 7,561,642 5,796,427
Consideration of land use rights b A RE R RE IR

(Note 7(6)(a-1)) (M ett6)a-1)) 3,128,973 3,128,973

Takeoff and landing fees HEpE B 149,638 364,871

10,840,253 9,290,271
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
SREMSARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(15) Employee benefits payable

(15) FE {4 58 T 357 A

31 December
2015
2015%F12A31H

31 December
2014
201412 A31H

Short-term employee benefits payable FE SRS BA = M 26,852,259 22,675,115
Defined contribution plans payable it E T2 1,050 52,176
Termination benefits payable FESBER B T
(due within one year) (—FEREIHRZH) 1,028,591 1,392,107
27,881,900 24,119,398
(a) Short-term employee benefits payable (a) FERI#F A
31 December Increase Decrease 31 December
2014 incurrentyear  in current year 2015
20144 2015
124318 RELE M RERD 12A31A8
Wages and salaries, bonuses I% - #e 28
and allowances M#HEE 20,852,556 126,030,250 (121967,085) 24,915,721
Staff welfare BIBMNE - 6,161,129 (6,161,129) -
Social security contributions reREE 18,285 4,363,328 (4,383,326) (1,713)
Including: Medical insurance Heh: BERRE 15,545 3,834,753 (3,852,586) (2,288)
Work injury insurance TIEREBRE 984 252,624 (253,608) -
Maternity insurance EERBE 1,756 275,951 (277,132) 575
Supplementary medical insurance BB ERR = 814,668 (813,784) 884
Housing funds FEAES 366,343 5,696,585 (5,865,631) 197,297
Labor union and employee ITeRBMBIHE
education funds KE 1,437,931 2,944,562 (2,642,423) 1,740,070
22,675,115 146,010,522 (141,833,378) 26,852,259
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(15) Employee benefits payable (Continued)
(b) Defined contribution plans payable

SRBM/ARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(15) FEASE T 5B ()
(b) REEFE

31 December 2015 31 December 2014
2015%12H31H 2014512 H31H

Amount Ending Amount Ending

payable balance payable balance

AR FRERER eI & 58 FARERE

Basic social pension security EREZRR 9,497,804 - 8,073,806 39,040
Unemployment insurance KERRE 470,134 1,050 474,641 13,136
9,967,938 1,050 8,548,447 52,176

(c) Termination benefits payable

(c) FETEFEREF

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12831H 201412 H31H

Early retirement benefits payable FERT R R A 2,273,044 3,665,150
Less: Termination benefits payable over R BRRREA R
1 year presented in long-term BIHme—F
employee benefits payable LA E RS AR EF (1,244,453) (2,273,043)
1,028,591 1,392,107
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(16) Taxes payable
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(16) ERXHE

31 December

SO B E|RIER M E @

31 December

2015 2014
2015 12A31H 201412 H318
CIT payable JER I ZEFREHL 40,227,479 38,206,004
Business tax payable JERZ & ZER 2,765,314 3,482,692
Property tax payable FEREEM 602,212 2,145,213
Individual income tax payable FEZEAFR1S L 893,529 142,190
Others Hit 1,318,958 712,597
45,807,492 44,688,696

(17) Interests payable (17) BRFRIE

31 December

31 December

2015 2014
2015%F12A831A 2014512 H31H
Interests of long-term borrowings with
repayment of interest and principal HEEARN BRI REER
by installment & 205,628 670,293
Interests of corporate bonds (Note 4(22)) NEESHME (WiZrme2) 49,746,667 49,746,667
49,952,295 50,416,960

183



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements 833 1 £ % #

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015 €

(All amounts in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (f&4ERIEERBAN -

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

SRBM/ARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(18) Dividends payable (18) FEAS AR R
2015 2014
20156 F 20145
Dividends payable of ordinary
shares at the beginning of year F ] A~ 3 3B AR A% ) 499,500 666,000
Add: Dividends payable of ordinary 0 ARG A B AR AR
shares in current year (B1a£P28)
(Note 4(28), 4(38)) Bfatry(38)) 99,847,960 79,953,100
Less: Dividends and withholding T ANFIREE AR K&
tax paid in current year RINFHE (99,847,960) (80,119,600)
Dividends payable of ordinary
shares at the end of year F N B iR AR AR A 499,500 499,500
(19) Other payables (19) AL EEAFR
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%12H31H 201412431 H
Airport ground services fee payable FERHR Ut T IR 75 2 108,939,962 9,654,183
Construction fee and quality
assurance payables ERNERELIERR IEERSE 101,881,919 11,008,663
Guarantee deposits ENHRERES 21,004,567 26,605,819
Accrued airlines development subsidy TEFR M AR B 25 40 AL X 13,061,000 14,900,000
Accrued airlines increment subsidy TEIR 47 12 S AL X 3,176,336 3,204,506
Airline subsidy received on behalf R AT AR 7l AL K - 4,753,069
Others Hih 35,695,504 44110,115
283,759,288 114,236,355
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(20) Non-current liabilities due within one year

EBMERKROGERAR

—T-REEH

Votes to the Financial Statements 83 1 % #

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€

31 December

SRBEVSARKET)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(20 —FARAIBNFERBEE

31 December

2015 2014
2015%F12H31H 20145 12A31H
Long-term borrowings due within one year —FRE N REER
(Note 4(21)) (HteEm21)) 1,421,619,464 416,092,000
Long-term payables due within one year —FREEHREBEN R
(Note 4(23)) (B #£PY23)) 39,792,890 28,581,972
1,461,412,354 444,673,972
(21) Long-term borrowings 21) REAfERK
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%F12H31H 2014512 A31H
Secured borrowings EHE K 2,354,574,627 1,662,055,758
Less: Long-term borrowings B —FEARE R REER
due within one year (Note 4(20)) (Kt7rm20)) (1,421,619,464) (416,092,000)
932,955,163 1,245,963,758

As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average interest rate of long-term
borrowings is 6.74% per annum (31 December 2014: 5.86%).

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings of US$200,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,298,720,000) (31 December 2014: US$250,000,000, equivalent
to RMB1,529,750,000) are secured by the 51% interests of Hainan Meilan
International Airport Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. (“Meilan Cargo”) held by
the Company (Note 5(1)(a)) and the Group’s LUR with a carrying amount of
RMBB8,469,301 (original cost: RMB11,852,138) (Note 4(10)). Interest is payable
every quarter and the principal is due for repayment on installment before

30 December 2016.

M2015F12A318 -

R2015F 124318 - REAEFZMIIEFHF
AR 56.74% (2014F12831H © 5.86%) °

R 17 B X E T
200,000,0007T (#T& A K #1,298,720,0007T)
(20145128318 : 3 7£250,000,0007C * #7
& A K #1,529,750,0007T) =& B AR A #F
BEWEEERNER®SE
([ZHEE] S1%REERER (ERO)
@) EARSEEREEELN A KES469,3017T

BEREMERT

(REAARM11,852,1387T) <2 + b F#E
EAER (FIEm00) @ MESFEEZMN—
R REFER20165E12 A30B R HAEE -
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4

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(21) Long-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, bank borrowings of US$8,993,475 (equivalent
to RMB58,400,030) (31 December 2014: US$26,993,475, equivalent to
RMB165,173,074) are secured by the 24.5% interests of HNA Airport Holding
held by the Company (Note 4(7)). Interest is payable every quarter and the
principal is due for repayment on installment before 26 January 2016. The
Company has settled such borrowings in January 2016.

On 2 July 2015, the Company raised a loan of RMB1,100,000,000 from CITIC
Trust Co., Ltd., which is secured by the right of receipt of aviation services
fees of the Company from 1 May 2015 to 30 April 2020, interest and principal
should be due for repayment on installment in the next 5 years. As at 31
December 2015, the balance of the loan is RMB1,030,000,000 (31 December
2014 nil).

(22) Corporate bonds

186

SRBM/ARETT)

31 December

SO EHRRIEA B ME @

21) REAERR (@)

720159124318 -+ $R1T1E 5K 378,993,475
7T (T & A R #58400,0307T) (2014412
B318 : 3 7T269934757C © T & AR
165,173,07470) = AR G F A KNS5
ZRR24 5% RIEE AE R (M) - 7 &
FEEINN—R A& ER20165F1H26H
RO HAEE - A RRIBR2016F1 ABEZ
BER °

2015F7 A28 » AR ERFEEFLZERA
RAIfEAE KA R #1,100,000,0007T + BA2015
F5H1H Z2020F4 308 B A AR R & Y
MERBEEWAEINERER - FlEH
R ERSFE N7 BiEE - R2015512H31
H - ZIE BT A A K 1,030,000,0007T
(20145128318 : &) -

(22) A EIESH

Amortisation 31 December

2014 in current year 2015
20144F 20154
12A31H 2N 3 12A31H
Long-term corporate bonds EHARIES 793,619,030 1,333,086 794,952,116
Related information of bonds is as follows: BEABEEEMT :
[ssuance
Par value Issuance date Maturity amount
[ =] #17HH 55 HR BT
13 March 2012 7 years
Corporate bonds NafES 800,000,000 201243 F13H 745 800,000,000
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(22) Corporate bonds (Continued)

Interest accrued of the bonds is analysed as below:

SO B E|RIER M E @

(22) R EIESF (@)
EE EHFISHHMT

Interest accrued

FERT RIS
31 December Interest accrued Interest paid in 31 December
2014 in current year current year 2015
2014 12A31H AEEEA S AFENFIE 2015F128318
Corporate bonds NEfES 49,746,667 62,400,000 (62,400,000) 49,746,667

Pursuant to Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2011] No. 2082 approved by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company issued corporate bonds of
RMB800,000,000 to designated investors which is listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange on 13 March 2012. The maturity of the bonds is 7 years, the fixed
interest rate is 7.8% per annum, interest is repayable annually on 15 March

of each of the years and the principal is repayable upon maturity.

(23) Long-term payables

KhEESFEEEELZTESEENT
[2011]20825% 3 4% » 201293 A 138 AR 7]
REBBELFRGMARBTERBRERR
AIfES - B1THZE A KH800,000,0007T * &
FHIR B7E o WWEFRBEMNIRFTE -
EEFFERE78%  FFHE—X  [FEAR
REFIAISH - A ERER —RMEERE -

(23) REAFEAISK

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015%F12A31H 201412 A31H

Payables for finance lease ERERER 101,970,597 94,877,308

Less: payables for finance lease due W —FERE AR EA A
within one year (Note 4(20)) BE (K:Er900) (39,792,890) (28,581,972)
62,177,707 66,295,336
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(23) Long-term payables (Continued)

Payables for finance lease is analysed as follows:

SRBM/ARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(23) REAEMR (@)
FE < B A TR & 2RAR 4

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

20155128318 201412 H31H

Payables to Jiangsu Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. M I# & RBAEHR A 71,977,039 94,877,308
Payables to Dongyin Finance Leasing (Tianjin) FERMEREMERE (K2)

Co,, Ltd. BRAA 29,993,558 -

101,970,597 94,877,308

Payables for finance lease represent the minimum lease payments for the
Group's fixed assets held under finance leases less unrecognised finance
charges.

As at 31 December 2015, the unrecognised financing charge amounted to
RMB10,675,666 (31 December 2014: RMB12,305,087) (Note 4(8)(b)).

(24) Other non-current liabilities

ENREHERAAREREEAETEE
MR ERENRBIRARERRE ERED
BREE ©

2015124318 + RERWEE EHASGSE

ABANR10,6756667C (2014F12A318 + A
R #12,305,08770) (MI5¥PU8(D)) °

(20) HfbIERBEE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
20155128318 201412 H31H
Deferred income RIS

Government grants related to assets B E MR BT B
— Fire alarm system — Bl R EREEIRES 13,770,000 11,870,000
— Inspection building — B8 I B) 2,800,000 2,900,000

Unrealised gains on sale and leaseback

transaction ABRERE@IES 3,735,734 4,312,600
20,305,734 19,082,600
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(24) Other non-current liabilities (Continued) (24) Ht3ER B EE (@0
31 December Addition Amortisation 31 December
2014 in current year in current year 2015
20145128318 AL AFEE 20156128318
Government grants related to B e R
assets — Fire alarm system ERES 11,870,000 3,000,000 (1,100,000) 13,770,000
Unrealised profit and loss on sale ARERERED
and leaseback transaction B 4,312,600 - (576,866) 3,735,734
Government grants relevant to
assets - Inspection building S iRIE B IR B) 2,900,000 = (100,000) 2,800,000
19,082,600 3,000,000 (1,776,866) 20,305,734
Government grants relevant to assets are amortised over the expected R EMBNBFEBEEERHE A FR
useful life of the assets, i.e. 15 years and 40 years. 155 M405F A SH o
Unrealised gains on sale and leaseback transaction are amortised over the AEZAERZFERAREIREEALER
depreciation period of the leased assets. MIRAREERNTEEEEITH -
(25) Share capital (25) BRZA<
31 December 31 December
2015 and 2014 2015 and 2014

2015%F12H31H X 2015128318 K
2014912 A31H 2014412 A31H

(Number of shares) (RMB)
(B&80 (AR®TT)
Shares held by domestic legal entities BINEAFIK

Haikou Meilan NsAmE Sy 237,500,000 237,500,000
HNA Group Company Limited (“HNA Group”) BMEBAR AT ([EHMEE]) 3,512,500 3,512,500

Hainan Airlines Company Limited B ZERDER AR
("Hainan Airlines”) (["gmMzE]) 5,287,500 5,287,500
Foreign listed shares held by foreign investors 4l i #99NE IR 226,913,000 226,913,000
473,213,000 473,213,000
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(26) Capital surplus (26) EXRNE
31 December Increase in Decrease in 31 December
2014 current year current year 2015
2014%12R318 ARELEN AERL  2015F128318
(Note)
(Hit)
Share premium BRARE 598,983,655 = - 598,983,655
Other capital surplus - HEARTE -
Share of changes in equity other
than comprehensive income BREZENRRE
and profit distribution of BB E WA
investments accounted for HE 2 Be ASMY
using equity method Hitigzm e (30,898,874) 14,923,975 = (15,974,899)
Others Hith 100,500,999 = = 100,500,999
668,585,780 14,923,975 - 683,509,755
31 December Increase in Decrease in 31 December
2013 current year current year 2014
2013124318 RN AEFS  2014F12331H
Share premium R (B 598,983,655 - - 598,983,655
Other capital surplus - HiEADNTE -
Share of changes in equity other
than comprehensive income B ERENRIRE
and profit distribution of BB ER A YA
investments accounted for using FE D BELAING
equity method Hfth e & 166,048 - (31,064,922) (30,898,874)
Others Eih 100,500,999 - - 100,500,999
699,650,702 - (31,064,922) 668,585,780
Note: The increase in other capital surplus in 2015 is mainly due to the increase MizE : 2015F EEMERATENILN - TERH
of the capital surplus of HNA Airport Holdings. As the Group has accounted N RN 32 R ey d R W NN 24
for the investment in HNA Airport Holdings using equity method, the capital - RNEBIREREZERE A R EIGE
surplus of the Group is increased according to its share of increase in capital mERAERASASENEMERRD
surplus of HNA Airport Holdings (Note 5(2)(b)(i)). & FEBERBLEMERQ)D)) °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)

STATEMENTS (Continued)
(27) Surplus reserve

(27) BEADTE

31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014
20155128318 K

2014F12A310

Statutory surplus reserve

246,394,231

In accordance with the Company Law and the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Company should appropriate 10% of net profit for the year
to the statutory surplus reserve, and the Company can cease appropriation
when the statutory surplus reserve accumulated to more than 50% of the
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for
the loss or increase the paid-in capital after approval from the appropriate
authorities. No statutory surplus reserve was appropriated in 2015 and 2014
as the Company'’s statutory surplus reserve has accumulated to more than
50% of its registered capital.

(28) Undistributed profits

As at 31 December 2015, included in the undistributed profits, RMB2,900,615
is subsidiaries’ surplus reserve attributable to the Company (31 December
2014: RMB2,265,427), of which the appropriation made by the subsidiaries
for the year amounted to RMB635,188 (2014: RMB388,773).

BE(RFEAREMBERAGTE) RAARE
12 - AR RIRFEEFNEA10%REVEE &
BMAES  EEACEBRAES R HED
M EARES0% o ETERBABES LR ER
AR BREER - EIBMRAE - BRNEE
BB AES 2 BEEIN A AR EMEARD
50%A £ - ARRQBIR2015% & &2014F E 5
RREVEEABAESD ©

(28) & 73 B F

H2015F 128318 * XA BB+ B 55
BRERAAN FRAARIABRABREAR
#2,000,6157C (20148128318 : A R #
2,26542770) © EARFRRAFETIRMNE
BREQATNBHRAER ARK6351887TC
(20145 E : AR¥388,7737T) °

Total proposed dividends paid in current year & FIg iz KRR FI S 5t

2015 2014
20155 EF 20145 Z
99,847,960 79,953,100
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(28) Undistributed profits (Continued)

Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ annual general meeting on 18
May 2015, 2014 final dividend of RMB0.091 per share, calculated by issued
shares 473,213,000, amounting to RMB43,062,400 (2014: 2013 final dividend
of RMB39,730,000), were declared and paid. For details please refer to Note

4(38).

Pursuant to the resolution of shareholders’ general meeting on 30 October
2015, 2015 interim cash dividend of RMB0.120 per share, calculated by
issued shares 473,213,000, amounting to RMB56,785,560 (2014: interim cash
dividend of RMB40,223,100 were paid), were declared and paid. For details

please refer to Note 4(38).

(29) Minority interest

Equity attributable to the minority shareholders of the subsidiaries

SRBM/ARETT)

(28)

(29)

SO B E|RIER M E @

o B FE

BIE2015F5 F18BRRBF RS HRE - A
ANRAEERREIKE2014F ERPRSK
o BREAE AR RE T
f&19473,213,00008 5t & - IREHRSRFAR
#43,062,4007C (2014F[Z : JREE2013FE R
HAZE & AR FI A R #5309,730,0007T) © 52 R Kt
FEPH(38) °

BIE2015F 10308 R ARG R - AAF]
M2 B8RRI 32015F E R S IR A
B F A AR - IHE BTG
473,213,000k 5t & - KR 2K H AR K
56,785,5607C (20144F[F : JRE2014F EH H]
IR & I FI AR #40,223,1007T) © 2 R K
Py (38) °

5
2
i

FRBDBERN D BB RE R

31 December 31 December

Subsidiaries Minority shareholder 2015 2014
FRE)ETH D B A 2015%12A31H 2014812 A318
Meilan Cargo Baixiang Logistic Co. Ltd. 21,441,125 15,251,802
EHEE BAYMRERAF
Haikou Meilan International Airport Duty

Free Shop Ltd. (“Meilan Duty free shop”) Haikou Meilan - -
BrEEOEMBEBRESEHmERAA

(IEmRi]) O/

21,441,125 15,251,802
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(30) Revenue and operating costs, general and
administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€
SREMSARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(30) ERWMAMEZENAS - EHEH

2015 2014
2015FE 20145 &
Revenue EHEIA
Aeronautical: MIEMERT -
Passenger service charges IRE RS E 229,766,658 190,328,469
Refund of Civil Aviation
Development Fund EmERESRERMAN 184,693,275 160,621,367
Fees and related charges on aircraft
takeoff and landing TR e [ N2 4B A s B 79,972,831 68,139,298
Ground handling service income I T IR 75 & 85,616,611 74,901,249
580,049,375 493,990,383
Non-aeronautical: FERTZE T -
Franchise income TR R A 256,458,436 208,534,299
Freight and packaging income HERBERA 104,666,441 74,381,508
Rental income He WA 38,486,680 37,819,516
VIP room income HEEEWA 17,788,387 19,843,357
Parking fee income EEZUIA 17,023,384 16,055,393
Other income E AP 48,958,182 31,388,889
483,381,510 388,022,962
1,063,430,885 882,013,345
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO KHRRIEE T @
STATEMENTS (Continued)
(30) Revenue and operating costs, general and (30) EEWANMEEREK - EHEH

administrative expenses (Continued) (&)
Operating costs, general and administrative expenses include the following EENAREEBRAEZEHUTEEBK :
items:
2015 2014
2015 E 20145
Employee benefit expenses ETHHMNER 145,147,847 105,306,421
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEENEER 62,440,507 58,650,942
Airport and logistic services fee W35 RN AR & RIS & 42,317,562 36,476,019
Outsource labour costs Eigkie AN BEH 40,072,035 30,650,611
Utilities IKEE 29,014,085 24,210,306
Repairs and maintenance HIEE R 18,802,397 14,337,936
Other taxes H iR 10,224,101 9,807,332
Packaging materials AEFERR AR 5,237,688 4,725,667
Amortisation of land use rights + 3 {5 R AR 3,971,763 3,971,764
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center RmsERLFEE 4,314,405 3,962,055
Audit fees EITAEA 2,670,000 3,260,000
— Audit and review service - Fat MERBIRT 1,900,000 1,810,000
— Non-audit service - EEET AR 770,000 1,450,000
Travelling expenses EIRE 2,210,779 2,284,703
Others Hi 97,413,464 83,199,721
463,836,633 380,843,477
(31) Taxes and surcharges (31) B S KM
2015 2014
2015 E 20145 5
Business tax EEM 17,780,171 13,751,056
Civil maintenance and construction fee Y TH M R AR T 1,572,926 1,518,838
Education fee 2B B 1,181,900 1,134,381
20,534,997 16,404,275
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

SRBEVSARKET)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(32) Financial expenses - net (32) M ER — FH

2015 2014

2015 E 20145

Interest expenses e H 223,705,344 171,493,536

Including: Bank borrowings Hrh : RITIEK 155,317,856 101,870,797

Corporate bonds NEES 63,733,086 63,307,145

Finance lease MERE 4,654,402 6,315,594

Net foreign exchange losses FE HFE K 73,044,238 7,924,283
Less: Interest expenses and exchange B FB T R E K

losses capitalisation =¥\ |9 (180,955,372) (80,959,848)

Less: Interest income T R B A (43,802,977) (15,968,485)

Others HAith 1,944,479 365,853

73,935,712 82,855,339

Interest expenses are analysed by the repayment terms of bank borrowings,

corporate bonds and finance leases as follows:

31 December 2015

MBS HIRRITIER - RREFABREHE

MWEZEHSFTAOT

31 December 2014

20155124318 201456124318

Bank Corporate Finance Bank Corporate Finance

borrowings bonds lease borrowings bonds lease

BITEX AREH MEHEE BITER RAfESH MEHE
Bank borrowings, corporate BE—HENA
bonds and finance lease EREZAK
wholly repayable within B BRK

five years REHE 155,317,856 63,733,086 4,654,402 101,870,797 63,307,145 6,315,594
Corporate bonds wholly RE—HENA

repayable after five years ERFEZENES - - - - - -

155,317,856 63,733,086 4,654,402 101870797 6330745 631559
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(33) Provision for asset impairment losses (33) EEREEX
2015 2014
2015 E 20145
Provision for bad debts FEUG AR F R IE K 1,828,230 443,883
(34) Investment income (34) RE Wz
2015 2014
2015 & 20145 &
Share of profit of an associate BEREZE R EIRERE WS
— HNA Airport Holdings — SR I % 66,505,445 31,472,991
Share of profit of an associate A ZENRARER SRR
— Haikou Decheng — B A= 1,111,290 (353)
Disposal of equity interest in BERIAREREELED
Meilan Advertising wEEKL - XFES - (29,972)
67,616,735 31,442,666

No significant restrictions on the repatriation of investment income.

Investment income derived from unlisted companies in 2015 amounted to

RMB67,616,735 (2014: RMB31,442,666).
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Votes to the Financial Statements 83 1 % #

For the year ended 31 December 2015 2015F /€

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B4 BlERRAN -

SRBEVSARKET)

4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(35) Non-operating income (35) &R IMIA
2015 2014
20156 F 2014 [F
Government grants (Note) AT E) (H7aE) 13,200,000 8,175,000
Others H A, 3,129,901 848,869
16,329,901 9,023,869
Note: In 2015, the government grants, include the amortisation of government MizE © 2015 F EMBURHEIFR - BI58EEEHRH
grants related to asset of RMB1,200,000, mainly for fire alarm system and BB A FE R 58 A R%1,200,000
inspection building (2014: RMB2,100,000, mainly for the grants of fire alarm JC (20142 : AR¥2100,0007T) * £
system); and the government grants related to income amounting to 78 & e BE AN B ARAE A BE ¢ LA R B
RMB12,000,000, mainly for flight normal rate and throughput meet target 7 AEL A B IBUR 7 B & A R #512,000,0007T
(2014: RMB6,075,000). TERMMERRMBUMELEERME

B BEERFTAZHIES Q04FE : AR

#6,075,0007T) ©

(36) Income tax expenses (36) FT 58L& H
2015 2014
20155 20145 F
Current income tax = BT 5 128,411,994 105,194,345
Deferred income tax EEFTISHR 5,431,720 (4,089,592)
133,843,714 101,104,753
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SO RERIE B M EE @)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(36) Income tax expenses (Continued) (36) FTEBHER @)
The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on the applicable tax 1S ERE G A E R A B AR A #E R TR
rates and total profit presented in the consolidated financial statements to ATERMEHASAMEHERAT ¢

the income tax expenses is as below:

2015 2014
2015 E 20145
Total profit e FEEE] 578,804,175 438,705,619
Income tax expenses of the Group BEARSEHEATEGTER
calculated at applicable tax rates FriS i 144,701,044 109,676,405
Effect of change on the tax rates HEREBRE - (2,071,250)
Income not subject to tax FEFE AT UL A (16,904,184) (7,860,667)
Costs and expenses not deductible for
tax purposes TEMBR KA K& E B 1,437,819 951,829
Write-off of deferred tax assets
recognised in previous year RSB AR FE ERIREFT SR B E 4,517,239 =
Under provision in previous year VAR E FTiSFiIE 91,796 408,436
133,843,714 101,104,753
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL [ S48k zREE KT @
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(37) Earnings per share (37) B R Wz
(@) Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing consolidated net @ EAXRNFRUSNFEBNRSRREER
profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the IRER A& GFF FEBR J/A$ N AT
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding: HNE B AR I OB B
2015 2014
20156 F 2014 [F
Consolidated net profit attributable to FEBRAR R E AR
ordinary shareholders of the EXciERbE
Company (RMB) (AR%T) 438,771,138 333,868,533
Weighted average number of outstanding KRB EITEINE B
ordinary shares of the Company (share) INFEFEHE (B%) 473,213,000 473,213,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) HAFRWKZ (AR¥IT) 0.93 0.71
(b) Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the consolidated (b) WHESRKSAREREEE
net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company KAEENSEBERARAZERRKR
adjusted the profit and lose impact of the dilutive potential ordinary B A BEF R EBR AAR BN AR R
shares, if any, by the adjusted weighted average number of ordinary ITEINE BRI F I BGTE - ®
shares outstanding. As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares REE  RAARTGFEEEEREER
in this year (2014: nil), diluted earnings per share equals to basic BEETAEARK 2014F % : £) Btk
earnings per share. mEGRKNESENERNTRIKE °
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

SRBM/ARETT)

SO B E|RIER M E @

(38) Dividends (38) B &I
2015 2014
20155 E 2014
2015 interim dividend paid of RMBO0.120 K201 55 AR HAAR A & Ak
per share (2014 interim dividend: AR#0.1207T (201445
RMB0.085 per share) REARR R « TR
AR#0.0857T) 56,785,560 40,223,100
Proposed 2015 final dividend of RMB0.120 FIR201 5% REARR ) &%
per share (2014 final dividend: RMB0.091 AR#0.1207T (20144
per share) REARKF] © TR
AR#0.0917T) 56,785,560 43,062,400
113,571,120 83,285,500

During the year, 2015 interim cash dividend of RMB0.120 per share, totaling
RMB56,785,560 (2014 interim cash dividend: RMB0.085 per share, totaling
RMB40,223,100) was declared to the shareholders of the Company.

A final dividend of RMB0.120 per share, totaling RMB56,785,560 was
proposed by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2016 (2014 final dividend:
RMB0.091 per share, totaling RMB43,062,400). This dividend has not been
recognised as a liability in these financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2015. It will be recognised as profit appropriation in the

consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2016.
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(39) Supplementary information to the consolidated
cash flow statement

SO B E|RIER M E @

39 BERERBAEH

(a) Reconciliation from net profit to cash flows from operating activities @) HFENEASHALEEHRERE
2015 2014
2015F 20145 &
Net profit A 444,960,461 337,600,866
Add: Provision for asset impairment i SHEM B EREEE 1,828,230 443,883
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEENE 62,440,507 58,650,942
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 3,971,763 3,971,764
Amortisation of deferred income IR FE UG 2 1 2 (1,200,000) (3,253,731)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets REBTEEEMNIBL 7,970,512 3,059,764
Financial expenses 51 7% & F 85,816,432 98,457,971
Investment income wEW (67,616,735) (31,442,666)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets FEEFTISTRE ER A,/ (30) 5,339,924 (4,089,592)
Increase in inventories FERE N (138,341) (29,230)
Increase in operating receivables £ FE IR B RY I N (190,741,054) (40,121,738)
Increase/(decrease) in operating L EEMIE R /Y
payables =0 OFid) 81,708,873 (3,376,383)
Net cash flows from operating activities K EEEENREREFE 434,340,572 419,871,850
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4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SOt FEHRIEFEE ME @
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(39) Supplementary information to the consolidated (39) B&REXRBHZER (@)
cash flow statement (Continued)

(b) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents b) ReRRSZFEWFEHNBR
2015 2014
20155 F 2014 F
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year B& MRS EBYRFREREE 1,023,267,032 1,884,557,387
Less: cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year B Re RIREE BN FEERE (1,884,557,387) (2,998,410,937)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBReEBY TR (861,290,355) (1,113,853,550)
(c) Cash payments relating to other operating activities (0 INEMELSEZSERANES
2015 2014
20156 & 20145 [E

Payments of Ground Service Fee collected A8 O 88 AR UL EY Hb T AR 7S &

on behalf of Haikou Meilan 156,785,306 159,050,893
Payments of travelling and other expenses YREREBEME 50,402,678 50,913,897
207,187,984 209,964,790
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5 INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITY

(1) Interest in subsidiaries
(a) Structure of the Group

EBMERKROGERAR

—T-REEH

Notes to the Financial Statements 833 % £ W%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 &
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIEERBSN -

SREBMA/ARKIT)

h EHMEERPAER

(1) EFLEPHIRES

(a) EFEEBHAIHEAL

Type of Place of Place of Registered Interest Voting Way of
entity operation  registration Principal activities capital held rights  achieve
*Z B RRE
EAER e it FRME AfMER  FREA el mEHR
Meilan Duty Free Shop  Limited liability ~ Haikou Haikou Retail sales 1,000,000 95% 100% Set up
company
e ik BREEAR BAM B/O0m HERKEM BaviiE:
Meilan Cargo (Note) Limited liability ~ Haikou Haikou Provision of cargo 20,000,000 51% 60% Set up
company transportation service
EHEE (Wit) BREMEAR  BAM &0 RESERY BavliC
Note: The Company holds 51% of equity interest and 60% of the voting rights in MizE © RAREERMEENFERLAIA51% - =

Meilan Cargo. The key operating and financial decisions of Meilan Cargo
should be made by its board of directors with the approval of at least half of
the directors attend at the board meeting. Three out of five directors of Meilan
Cargo are nominated by the Company. Therefore, the Company holds 60% of
the voting rights of Meilan Cargo.

There is no restriction of the use of the Group’s assets nor the settlement

of the liability of the Group.

H-EEER
BN D2 —WEZRESLEB - X8
BEEEEGNEHE NAAARIKE

WEEEBEERIBNARREER
HESEERLEESEY

Ak £

3REE  MARBEANRRELA R

60% °

I ERIRR S

AEETFEERSEEELBEREARE

(b) Subsidiaries with material minority interest (b) FHEEEZLERRERHF A

Minority

Minority interest Dividends to minority interest as at

Name of subsidiaries Minority shareholding in 2015 interest in 2015 31 December 2015

20155 EHBR 2015FE@EDE 2015%12831H

FREER DY RV IR LB DEBRRHES R 3R 2 Tk AR A DERRER

Meilan Duty-free shop 5% - = =
ERRH

Meilan Cargo 49% 6,189,323 - 21,441,125
EXWEE
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A B N2z .
5 INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITY (continued) I rEMERPHER @
(2) Interest in associates (2) EHELEPNER
(a) Basic information of significant associates (a) EEBE L2 ERSE
Place of Place of Strategic impacts
operation registration Principal activities on group activities Interest held
HEEED
TEREN  FEfft EBRME =R EEERY B IR LA
Haikou Decheng Haikou, Hainan  Haikou, Hainan Property development, resort Yes 30%
Province Province operation, eco-agriculture
development and gardening
8 A= BEEAAT BREEOm  WERE  KEERKE pa 30%
AR( B2
HNA Airport Group Haikou, Hainan  Haikou, Hainan Airport operation and ground Yes 24.5%
(Note) Province Province handling services; airport
investment, holding,
constructing and rebuilding
BIESHIER (H7T) BEAEBOM BEEEOm  HHEELERMLERE = 24.5%
KERE - Bl 2R
B
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. NEEE i REIR B RA R EZE o
Note: The place of incorporation and business of HNA Airport Group are in the PRC, Mz : BMESIERERNFMREELSE

and there is no business relationship between the Group and HNA Airport
Group. The equity interest held by the Group is 24.5% and the voting rights
are 1/7. Although the percentage of the voting rights held by the Group is less
than 20%, one out of seven directors of the board of directors of HNA Airport
is nominated by the Group. Therefore the Group is able to exercise significant
influence over HNA Airport Group and regarded it as an associate of the Group.
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I EHEHMFEAMNER @
(2) EHECEPNESR @)
(b) EEBE PN T ERFE BT

5 INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITY (continued)
(2) Interest in associates (Continued)

(b) Summarised financial information for the Group’s significant

associates is set out as follow: T :
HNA Airport Group
EMESEREE
31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155F12H31H 2014512 A31H
Current assets mENE E 6,147,837,474 5,890,771,575
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 17,806,233,105 12,308,165,197
Total assets BEAE 23,954,070,579 18,198,936,772
Current liabilities mEAE 6,994,358,389 4,734,447 669
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 9,239,499,496 6,790,785,484
Total liabilities BEAET 16,233,857,885 11,525,233,153
Minority interest (Note (i) VYRR R (i) 3,295,993,194 2,590,271,141
Equity attributable to equity holders of 55 B P B IS I AR AR SR Y
HNA Airport Holdings (Note (i) W (K1) 4,424,219,499 4,083,432,478
Share of net assets based on the
percentage of equity interest IRAEBEHEERLAIGER
held by the Group (Note (ii)) SFEEMRE (K1iFi) 1,083,933,777 1,000,440,957
Adjustment FHEEEIR
— Adjust to the fair value of — IRIREVIS % & R
identifiable net assets upon acquisition TEARRFEE
AR BEETHE 94,768,207 96,331,607
Carrying amount of investment on associate HE S PRSI ENEREE 1,178,701,984 1,097,272,564
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I EHEHMFEAMNER @

(2) EHECEPNESR @)

(b) EBBE L ENTEHBEEEI LT
() -

5 INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITY (continued)
(2) Interest in associates (Continued)

(b) Summarised financial information for the Group's significant
associates is set out as follow (Continued):

HNA Airport Group

206

BRI REE
2015 2014
2015 & 201458
Revenue EE LN 1,074,943,404 1,180,801,551
Net profit A 397,854,205 195,946,972
Attributable to shareholders of 57 B B S 1 AR AR R
HNA Airport Holdings =0)EZAIE 271,450,796 128,461,186
Minority interest profit and loss DT IE 126,403,409 67,485,786
Other comprehensive income H sz B Uz - -
Total comprehensive income iR e W B 5E 397,854,205 195,946,972
Attributable to shareholders of 55 B B 5 AR R /Y
HNA Airport Holdings RE R 271,450,796 128,461,186
Total amount of comprehensive income EBEBRLEKERN
attributable to Minority shareholding el Gy 126,403,409 67,485,786

The Group did not receive dividend from associates this year.

(i)

(if)

Increase is in minority interest of HNA Airport Holdings during the
year is mainly due to further capital injection by minority shareholders
of Sanya Phoenix International Airport Co., Ltd. (“Phoenix Airport”), a
subsidiary of HNA Airport Holdings. As the capitals injected by the
minority shareholders are over their respective share of net assets of
Phoenix Airport, HNA Airport Holdings shared the surplus based on
its shares in Phoenix Airport.

The Group recognises its proportionate share of equity of the associates

AREBAFEZRERKE

(i)

(i)

6 & (b K B AR o

2015@@%*&%% % B9 > BRA% B AE A

0

D RANGMESIZERAN T

AETEEHEM%%%BEEEAE (T
5] MO BBREHIZE - AR
ABARRMESRERSHFEE

a8
FEIE AN E A 2S o

VB L A 45 4 % e L R #E B 1 #B

AEBUBECEEHYBRERTE

based on the percentage of equity attributable to shareholders of BREARNESEAER  RFERE
associates. The consolidated financial statements of associates are Bt EEEMRE - BabtXa Y%

adjusted based on the fair value of the identifiable net assets on the
acquisition date and in accordance with the accounting policies of the
Group.

BRPWESHEER T NBREREZ
CRABAFEEMRENAAEE
ARG — A BROTE -
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EBMERKROGERAR
—E-RFFR

Notes to the Financial Statements 833 % £ W%

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (45 RIEERBSN -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") of the Group has been
identified as the executive directors and senior management led by the
chairman of the Company. The CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM considers the Group conduct its business within one business
segment - the business of operating an airport and provision of related
services in the PRC and the Group also operates within one geographical
segment because its revenues are primarily generated from and its assets
are located in the PRC.

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Information of the parent company

(@)  General information of the parent company:

Place of registration

= i 3t

AY

/

(1)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 4E[&
SHBMASARET)

7 EBIEE
AEEGEREERRETE/AVTESRE
BHEZTHRRERE - EREEMAI
BENFEEERDERER - BEEERN L
MR E VR BKIR ©

EEERARAEEER —ETEAKLER
75 - BFE P B AR & — R #5530 e (AR BE AR
%o R ARAREMHREEEZREF
CHBEENMATE > AEEER —Ei
B SR o

FRBTERRERS

FAFRER
(@) SARNEXER :

Nature of business

EMHE

Haikou Meilan Haikou, Hainan Province

BOEM BEAAOT

Registered capital and changes in registered capital of the parent
company:

31 December
2014
2014%F12A31H

Air transportation and
ground handling services

YRt i Z= & B N AR AR TS

(b) SAREMERRIBL -

31 December
2015
20156128311

Increase in
current year

AN IR0

Haikou Meilan 8 0 £/

2,028,913,102

947,025,679 2,975,938,781

207



HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements 8333 % £ W #B

For the year ended 31 December 2015 £EJ&

(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (f&4ERIEEEASN - 2B A ARKT)

7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(1) Information of the parent company (Continued)

(c) The proportions of equity interests and voting rights in the Company
held by the parent company:

+ BB AIBERRERS @

(1) FAFER @)
(© AT A DT AR AR G0 & R 1E
EE A -

31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014
2015%12H31H
%2014512A31H
% Interest held % Voting rights
R EE % TRIRFELLBl%

Haikou Meilan B O ER

50.19 50.19

(2) Information of subsidiaries

The general information and other related information of the subsidiaries
is set out in Note 5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 833 % £ W%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 4E[&

(All amounts in Renminbi (“RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (B&4ZRIZEBRS) @+ %8B B AREETT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Information of other related parties

(3) EfEAEE S 155

Relationship with the Group
ER A 5 B Y BA R

HNA Group Company Limited (“HNA Group”)
BMEEBRAR (DEmKERE])

Hainan Developing Holding Company Limited (“Hainan Developing”)

BEEERERARRAR ([EERER])

Hainan Airlines

e

Hainan Airlines Food Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Food")
BEMERMARAR ([EMERMA])

Beijing Capital Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Capital Airlines”)
tREHEmEARLAR ([E#Mz=])

HNA Group Finance
TR

HNA Safe Car Rental Co., Ltd. ("HNA Safe”)
BMERSTBEEEFRAF (HEM3EE])

Tianjin Airlines Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Airlines”)
KEMEBRETAR ([RKEMRZED)

Western Airlines Co., Ltd. ("Western Airlines”)
mEMEERET AR ([FAZBMRZE L)

HNA Cargo Transportation Co., Ltd. ("HNA Cargo”)
MEERRAR ([BMEE])

Has significant influence on the Parent Company

HERRBERTE

Has significant influence on the Parent Company

HERRBERTE

Under control of Hainan Developing

X AR B

Under control of HNA Group
b=y = .E’ﬂ %U

Under control of HNA Group
2 AR B Ay 12 5l

Under control of HNA Group
X A

Under control of HNA Group
A B A 12 5l

Under control of HNA Group
X R B A

Under control of HNA Group
XM B S

Under control of HNA Group
A B Ay 12 5
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(3)
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SRBMUSARKET)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Information of other related parties (Continued)

(3) HbEEE S BN (@)

Relationship with the Group

SRS E YRR

Hainan Meilan International Airport Travelling Co., Ltd (“Meilan Travelling”)

BEEBERESKITHEBEREERR ([XEKRTHE])

Deer Jet Co,, Ltd. (“Deer Jet")

—nAMEREABMENEREERAT ([Z2E])

Hainan Eking Technology Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Eking Technology”)

BEZFERERNERATR (NEEZER])

Hainan E-card Management Co., Ltd (“Hainan E-card”)

(formerly known as “Hainan HNA Property Management Co., Ltd")

BE-—TENEEERNDERAR (MEE—FAE)
(AR BMYEEEERAR)

Lucky Air Co., Ltd (“Lucky Air")

EEFEM=EREELR ([ZEFE])

Shanghai Deer Air Co., Ltd (“Shanghai Deer Air")
EsRABMEAER R ([LE&kE])

Yangpu Guoxing
R B

Haidao Commercial

BEEE

Hainan HNA China Duty Free Merchandise Co., Ltd. (‘HNA China Duty Free”)

BEAMTERHRERAR (M%)

Under control of HNA Group
XM B S

Under control of HNA Group
2 A B A 12 5l

Under control of HNA Group
S5 B A

Under control of HNA Group

SR B B4R

Under control of HNA Group
XM B S

Under control of HNA Group
XM B S

Under control of HNA Group
XM B S

Under control of HNA Group
XM B

Under common control of HNA Group

S EE X R
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(4)
(a)

(b)

(c)

BRMERKROERAF
—E-RFFR

Notes to the Financial Statements 833 % £ W%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 4E[&
(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (F&45RIFERBYN - © XA B A REEIT)

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Significant related party transactions (4) EXBEBHRS

(a) EEHE
ZNES [ [r) B Be 07 BR B Y EE am DA K2 B AL D B
T ok R AR T R BB BIR AT S E
BIERTEBER -

Pricing policies
The Group's pricing on goods purchased from related parties, and services
provided to or received from related parties are based on market price.

Purchases of goods or services (b) FBEYHESEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 F 2014 & 201556 20144EZ
Group Group Company Company
AEH REH ¥IN/NE| ZIN/NE|
HNA Cargo M EE 37,779,096 24,335,241 - -
Hainan E-card HE— il 28,867,983 22,435,256 27,006,187 21,693,615
Haikou Meilan BOER 22,171,223 20,900,706 21,006,756 18,757,300
Meilan Travelling ERMRTTAL 5,736,881 3,655,696 5,736,881 3,655,696
Hainan Eking Technology B SRR 3,873,859 3,160,000 3,873,859 3,160,000
HNA Safe AN B AR 2,059,200 1,965,600 2,059,200 1,965,600
HNA Food BE 634,132 246,279 634,132 246,279
101,122,374 76,698,778 60,317,015 49,478,490

Rendering of services (c) RBHEH

2015 2014 2015 2014
2015 E 20145 2015 E 20145 &
Group Group Company Company
AEH REHE ¥/ PN/
Hainan Airlines YERfNZE 128,225,083 122,193,045 119,970,107 113,980,211
Capital Airlines EEES 47,666,433 41,419,466 47,666,433 41,419,466
Tianjin Airlines REMZE 20,970,412 17,268,518 20,970,412 17,268,518
Lucky Air Erg NS 7,740,484 = 7,740,484 -
HNA China Duty-free sy mlaske) 6,736,515 6,686,505 6,736,515 6,686,505
Meilan Travelling EBHIRTTAL 4,650,000 4,350,000 4,650,000 4,350,000
Deer Jet ) 4,035,751 3,244,223 4,035,751 3,244,223
Western Airlines FaEbiZE 3,655,034 2,264,644 3,655,034 2,264,644
Shanghai Deer Air EEeE 916,050 - 916,050 =
HNA Cargo B EE - 18,907,558 - -
Others Eofh 461,410 324,000 461,410 324,000
225,057,172 216,657,959 216,802,196 189,537,567
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Loans granted to a related party

(4) EXRBEERS @
(d) #FEBS =&

2015 2014 2015 2014
20156 F 0145 E 20156 F 0145FE
Group Group Company Company
AEH REHE AT VNN
Haidao Commercial BERE - 380,000,000 - 380,000,000
(e) Lease expense (e) HEEF

2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 E 0145 & 20155 E 0145
Group Group Company Company
AEH AEE FiN/NE| PIN/NE]
Meilan Cargo EHEE - = 3,600,000 3,600,000

(f) Remuneration of key management (f) BREZENSFHH
2015 2014
2015 & 20144 &
Remuneration of key management AR EIE A B E 2,762,679 2,177,757
Key management personnel include executive directors, non-executive BREEABBEARN Tﬂtﬁi% EMAT
directors, president, vice president, company secretary, chief financial officer B gY - 288 ARANE VKRR

BEE o

and supervisors of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 4E[&

SREBMA/ARKIT)

7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEEFBEERERZ @
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(g) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments

Directors and supervisors' emoluments for the year ended in 2015 are as

(4) EXBHRZ @)
(9) EEREZEEFMH
015FEBMNEENEZMEMMIT

follows:
Remunerations paid
in respect of Emoluments paid for
accepting office  other services in connection
asdirector  with the management of the
or supervisor affairs of the Company
REMEAESRES
—“BMXANHE REEFAIARXIAHHE
Salary and Discretionary
Remuneration allowance Pension bonuses Total
¥4 EE
RRR - HAtRE e

Name e e BN sTEIHN miERe A&t
Wang Zhen ES] - 238,118 63,338 - 301,456
Hu Wentai (Note (i) WXZE (i) - 235,118 62,834 - 297,952
Yang Xiaobin (Note (iv) BINE (K ) - 235,118 59,834 - 294,952
Zhang Peihua o {m - 208,118 59,834 - 267,952
Liang Jun (Note (i) 2E (Hii0) - - - - -
Zhang Hao (Note () w2 (Hit0) - - - - -
Chan Nap Kee Joseph (Note (iii) ~ BRSZE (H:2(ii) 50,000 - - - 50,000
Yan Xiang (Note (iii) ®A (Haoi) 50,000 - - - 50,000
Xu Bailing (Note (ii) wmEe (i) 37,808 - - - 37,808
Fung Ching, Simon Jteis 100,000 - - - 100,000
George F. Meng i 100,000 - - - 100,000
Deng Tianlin ERH 100,000 - - - 100,000
Gao Jian (Note (i) B (W) - 154,412 45,091 - 199,503
He Linji (Note (ii)) Wama (Haa) 62,192 - - - 62,192
Dong Guiguo (Note (1) EEE (Hi) - - - - -
Han Aimin (Note (v) BER (Mitw) - 225,316 28,850 - 254,166
Zhang Shusheng (Note (v) SE (Hi) 20,000 - - - 20,000
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(4) Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(g) Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Directors and supervisors' emoluments for the year ended in 2014 are as

(4) EXRBEERS @
(9) EEREZEFHH (&)

014FEBMNEENEZMEMIT

follows:
Remunerations paid
in respect of Emoluments paid for
accepting office other services in connection
as director with the management of the
Or SUpervisor affairs of the company
SENETESRES
—Bmxfo#e SERARAMXANME
Salary and Discretionary
Remuneration allowance Pension bonuses Total
it RE
2R K2l BEe
Name #4 Me NENTIH TR higke ait
Wang Zhen 8 - 205,700 24,689 - 230,389
Liang Jun 28 - 54,100 7,344 - 61,444
Hu Wentai (Note (ii)) WXFE (Wrtii) - 208,700 24,689 - 233,389
Yang Xiaobin (Note (iv) wINE (B - 190,700 24,689 - 215,389
Yang Xugiang R
(Resigned on 20 May 2014) (2014F5R20BBHE) - 89,050 13,205 - 102,345
Zhang Peihua Rz
(Appointed on 20 May 2014) (201485208 FH) - 190,400 24,689 - 215,089
Chan Nap Kee Joseph (Note (i) BRyE (Hrit(i) 50,000 - - - 50,000
Yan Xiang (Note (ii) B (W) 50,000 - - - 50,000
Xu Bailing (Note (i) iR (H2m) 100,000 - - - 100,000
Feng Da'an N
(Resigned on 3 November 2014) (2014511 A3EEHE) 83,836 - - - 83,836
Fung Ching, Simon 5 100,000 = - - 100,000
George F. Meng hZE 100,000 = = = 100,000
Deng Tianlin DN
(Appointed on 3 November 2014) (2014%11 A3E ) 16,164 - - - 16,164
Dong Guiguo (Note (v) SR8 (M20) - - - - -
Han Aimin (Note (v) BER (Witw) - 192,101 24,689 - 216,790
Zhang Shusheng (Note () B () 20,000 = = - 20,000
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEFTBEERERXZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(4)
(9)

Directors and supervisors’ emoluments (Continued)

Note:

U]

(iii)

Mr. Gao was appointed as executive directors on 3 July 2015. Mr. Zhang was
appointed as executive directors on 16 Feb 2015 and resigned from directors
on 3 July 2015. Mr. Zhang's emoluments were paid by the company he worked
for. Mr. Liang resigned from directors on 16 February 2015 and his emoluments
were paid by the Company he worked for.

Mr. He was appointed as non-executive directors on 18 May 2015. Mr. Xu
resigned from directors on 18 May 2015.

Mr. Hu, Mr. Chan and Mr. Yan are non-executive directors of the Company.

Mr. Yang is a director and is also the chief executive.

Mr. Dong, Mr. Han and Mr. Zhang are supervisors of the Company and Mr.
Dong's emoluments were paid by the company he worked for.

No directors or supervisors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the year.

Up to 31 December 2015, no emoluments were paid by the Company to

the directors and supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Company or as compensation for loss of office (2014: nil).

(4) EXBEHERS (&)

(9) EEREE#HH (4)
P&

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

SR EAER015F7ABRIB ARTE
£ REFLAER2015F 2168 W Em A
1TEE  2015F7AZHEENITES - k2
EENGFMAEEBRA RSN - BEEER
20152 16BEMERITES - EFHBHEE
FERA R AT ©

Al 7R 5 S5 A 7201545 18 B (A Ik
TEE - RAMER L EMR2015F5H18H H
EIEITES

XIS B R TR B A )
SEHTHE -
BIVEEEAARRTES  ABHAAT
1TE L -

EEELE  BERAENERELERAD
TEE - Heh o EEEL AN T E AR
ARXA

RERBESHES MR IF B HE T

AN

i °

HZE2015F12A31BILFE - KARLER
EEREETTERIERSI EIMARRA RS
TEABERBMENTH (20145F : &) -
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(4)
(h)

(i)

216

RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Significant related party transactions (Continued)

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
year 2015 include four directors and one senior management (2014: four

directors and one senior management) whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above.

SRBMUSARKET)

+ BB AIBERRERS @

(4) EXREHBRS @
(h) FHREZHIEEA

015FEASEFMZ SR A A T
BREMNNESR—MNEHREEAEB (20145
B OuEER—UafAEEAL)  EF
HE RERTE ERAF o

Interest Income (i) FIEWA
2015 2014 2015 2014
2015 E 20145 2015 E 20145 &
Group Group Company Company
AEH AEE FiN/NE| PIN/NE]
Haidao Commercial BB 30,822,222 - 30,822,222 -
HNA Group Finance V8 L B 755 4,006,843 10,544,802 4,006,149 10,539,367
34,829,065 10,544,802 34,828,371 10,539,367

The rates of interest income mentioned above are mutually agreed by two
parties concerned taking into reference of the deposit interest rates of
commercial banks over the same period.

LA S AR R K2 E 7 K IRTTREITF K
MEREET HERIETE
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(All amounts in Renminbi (‘RMB”) Yuan unless otherwise stated) (F&45RIFERBYN - © XA B A REEIT)

7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIEBEARERZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)
(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related (5) = XBB: S B ~ B FIHERTE

parties
(a) Cash at bank (a) E¥EL
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20155 20144
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
AEE AEE RKAF] ¥ N/NE]
HNA Group Finance SR B S 350,671,059 199,358,573 350,610,187 199,298,146
(b) Accounts receivable (b) FEWERRL

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 20155 20144
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
KEE AEE b/ PiN/NE]|
Hainan Airlines B Mz 24,376,785 23,370,695 23,813,217 22,828,570
Capital Airlines EE e 14,492,259 5,960,664 14,492,259 5,960,664
Tianjin Airlines REMZE 6,947,733 3,384,301 6,947,733 3,384,301
Meilan Travelling ERIIRITAL 3,197,492 3,122,492 3,197,492 3,122,492
Lucky Air E S 1,788,185 = 1,788,185 -
Hainan Food B E @ 851,998 1,526,848 851,998 1,526,848
HNA China Duty Free SR ina=ke) 792,860 5,670,592 792,860 5,670,592
Western Airlines 72 22 598,889 86,327 598,889 86,827
HNA Group i 134,450 128,140 134,450 128,140
HNA Safe B BAE - 392,000 - 392,000
Others Hi 3,251,002 2,206,779 3,251,002 2,206,779
56,431,653 45,849,338 55,868,085 45,307,213
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related

parties (Continued)

(c) Advances to suppliers

31 December

(5) EXBABL R - BAFIRRE

(&)

(c) BFE

31 December

31 December

31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20155 20144 20155 20144

12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H

Group Group Company Company

AEE AEE RKAF] ¥ N/NE]

Yangpu Guoxing (Note 4(12))  FERBE (A72£/79(12) 452,900,683 468,302,800 452,900,683 468,302,800
Haikou Meilan 8O ER

(Note 7(6)(c)) (BE+6))) 570,000,000 361,534,570 570,000,000 361,534,570

Hainan Eking Technology B 5 ERHY 5,807,344 2,030,462 5,807,344 2,030,462

1,028,708,027 831,867,832 1,028,708,027 831,867,832

(d) Other receivables (d) EMEN

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20154 20144 20155 20144

12A31H 12H31H 12H31H 12H31H

Group Group Company Company

AEH AEE b /N PIN/NEE]

Meilan DFS E R - - 1,809,752 1,809,752

Hainan Airlines R 3,478,614 1,626,197 3,478,614 1,626,197

Others Hith 1,978,518 534,348 1,954,701 534,348

5,457,132 2,160,545 7,243,067 3,970,297
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related

parties (Continued)

(e) Interests receivable

(5) EXBEBE T EW - FE(FRIEEREE
(&)
(e) FEWFIE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20154 20144F 20154 20144

12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H318

Group Group Company Company

AEE REHE AT PiN/NC]

HNA Group Finance B B 7S 277,943 2,269,667 277,943 2,269,667
Haidao Commercial HERFE 844,444 = 844,444 =
1,122,387 2,269,667 1,122,387 2,269,667

(f) Entrusted loan

(f) ZE

- Long-term receivables — RHAEWKR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 20155 20144
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
rEH AEE ¥ NN PAN/N|
Haidao Commercial B - 380,000,000 - 380,000,000

— Long-term receivables due within one year

— —F AR B B8 & B R UK

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20155 20144 20155 20144

12H31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H

Group Group Company Company

TEE REH NN ZN/NES

Haidao Commercial BEREE 380,000,000 - 380,000,000 =
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related

parties (Continued)
(g) Accounts payable

31 December

(5) EXBABL R - BAFIRRE

(&)

(9) FEfTRR

31 December

31 December

31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20155 20144
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
AEE AEE RKAF] ¥ N/NE]
Hainan E-card B — B 5,494,455 5,209,585 5,494,455 5,209,585
Meilan Travelling ERWIRTTAL 5,150,328 3,716,964 5,150,328 3,716,964
Hainan Eking Technology 5 5 ERHR 3,980,901 1,046,422 3,980,901 1,046,422
HNA Safe BB AR 491,400 491,040 491,400 491,040
Hainan Food SEE S 314,152 276,491 314,152 276,491
15,431,236 10,740,502 15,431,236 10,740,502

(h) Other payables (h) B
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20155 20144
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
AEHE REE RAF] ¥ N/NE]
Hainan Airlines G FAfi 2e 10,636,618 22,841,957 10,623,230 22,828,569
Meilan Cargo EWEE - = 57,596,515 42,937,483
Haikou Meilan HOER 187,643,210 9,654,183 179,499,533 4145715
Hainan E-card B — R 1,189,627 1,220,150 - 247,736
Others Hith 277,495 327,237 277,495 279,080
199,746,950 34,043,527 247,996,773 70,438,583
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SREBMA/ARKIT)

7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(5) Significant receivables from and payables to related

parties (Continued)

(i) Advances from customers

31 December

(5) EXBABL R - BAFIRRE

(%)
(i) FUHE

31 December 31 December

31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20145 20154 20144
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
Group Group Company Company
F%Em A%E AT AR

Haikou Meilan 8O KR
(Note 7(6)(a)) (H1aFt(6)@a) 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973 3,128,973
HNA China Duty Free R R 61,901 61,901 - =
3,190,874 3,190,874 3,128,973 3,128,973

(j) Directors’ emolument payable

31 December

G) FETEEFH

31 December 31 December

31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014

20154 20144 20155 20144

12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12H31H

Group Group Company Company

rEH REH NS ZAN/N]

Directors’ emolument EES 482,192 650,745 482,192 650,745
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative
investment project with related parties

(a) Terminal Expansion Project

+ BB AIBERRERS @

(6) EXFBAOTEEWBRSHFRE
HH

(a) MUBIERETRE

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

20155128318 20141283180

Land Use Right Transfer Agreement and Investment  #1/& K SE B9 %% 7] A8 £ it
R ®RIRE R =

and Construction Agreement with Haikou Meilan

- Receivable from Haikou Meilan for — Al A EBKE 2
Land Use Right Transfer (Note a-1) T {E SRR (Hita-1) (28,160,761) (28,160,761)

~ Payable to Haikou Meilan under the Investment ~ — E[AEDXBEI 2
and Construction Agreement (Note a-2) SEERBEER (Kita-2) 200,367,976 383,318,800
172,207,215 355,158,039

On 26 August 2011, the Company entered into a Land Use Right Transfer
Agreement and an Acquisition Agreement with Haikou Meilan in respect
of construction of an international terminal, expansion of west gallery of
the terminal and a number of ancillary projects in the Meilan Airport (the
“Terminal Expansion Project”). On 12 December 2012, the Acquisition
Agreement was terminated and superseded by an Investment and
Construction Agreement entered into by the Company and Haikou Meilan
on the same day.

(a-1) Pursuant to the Investment and Construction Agreement, in order
to facilitate the construction of the Terminal Expansion Project and
the obtain of relevant property ownership certificate(s) as a whole
by Haikou Meilan, the Company will transfer the LUR of the land
with a site area of 125 acres to Haikou Meilan at a consideration of
RMB31,289,734. As at 31 December 2015, the Company has received
a deposit of RMB3,128,973 from Haikou Meilan (31 December 2014:
RMB3,128,973).
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720118 F268 + ANA &) B O X/ 5L &
RIS BB - ML BT IE RIERT
ITRUAREMEBEET RS RIFIL T i
S E = LR R

o 72012512 A
C RET M WU BB R AR LE - AN AR]E

B O XN E— BRI R EZ R PTE

N IRBREERBERZIOE  ARAE
AR #31,289,734 TR B & R 0 X
EEARNAL25HA) L FE R - A
FEREBOEBETMMEREEZTIRER
IREREBREMULE 2 FEEF
R2015F 128318 » AR FE W IJ/
OB AL HEAEEERA
#3,128,9737T (2014%F12H318 : }\E
#3128,9737T) °
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BE(ABERERS @
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative (6) EABEHK I EEWBRESERE
investment project with related parties (Continued) HE @)

(a) ML IEEZTE (#&)
@) MELEERHZE  BOZHEESR

(a) Terminal Expansion Project (Continued)
(a-2) Pursuant to the Investment and Construction Agreement, Haikou

Meilan undertakes that, upon completion of the construction of the
Terminal Expansion Project and before the transfer of the assets of the
Project to the Company, Haikou Meilan shall not transfer or dispose
of any assets of the Terminal Expansion Project to any third party,
and upon completion of the construction of the Terminal Expansion
Project and before the satisfaction of the closing conditions of transfer
of the assets of the Terminal Expansion Project to the Company, the
Company is exclusively entitled to operate the Terminal Expansion
Project. The total consideration of the project is RMB1,026,680,000,
including the estimated construction cost of RMB876,500,000 and land
use rights on the price of RMB150,180,000. The Company shall provide
funds to Haikou Meilan according to the progress of the construction
of the Terminal Expansion Project. The construction of the Terminal
Expansion Project will be completed no later than 31 December 2015.
The above resolution has been approved by the extraordinary general
meeting held on 4 March 2013.

The Company has made progress payments of RMB90,000,000
to Haikou Meilan during the year. The accumulated construction
fee payments made by the Company to Haikou Meilan up to 31
December 2015 amounted to RMB733,361,200 (31 December 2014:
RMB643,361,200), plus the machinery and equipment purchased by
the Company amounting to RMB51,027,934 and capitalised interest
of RMB41,922,890, the total investment made by the Company to the
Terminal Expansion Project is RMB200,367,976 (31 December 2014:
RMB383,318,800).

The construction of the international terminal and ancillary projects
have been completed and put into use in 2013, the related costs
were transferred to fixed assets of RMB236,748,630 and LUR of
RMB45,078,000 respectively, totalling RMB281,826,630 (Note 4(8) and
Note 10).

During the year, the west gallery expansion project have been
completed and put into use and related costs totalling RMB601,120,441
(Noted 4(8)) were transferred to fixed assets, which include construction
costs incurred by Haikou Meilan of RMB508,169,617, machinery
and equipment purchased by the Company of RMB51,027,934 and
capitalised interest of RMB41,922,890, the long-term prepayments
were reduced to nil (31 December 2014: RMB361,534,570) (Note 4(12)).

BRERFEE TRER  WEABNZ
HHRTERAARNREREZIER 2
BEM  THEMEMNEZFEFERH
EZHEBEZAMNEE BARAES
WEZTEE 2 BRER - 2B B Eat
& 558 5 AR #1,026,680,0007T © B
FEFART IR EER AR A R #876,500,0007T BA
N & b {5 F3 # $7 8 A R #150,180,000
T ARRIERBRZIEENEREER
BOEMIEMEES - ZEAZHEISR
ER2015512831H s ARIE A » £
MOR B &20135F3 540 BRAMKR R
BRIK SR RB

A
733,361,2007T (20149128318
#643,361,20070) © B [E A A 7
BB R 1B A R #51,027,9347T &
Eﬁ ?'r\J B A K #41,922,8907T © AN
s %xi\ﬁij\ﬁmzmuoz T
ZJS/ATrLJ TREEER ﬁ/\E%
200,367,9767C (2014512 H31H : A K
#383,318,8007T) ©

ZBEEHBHE mﬂﬂlﬁ@&@ﬂﬁl&ﬂ
R203FETWHRAFER  DRlEE
ié@/\ﬁéﬁzzse,m&@oﬁ&imﬁ
FA#E A R #45078,0007T * & AR
281,826,6307C (FIzEPH@®)F(10)) °

RAFEE - %8 B 7 At uh 12 78 35 BB
ERIREMEEIRE R IWRAMS
H% RN B IR B BR A /AR B8 Ak AN R
.m & & E AR 601,120,441 7T (Bt s
8) (BIESOXEMEREZERAA
Eﬁgso&m%wﬁ C AR BITRBR
AN A R #551,027,9347T & Kl B & AN
{E AR #41,922,8907T) » W HEFERHRE
E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%&iﬁ%ﬂ%i (20145124
H: BNEEERESABEAA
R#361,534,5707T) (BIEEU(12)) °
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7 RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY + BEIBERERZ @

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(6) Significant asset acquisition and cooperative (6) EARBMAEEWBREERE
investment project with related parties (Continued) HE @)

(b) Terminal Complex Project

(b) YFiiE R

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
20155F12H31H 2014512 A31H

Payable to settle through Yangpu Guoxing Bif i HEE S 2 TR 1,137,483,317 1,401,230,972
In 2015, the Company entered into a construction service agreement with 2015 - R ARIIREZRILAIAREEE - 78
Yangpu Guoxing in respect of construction of the Terminal Complex Project. TR E SR A AR %1,903,874,0007T 5 [
The budget cost of the Terminal Complex Project is RMB1,903,874,000. B B B B R SR VA AT AR S BB IE B &5T 7
Pursuant to this agreement, the Company engaged Yanpu Guoxing to EERBHE - TR B R TIERE
monitor and manage the construction of the Terminal Complex Project RETEEREINIRR WX AFHE

with a service fee at 3% of the total budget cost.

B4 B UL ATAR & IR B AR RIS E

As at 31 December 2015, the Company has made payments totaling HZ=2015F128318 @ RBERRE B
RMB766,390,683 to Yangpu Guoxing according to the construction service RAFE B REERES N TR R
agreement (31 December 2014: RMB502,643,028 (Note 4(12)(a)). AR 75 B 5t A R #5766,390,6837T (2014412

(c) Acquisition

H31H @ AR #502643,0287T) (B 3£ P4 (12)
@) e

(c) REESF

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
2015F12H31H 20145 12A31H

Equity transfer agreement with Haikou Meilan
— Payable to Haikou Meilan under the

equity transfer agreement

MEOEBE N REEE DS
—FERABOERIN2Z
A& B B 5K 34,800,000 -
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RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Significant asset acquisition and cooperative
investment project with related parties (Continued)

Acquisition (Continued)

On 13 November 2015, the Company and Haikou Meilan entered into
an equity transfer agreement pursuant to which, Haikou Meilan agreed
to transfer 100% of the equity interest in Haikou Meilan Airport Assets
Management Co., Ltd. at a consideration of RMB604,800,000. As at 31
December 2015, the Company has paid the consideration of RMB570,000,000

to Haikou Meilan (31 December 2014: nil) (Note 4(12)).

The assets of Hainan Meilan Assets Management Co., Ltd. mainly includes
apron, offices, access road.

Phase Il Expansion Project

On 21 August 2015, Haikou Meilan and the Company entered into the
Investment and Construction Agreement in respect of the Phase Il Expansion
Project of Meilan Airport (“Phase Il Expansion Project”). Pursuant to the
agreement, total budgeted investment of the Phase Il Expansion Project
is RMB13,838 million, the whole is divided into certain subprojects and
assigned to Haikou Meilan and the Company respectively, the budgeted
investment of the parts to be constructed by the Company (the “Projects
Being Responsible by the Company”) is RMB7,158 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET

At the extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of the Company
held on 30 December 2015, the Company was approved for private
placement of Renminbi corporate bonds with a maximum principal
amount of RMB3 billion and maturity of not more than 5 years before 31
December 2017. The Company submitted application of this bond offering
to Shenzhen Stock Exchange in January 2016 and has obtained the approval
in February 2016.

+

For the year ended 31 December 2015 4E[&
SHBMASARET)

BEHTBRERRERS @

(6) EXFBAOTEEWBRSHFRE

IBEH (&)

(c) REBE (#)

(d)

AN

M2015F11A138 - A AR BB OEFZH
FIREEERE BOEHREEEER
EHWISEETIEA R D F100%A # -
EB A R #604,800,0007T ° & £2015%F12
A318 - AARIE R RBAEMIZ AR
7 B8 B 3k A R #570,000,0007T (201412 A
318 : &) (FIsEma2) »

BEEMMSEEERARARNEETESR
RIEHRT - PAE ESERFEE -

—HiEEEA

20158 A218 » A AR EEFOEXFEHRE
S — BB IE BRI IR B E R Wk o 1R
BIREER R RS _HREEEER
BES %ﬁi’JE/\E%BsaM L ARAB
BEHRIH ([RA ®IEE]) BEHRE
ﬁ%ﬁ%’w%/\ﬁ”ﬂ%ﬂ%%x

EERERARSHE
20155124308 + N AR BRKRERRIAR
e HOEARAFR2017412 431 B ATEEIE
PNRABTHARBETR=EE BARK3E
TR RES - HIR TNEBIBESE o XA AR
20165F1 A ERBRAARFT - WER
201652 H 1S R FTAE T BATHIBLIR -
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9 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures contracted for but not yet necessary to be recognised

on the balance sheet

M3 HAGE

31 December

N BAXAEXHARESE

EROME TV EEERBER EIIRHER

31 December

2015 2014

2015%12831H 2014 12H31H8

Terminal Complex Project (Note 7(6)(b)) URTAR G BBIEE (MiF£6)1b)) 1,137,483,317 1,401,230,972

Terminal Expansion Project (Note 7(6)(a)) MutiEEE TR (M7 +H06)E) 143,732,929 383,318,800
Other capital commitments signed BB EAMmE N NERE

but not yet recognised & EBENE A M 63,708,628 =

1,344,924,874 1,784,549,772

10 LEASES

The future lease payments of the Group's assets held under finance lease
(Note 4(8)(b)) are summarised as follows:

+ HE

AEEBARMEMERABRETEE (MEH

8(b)) * RREXMESELMT

31 December

31 December

2015 2014

2015512A831H 2014812 H31H

Within one year —E AR 39,960,198 28,581,972
One to two years —B|—F 51,013,416 28,581,972
Two to three years —H=F 21,672,649 28,581,972
Over three years =% e - 21,436,479
112,646,263 107,182,395
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(primarily foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s major operational activities are carried out in Mainland China
and a majority of the transactions are denominated in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the recognised assets
and liabilities, and future transactions denominated in foreign currencies,
primarily with respect to US dollars. The Group's finance department at
its headquarters is responsible for monitoring the amount of assets and
liabilities, and transactions denominated in foreign currencies, to mitigate
the foreign exchange risk. For the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014,
the Group did not enter into any forward exchange contracts or currency.
swap contracts.

As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts in
RMB equivalent of the Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are summarised below:

-I-_

(1)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 4E[&
SHBMASARET)

tRMIERHER
AEFMKL T SAESESRER : ™
AR (£ Z &I NERRMFRRR) =
PR EN R o A6 E LM E R E IR
SRS S S MBS AR B R M - JskE 4
HAREB IS ERNBENTZE -

™5 ER

(a) SMEREZ

AEBENEBERLEMUNPEER » TBER
RAREEE - EAKECHEIANINEEE
MEBERARNINER S SNEEEMAR
FONEZ ZRHBEB B RET) RARF
FEIMNERR - AEE AU AFTIR EEE
KEINERXZMINEBERBBENHRER -
RARERE A e INERR - NASE
EAREEREE  AEEARRZEMEN
SMNEEHHEREBREH -

M2015%12 8318 R2014%E12 8318 » &
EHEHNIINEEREEMIINESRIBEINTE
RARERSFESIRIT ¢

31 December 2015
2015F12831H

uss$ Others Total
EnEE Hpsp g H &
Financial assets denominated in foreign currency 4MN&EG @& &=
— Cash at bank and on hand - E&ES 2,433,077 36,168 2,469,245
Financial liabilities denominated INESREE
in foreign currency
— Bank borrowings — RITIE X 1,357,120,030 - 1,357,120,030
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)

(a)

228

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

SRBMUSARKET)

t-ERMIAEREER @
(1) miZEbE @)
(a) SMERE (&)

31 December 2014
2014512 A31H

VS Others Total
ELEE HhHMNEIR B =
Financial assets denominated in foreign currency 4MNE & Eh & &
— Cash at bank and on hand —EBES 660,997,715 34,055 661,031,770
Financial liabilities denominated INE SR E
in foreign currency
~ Bank borrowings — SRITIERK 1,694,923,074 = 1,694,923,074

As at 31 December 2015, with RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5.8%
against the US$ while all other variables had been held constant, the Group's
net profit for the year would have been approximately RMB13,733,426 (31
December 2014: RMB9,636,138) lower/higher for various financial assets and

liabilities denominated in USS.

2015128318 - HFRAEBSEETS
BMEEMETSRAG  ARBHETERE
S FHES8% - HMMERRFTE - AIAEEH
F )R AR A 2 g A A R #513,733,4267T
(2014128318 : AR¥9,636,1387T) °
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t-ERMIAEREER @
(1) miZEbE @)
(b) FIZEREZ

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continued)
(1) Market risk (Continued)

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term interest bearing
borrowings including long-term borrowings and corporate bonds. Financial
liabilities issued at floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. Financial liabilities issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The Group determines the relative proportions
of its fixed rate and floating rate contracts depending on the prevailing
market conditions. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s long-term interest
bearing borrowings with floating rates were mainly US$-denominated bank
loans, amounting to US$208,993,475, equivalent to RMB1,357,120,030 (31
December 2014: US$276,993,475, equivalent to RMB1,694,923,074) (Note
4(21)).

Increases in interest rates will increase the cost of new borrowing and
the interest expenses with respect to the Group's outstanding floating
rate borrowings, and therefore could have a material adverse effect on
the Group's financial position. The Group’s finance department at its
headquarters continuously monitors the interest rate position of the Group
and makes decisions with reference to the latest market conditions. The
Group may enter into interest rate swap agreements to mitigate its exposure
to interest rate risk. During the year, the Group has not entered into any
interest rate swap agreements.

For 2015, if interest rates on the floating rate borrowings had been 50 basis
higher/lower while all other variables had been held constant, the Group’s
net profit would have decreased/increased by approximately RMB1,193,040
(2014:RMB1,766,712).

AEBOFERREEEENRBERSE
HEEER - FBNENEREBEERELRE
EmRBReREfEmnls BEMENS
MEEFEAEEEEARBETNERRER -
RNE BRI E BB T I5 R IE 2R ORE E 7
& ZEF R E BRI LA o 7820155512
A318  AEBREFHINETEEBEE
TR AE TR ERIRITER - ©EAET
208,9934757C + #T & A R #1,357,120,0307C
(20145F12H31H : 3£ JT276,9934757C * #T
A ANR#1,694,923,0747T) (KtEEPU(21)) ©

7 5% [ 48 A B 75 P P 15 AR B 4% & B A KoK
F oo FE_EFEIEINFIE S B EBH KA
KAREBHANBHAZBN X BHEL
BERHFEH - WHARENM B REE
EEANTHNEE  EEEQREBESEFND
SRR R R AR - EL AR ETT
MR B E R PR R AR - RAFE
REREAY EH KB -

RAFEE  WROZFENFI R E 891G 5 F
K FA s TRRSOEES - MEMEARRFT
2 AEENFANEEROIENOAR
#1,193,0407T (20144F [ : AR #51,766,712
TT) °
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11
(2)

(3)

230

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Credit risk mainly arises from cash

at bank and on hand, accounts receivable and other receivables.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated with
cash at bank since most of them are deposited at state owned banks, listed
banks or HNA Group Finance. Management does not expect that there will

be any significant losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

In addition, the Group has policies to limit the credit exposure on accounts
receivable and other receivables. The Group assesses the credit quality of
and sets credit limits on its customers by taking into account their financial
position, the availability of guarantee from third parties, their credit history
and other factors such as current market conditions. The credit history of
the customers is regularly monitored by the Group. In respect of customers
with a poor credit history, the Group will use written payment reminders,
or shorten or cancel credit periods, to ensure the overall credit risk of the
Group is limited to a controllable extent.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each subsidiaries of the Group and
aggregated by the Group's finance department in its headquarters. The
Group’s finance department at its headquarters monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group's short-term and long-term liquidity requirements to ensure
it has sufficient cash and securities that are readily convertible to cash to
meet operational needs, while maintaining sufficient headroom on its
undrawn committed borrowing facilities from major financial institution
so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any
of its borrowing facilities to meet the short-term and long-term liquidity
requirements.

BEMSARKET)

-I-_

(2)

(3)

ﬁEﬂIE&EEFﬁ (#&)

= A E ke
AEEEERRRZAS D TETEE - £
FRBREBEERRITER  BUER R
fto BB =

AREBRTFREBZFRRBEART - Hit
RPE FTRITSEMITE - AEERSE
THFEEANERRR  TEELRYHTE
N MEHMEREARERK -

EAN - S R AR K B A YR - AR
REMABRAZEGERRRBRO - NEE
ERNEEFHMBINR - 15 =77 BEER
MRIBEME  ERREES R EMRAEFEWB AT
SRR EHEEPHNEREEY REMRERE
R - AEEEeERHEFERLEETE
7 HRNERRETRANES - AEEEXR
RE@MENR - BEERMIBURERBES
A UHERAEENERERRRERZEN
EE

B B
ZIK/AET&ZIS%@WX%QTE%?/H\Q%E’UIE
/i\ﬁ%iﬁ“ﬁﬂ o HEERIA H B PIE R AR AN A
ANERERETHOER L E%IJE
@ﬁ%amﬁ SRR ESTR - AR
ERTRNESRHE  ARFEEESLT
EREFBENRE T2 SREBEREERE
HEAERESHAGE - AnREHMES
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continveay T— @l T B K HEE @)

(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) WENREER ()
The financial assets and liabilities of the Group as at the balance sheet date REEBERXRA  FASERBEcREERS
are analysed by their maturity date below at their undiscounted contractual BEBEURTENERBESRERIIEBT)
cash flows: T

31 December 2015

2015% 128318
Within 1 year 1to 2 years 2to5years  Beyond 5 years Total
—E0R e “HRE RENE &
Financial assets CRAE
Cash at bank and on hand SEES 1,023,267,032 - - - 1,023,267,032
Accounts receivable FEdERSR 303,184,304 - - - 303,184,304
Interests receivable JEUR| 2, 1,122,387 - - - 1,122,387
Other receivables Hitn e 23,965,933 - - - 23,965,933
Long-term receivables due within one year — —% bARZI 2360 R U3k 380,000,000 - - - 380,000,000
1,731,539,656 - - - 1,731,539,656
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Accounts payable ERER 19,064,006 - - - 19,064,006
Interests payable JERIE, 49,952,295 - - - 49,952,295
Dividends payable FE(TRR A 499,500 - - - 499,500
Other payables H T 283,759,288 - - - 283,759,288
Corporate bonds RAEH - - 800,000,000 - 800,000,000
Long-term borrowings REfEH 1,437,120,030 190,000,000 760,000,000 - 2,387,120,030
Interest and expense payable for BREMRSBER
long-term borrowings and bonds EFFERER 202,285,957 148,844,384 203,905,479 - 555,035,820
Long-term payables REERT 39,792,890 39,854,215 32,999,158 - 112,646,263
2,032,473,966 378,698,599  1,796,904,637 - 4,208,077,202
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11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continveay T— @l T B K HEE @)
(3) Liquidity risk (Continued) (3) RENEFE (8)

31 December 2014
2014%12A318

Within 1 year 1t02 years 2105 years Beyond 5 years Total
—EHRA —H=% ZHRE AFENE a3

Financial assets CRAE
Cash at bank and on hand SEES 1,884,557,387 - - - 1,884,557,387
Accounts receivable R 120702313 - - - 120702313
Interests receivable JELR| 2, 2,269,667 - - - 2,269,667
Other receivables Hitn el 4,560,931 - - - 4560931
Long-term receivables e = 380,000,000 = = 380,000,000
2,012,090,298 380,000,000 - - 2,392,090,298

Financial liabilities cRAaE
Accounts payable ERER 15,234,088 - - - 15,234,088
Interests payable FERTIE, 50,416,960 - - - 50,416,960
Dividends payable JER IRA 499,500 - - - 499,500
Other payables Hit R 114,236,355 - - - 114,236,355
Corporate bonds NSILC - - 800,000,000 - 800,000,000
Long-term borrowings REER 416,092,000 1,278,831,074 - - 1,694.923,074

Interest and expense payable for BREMRSBER

long-term borrowings and bonds EFFIERER 129,962,661 111,783,821 138,320,000 - 380,066,482
Long-term payables REERT 28,581,972 28,581,972 50,018451 - 107,182,395
755,023,536 1,419,196,867 988,338451 - 3,162,558,854
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T-€RIA
(3) RENEBR (&

RITHER

11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AND RISK (continued)
(3) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank borrowings and corporate bonds are analysed by repayment terms

as follows:

31 December 2015

R nREZFE}

SREBMA/ARKIT)

EHOMAT ¢

31 December 2014

2015%12A31H 20145124318

Bank Corporate Bank Corporate

borrowings bonds borrowings bonds

BATEN NEES RITIEK NEES
Wholly repayable within RE—HENB#E

five years-borrowings AFZREER 2,387,120,030 800,000,000 1,694,923,074 800,000,000
Not wholly repayable within RE—HEFEE

five years-bonds REZENES - - = =

2,387,120,030 800,000,000 1,694,923,074 800,000,000

= V2N =
12 FAIR VALUE = R AREEME

il

Based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, the fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

NABEFEERMBNER  HYAAE
Bt ERRMEAEEZSENBAENE

KK IR E -

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical F—EX: NHREEXBEEEEMS
assets or liabilities. EREARRRE o

Level 2:  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that FER bR —E R AEINEREE
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, EXBEEEIHAEANEHR
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). B8 A B ©

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on F=ER HEEEXABEN PAEHEER
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). BAE -
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12 FAIR VALUE (Continued)

(1) Financial instruments not measured at fair value but
disclosed the fair value of the assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value mainly represent
receivables, payables, long-term borrowings, corporate bonds and long-

term payables.

Except for financial liabilities listed below, the carrying amount of other
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value is a reasonable

approximation of their fair value.

31 December 2015

BEMSARKET)

= R AEEMLE @

(1) FUAREBEFEEREAE QIR
BENEENES
AREUBHAAH EHEREENSHE
BEE OIS : WUEON - BAFOR - I

ATEENEBEARE -

BN E R B AR - AR A EER
ENEMEEMAENREAEERAAEE
ERRN -

31 December 2014

20155128318 014128318
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
REEE AREE FEEE NAEE
Financial liabilities SREE -
Corporate bonds NEIES 794,952,116 888,000,000 793,619,030 847,920,000

The fair value of corporate bonds is determined at the quoted price in the
active market and is categorised in level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The
fair value of the corporate bonds of the Company is determined by the
quoted prices of Shanghai Stock Exchange on the last trading day prior to

31 December 2015
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13 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including bank borrowings, corporate bonds and long-
term payables) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as ‘shareholder’s equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus
net debt. The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2015 and 31
December 2014 were as follows:

TZEXER

AEBEEAERBERNBIRER T RERE
BRI ELE - e ARRIBHDER - I
EEMMSHRE RS  ARERRENE
REEBIAPHEEARKA ©
RTHREIABENGRE  AREAEEA
EXMERROBRAESE  MRRERE?
ZIND %é‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂxﬂﬁ%éf%%ﬁﬂﬁ%i‘% °

=
=
oo

Al
o &

AEBFAERBEL REZEAER - Zt
T?z:zdﬂ%a%ﬂ%bx é%abé; o B FEE

BER (BIERTHER ETE?%WEHJ?
J‘&“H ) BMERERREEEBY - BEARR
éﬁ%éﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂfﬂPﬁ’i‘JmE’ﬂH&%%ﬁEéﬁyﬁﬁ%
SEREZ A > 7A20158F12 4318 K&2014%12 A
318 AREBEXREELRGTENT -

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
2015512A31H 2014512 A31H

Total borrowings FEUE N
Bank borrowings RITENK 2,354,574,627 1,662,055,758
Corporate bonds RNElESH 794,952,116 793,619,030
Long-term payable R BT K 101,970,597 94,877,308
3,251,497,340 2,550,552,096
Less: Cash at bank and on hand W BEEES (1,023,267,032) (1,884,557,387)
Net liabilities (SRR 2,228,230,308 665,994,709
Shareholder's equity R ER A2 3,251,390,645 2,891,354,169
Total capital B 5,479,620,953 3,557,348,878
Gearing ratio BERBELZX 40.66% 18.72%
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14 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL 10 A T8 HHmRMHE

STATEMENTS
(1) Long-term equity investments

(1) REBRERE

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
2015%F12831H 2014 12H31H
Subsidiaries (a) S /NCIIE)!

— Unlisted companies —FEmAHA 10,477,825 10,477,825

Associates (Note 4(7)) Bt N R (B7F2(7))
— Unlisted companies —3EEmAH 1,210,687,572 1,128,146,862
Less: long-term equity investments impairment & : & HA PRI B R B ZE s (277,825) (277,825)
1,220,887,572 1,138,346,862

There is no significant restriction on the conversion of long-term equity

investments into cash.

(a) Subsidiaries

31 December

RRAB P FERBREZROERRS -

(@) FAH

Reduction of 31 December

2014 investments 2015 Provision

20145 20154
12A31H WORE 12A31H B LR
Meilan Duty Free Shop WA 277,825 = 277,825 (277,825)
Meilan Cargo THEE 10,200,000 - 10,200,000 -
10,477,825 = 10,477,825 (277,825)

There is no substantial business activity of Meilan DFS. Due to the significant
uncertainty of future operation of Meilan DFS, the Company provided full
impairment of RMB277,825 against the long-term investment in Meilan DFS
in year 2014.
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SREBMA/ARKIT)

14 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL THE AT EHmRMEE @

STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Revenue and operating costs, general

administrative expenses

(2) EXRWANMERZAE - EEER

2015 2014
20155 F 20145 &
Operating revenue EEIWA
Aeronautical: AuZe 275 ¢
Passenger service charges IRE RS & 229,766,658 190,328,469
Refund of Civil Aviation Development Fund EmzERESRERMAN 184,693,275 160,621,367
Fees and related charges on aircraft takeoff
and landing TR B B N AR A Uk 79,972,831 68,139,298
Ground handling service income b RS & 63,674,128 56,215,227
558,106,892 475,304,361
Non-aeronautical: IERTZE I TS ¢
Franchise income FREF R SRR A 256,458,436 208,534,299
Rental income e WA 42,086,680 41,419,516
VIP room income EEEWA 17,788,387 19,843,357
Parking fee income SEIFUA 17,023,384 16,055,393
Other income H 4 A 48,958,183 31,347,696
382,315,070 317,200,261
940,421,962 792,504,622
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14 NOTES TO THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL TR 5B #R KR M @
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(2) Revenue and operating costs, general and (2) EZWANMEENE EEEH
administrative expenses (Continued) (&)

EENAREEBRAEZEHUTEEBK :

Operating costs, general and administrative expenses include the following

238

items:

2015 2014

2015 E 20144 fZ

Employee benefit expenses BIEMNER 112,968,399 73,111,639
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEEENEER 61,433,795 56,592,068
Airport and logistic services fee W35 RN AR & RIS & 38,987,317 33,364,980
Outsource labour costs Eigkie AN BEH 24,531,318 29,762,596
Utilities IKEE 28,725,238 23,960,870
Repairs and maintenance HIEE R 17,430,025 13,777,148
Other taxes H A8 10,156,976 9,714,355
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 PR AR £ 3,971,763 3,971,764
Handling fees of CAAC Settlement Center RmsERLFEE 4,314,405 3,962,055
Audit fees EETENE B 2,610,000 3,200,000
— Audit and review service - Far M ER RS 1,840,000 1,750,000
— Non-audit service - JEEET RIS 770,000 1,450,000
Travelling expenses =iRE 2,057,335 2,144,943
Others EHAfth 51,010,214 48,887,034
358,196,785 302,449,452
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15 NET CURRENT ASSETS TIRERBEE
The Group
AEH
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

20155128318 201412 A31H

Current assets RENEE 1,741,981,920 2,014,675,870
Less: Current liabilities W ORBAE (1,899,217,088) (703,159,240)
Net current (liabilities)/assets FnE) (AfE) BE (157,235,168) 1,311,516,630
The Company
P NN
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

2015%F12A31H 201412 A31H

Current assets MEBE 1,734,910,766 2,011,018,873
Less: Current liabilities N e =K (1,928,672,322) (724,795,723)
Net current (liabilities)/assets FonE (AR BE (193,761,556) 1,286,223,150
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16 TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ThEAEEBABERS

The Group

AEH
31 December
2015
2015512H831H

31 December
2014
201412 H31H

Total assets BEAG 6,962,242,906 5,721,747,176
Less: Current liabilities B OmBARE (1,899,217,088) (703,159,240)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTIEE 5,063,025,818 5,018,587,936
The Company
P NN
31 December 31 December
2015 2014

2015%F12A31H

201412 A31H

Total assets BEBT 6,959,874,501 5,724,011,583
Less: Current liabilities WOREAaE (1,928,672,322) (724,795,723)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREAE 5,031,202,179 4,999,215,860

240



‘-é

— AnERR
HNA Infrastructure

BRERKRODERQA

HNA INFRASTRUCTURE COMPANY LIMITED

-]

www.mlairport.com



	封面

	拉頁
	目錄
	企業使命
	公司簡介
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	主席報告
	管理層討論及分析
	社會責任與環境報告
	公司管治報告
	董事、監事及高級管理層簡介
	董事會報告
	監事會報告
	審計報告
	合併及公司資產負債表
	合併及公司利潤表
	合併及公司現金流量表
	合併股東權益變動表
	公司股東權益變動表
	財務報表附註
	封底



